Federal-Mogul Limited (formerly T&N Limited)

Company Number 163992

Dhrector’s report for the vear ended 31 December 2009

The director of Federal-Mogul Limited (“the Company™) presents his annual report for the year ended 31
December 2009 together with the audited financial statements for the year

Admimstration and Chapter 11 Proceedings

On 1 October 2001, the Company’s then ultimate parent undertaking, Federal-Mogul Corporation and 1ts
subsidianies 1n the United States voluntanly filed for financial restructuring under Chapter 11 of the US
Bankruptcy Code In addition, the majority of Federal-Mogul subsidianies 1n the Unuited Kingdom, including the
Company, filed jointly for Chapter 11 and Admimstration under the UK Insolvency Act 1986

On 10 July 2006 the Admnistrators 1ssued to the creditors their proposals for company voluntary arrangements
(CV Asj) for the Company and 50 other UK filing subsidianes These proposals were approved at shareholders’
and creditors” meetings held on 7 September 2006 and were confirmed by the UK Court on 11 October 2006
On | December 2006, 64 of the UK filing companies, including the Company, exited from UK Adrministration

On 8 November 2007, the US Bankruptcy Court confirmed Federal-Mogul Corporation's Fourth Amended Joint
Plan of Reorgamzation ("the Plan") and on 14 November 2007 the Plan was affirmed by the US District Court

On 27 December 2007, foliowing a 30 day period when objections to the Plan could be raised, the Plan became
effective 1n accordance with 1ts terms (the "Effective Date™) and Federal-Mogul Corporation, together with 59 of
the UK filing comparnies, including the Company, emerged from Chapter 11

Significant events

On 7 Apnl 2609 the Company changed 1ts name from T&N Limited to Federal-Mogul Limuted

Results and dividends

The profit for the year after tax was £1 9m (2008 profit £3 4m} No dividends are proposed (2008 £mil).

Principal activities and review of the business

The principal activity of the Company continued to be the manufacture and distnbution of automotive
components for onginal equipment manufacturers (“OEMs™) and aftermarket outlets

The Company considers mmover and operational EBITDA to be s key financial performance indicators
Turnover for the year was £161 8m compared with £201 8m 1n 2008 The most sigmificant factor contnbuting to
the reduction 1n turnover 1s an unprecedented downturn 1n the global automotive industry which caused the
OEMs to significantly reduce their global light duty and commercial vehicle production schedules and output
EBITDA 15 a non-GAAP measure defined to exclude impairment charges, restructuring costs, corporation tax
expense, interest expense and income, depreciation and amortisation EBITDA for the year was £18 7m
compared with £7 2m 1n 2008 £10 Om of the £11 5m net increase in EBITDA was due to a one-off non-trading
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Company registration number 163992

Director’s report for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The revenue derived from the Company’s principal activity 1s closely hnked with global OE automotive sales
and production levels Vanations 1n the level of vehicle production would affect not only sales to OE customers
but, depending on the reason for the change, could impact demand from aftermarket customers Should the
Company fail to respond appropriately to changes in the demand for 1ts products then 1its results and financial
condition could be affected adversely

Research and development

The research and development activities of the Company continue to be directed principally towards the
development of new products and to improving the performance and effectiveness of existing products In 2009
expenditure amounted to £4 Om (2008 £4 2m)

Asbestos-related costs

The Company, and a number of 1is fellow subsidianies of Federal-Mogul Corporation, are amongst many
defendants named 1n a large number of court actions, both 1n the Unmited States and the United Kingdom, alleging
personal injury resulting from exposure to asbestos or asbestos-contaiming products

Upon the Plan and CVAs becorng effective an asbestos personal injury trust (“the Trust™) was established in
the US and the UK Asbestos Trust (the “UK Trust”) was established in the UK The terms of the Plan and CV As
limut the assets of the Company that the holder of an Asbestos Claim has recourse to  This has the effect of
placing a limit on the Company’s hiability at an amount equal to the value of those assets The assets compnse of
the insurance cover under the Hercules Policy which, following a settlement with one of the three reinsurers, has
a hmut of £471 2m, the Stock Repayment Obligation, £338 Om, and an asset m respect of loans to be provided by
the Trusts that will not be required to be repaid, £28 8m Thus the assets have a total value of £838 Om so the
liability has been fixed at £838 Om

The terms of the Plan and CV As are such that the Director considered derecogmition of the assets and Liabilities 1s
the most appropriate way of reflecting these hiabilities and related hiabilities and this was reflected 1n the 2007
accounts . i

Further information 1s included 1n note 19 of the financial statements

Directors and senior executive

The following served as directors of Federal-Mogul Limited during the year

D Bozynsk, resigned 27 January 2009
I. D Hangran, appomnted on 27 January 2009




Federal-Mogul Limited

Company regstration number 163992

Director’s report for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

Employees and emplovment policies

The Company has over 1,200 employees located 1n the UK

It 1s the Company’s policy to provide equal opportunities to all employees The Company provides appropnate
tramung at all levels and 15 commutted to helping employees to develop therr full potential by gaining relevant
skills and expenence

Full and fair consideration 15 given to applications for employment made by disabled persons Employees who
become disabled will be retained 1n employment wherever possible and, where necessary, appropriate retraining
will be provided

The Company places considerable emphasis on regular and effective communications with employees on matters
of concern to them The Company 1involves and consuits employees on matters concermng its performance

Creditor pavment policy
It 1s Company policy to
(1) agree the terms of payment when agreeing the terms of the transaction,
() ensure that the supplier 1s aware of the terms of payment, and
(1) abide by those terms
Trade creditor days of the Company as at 31 December 2009 were 50 1 days (2008 28 3 days)
Treasury Policies
Financial Instruments
The Company’s financial instruments comprise cash at bank, balances with group undertakings and trade
debtors and creditors arising from normal operations These financial instruments are used to fund the

Company’s operations It 1s Company policy that no trading in financial mstruments be undertaken

Interest Rate Risk

There are no bank borrowings so interest rate risk arises only from those intra-group loans which bear
interest A number of these loans carry interest at a floating rate since the rate 1s Iinked to bank base rate
However, no specific action 1s taken to hedge the corresponding interest rate exposure since there is
mumimal risk to the Group as a whole

Foreign currency risk

Several mtra-group loans are denominated 1n foreign currencies and a significant element of export sales
are ivoiced 1n foreign currencies As a member of a multi-national group, the Company does not hedge
currency exposure [t 1s not considered appropriate to do so in connection with intra-group loans or
mntra-group trading and exposure to risk relating to third party export sales 1s mitigated by using foreign
currency receipts to meet payments to overseas suppliers However, foreign currency 1s held for only
short periods, the general policy being to convert all cash transactions to sterling as soon as possible




Federal-Mogul Limited

Company registration number 163992

Director’s report for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

Treasury Policies (continued)

Credit Risk

The Company’s objective 1s to reduce the nisk of financial loss due to a counterparty’s failure to honour
its obligations Thus 1s achieved by each operating division being responsible for assessing the credit risk
associated with accepting production schedules from customers and for managing shipments and
recewvables within pre-determined credit hirmits  Sirmularly, in respect of intra-group loans resulting from
Federal-Mogul Group’s policy to use cash surpluses in one area of the busmess to meet funding
requirements 1n another, credit risk 1s assessed by a central treasury department

Ligumdity Risk

The Company aims to mutigate hquidity risk by managing cash generation by 1its operations Formal
approval procedures apply within each operating unit in respect of capital expenditure and cash flow 1s
managed through regular forecasting and management review of operating results at all levels of the
company

Donations

The Company made charntable donations amounting to £4,317 (2008 £6,914) in the year The largest single
donation was £1,200 made to a hospice, local to one of the UK manufactunng sites Remaimng donations were
in support of local chanties and community projects in the vicimty of the other UK manufacturing sites There
were no political donations

Disclosure of information to auditors

In accordance with s 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006 the director

1s not aware of any relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director.in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

On behalf of the Board

bl

L. D, Hangran
Director,
Date: GN'U‘O M ,2’0/{0




Federal-Mogul Limited

Statement of the director’s responsibilities

The directors are responsibte for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements i accordance with Umted Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affaurs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that pertod In prepanng those financial statements, the directors are required to

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s 1nappropnate to presume
that the Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imregularities




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FEDERAL-MOGUL
LIMITED

We have audited the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 which
comprise the Profit & Loss Account, the Staterent of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Balance
Sheet and the related notes 1 to 22 The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their
preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Compames Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 5, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of 1ts
profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

» have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimon on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FEDERAL-MOGUL
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, 1n our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us, or

* the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

7, W

Barry Flynn (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP (Statutory Auditor)
Manchester

21 WAL , 2010




Federal-Mogul Limited

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2009

Notes 2009 2008
£m £m
Total Turnover 161 8 2018
Cost of sales (142 7) (171 6)
Gross profit 19 1 302
Other operaung expenses 3(a) (23 6) 40N
Other operaung mcome 3(b) 16 7 49
Operating profit / (loss) on ordinary activities 122 (56)
Net interest recervable 4 34 39
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 3 156 (17
Tax on profit / (loss) on ordinary activities 5 (13 7) 51
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 19 34
Profit attributable to shareholders 19 34

The results above all relate to continuing operations.

There 1s no matenal difference between the result as disclosed in the profit and loss account and the result on

an unmodified histoncal cost basis for both pertods




Federal-Mogul Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Notes

£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 371 395
Investments 10 496 9 4999

5340 5394
Current assets
Stocks 11 142 158
Debtors falling due within one year 12 1285 1447
Debtors falling due after more than one year 12 _47 64

1332 1511
Cash at bank and 1 hand 1023 756

249 7 2425
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 13 (57 5) (66 7)
Net current assets 1922 1758
Total assets less current liabilities 726 2 7152
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 14 (497 9) (488 8)
Net assets 2283 2264
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 2222 2222
Share prerum account i6 110 1190
Special reserve 16 64 2 64 2
Caputal contribution reserve i6 3380 3380
Profit and loss account 16 (407 1) (409 0)
Shareholders’ funds - equity 2283 226 4

(’“

The financial statements on pages 8 to 25 were approved by the Board on M

linfor

L D Hangran
Director

/{ '}/ 2010 and signed on 1ts behalf by




Federal-Mogul Limited

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

The Company has no recogmsed gains or losses other than the profit for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31
December 2008

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

For the year ended 31 December 2009 2008
£m £m
Sharcholders’ funds at start of year 226 4 2230
Profit attributable to shareholders 19 34
Sharcholders’ funds at end of year 2283 226 4

10




Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009

1. Accounting policies

The Company follows applicable UK Accounting Standards and Practice The financial statements are
prepared under the histonical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain classes of fixed
assets.

Deferred tax

The taxation charge 1s based on the result for the peniod and takes into account taxation deferred
because of timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting
purposes Deferred tax 1s recogmsed 1n respect of all hming differences that have onginated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result
1in an obligation to pay more, or right to pay less or to receive more, tax with the following exceptions:

e Provision 1s made for tax on gains ansing from the revaluation of fixed assets and gains on
disposals of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets only where, at the
balance sheet date, there 1s a binding agreement to dispose of the replacement assets concerned
However, no provision has been made where on the basis of all available evidence at the
balance sheet date, 1t 1s more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over into
replacement assets and charged to tax only where the replacement assets are sold

e Provision 1s made for deferred tax that would anse on remittance of the retained camings of
overseas subsidianes, associates and joint ventures only to the extent that, at the balance sheet
date, dividends have been accrued as receivable

o Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the director considers that 1t 18 more
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that arc expected to apply 1n the
perniods 1n which the timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date

Depreciation and Impairment

Depreciation 1s provided on cost or the revalued amount, as applicable, to write tangible fixed assets,
other than freehold land, down to their estimated residual values on a straight line basis as follows.

- Freehold buildings, 2 5% per annum.

- Leasehold buildings are assumed to have a life equal to the penod of the lease, but with a
maximum of 40 years

- Plant and machinery, at rates ranging from 7% to 33% per annum

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes 1n
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost / valuation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses

11




Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions 1n foreign currency are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of transaction Any monetary
assets or liabilities denominated 1n foreign currency are retranslated at the year end rate Exchange
differences on transactions in foreign currencies are included 1n the profit and loss account

Grants

Grants related to expenditure on tangible fixed assets are credited to profit over a period approximating
to the lives of qualifying assets Grants receivable to date, less the amounts so far credited to profit, are
included 1n creditors

Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provision for any impairment

Leasing

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the life of
the lease

Pensions Costs
The Company has adopted FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” in the accounts

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme 1n the form of a stakeholder plan Contributions
to this scheme are recognised 1n the income statement 1n the peniod in which they become payable

Further information on pension arrangements 1s set out 1n Note 7 to the accounts.
Research and development

Research and development revenue expenditure, including all expenditure on internally generated
patents and trademarks, 1s wntten off when incurred.

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of onginal cost and net realisable value on a first-in first-out basis. Cost
comprises matenals, labour and an allocation of attributable overhead expenses Net realisable value 1s

the price at which stocks can be sold in the normal course of business after allowing for the costs of
realisation

12




Federal-Mogu! Limited

Notes to the financia) statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue Recognition

Revenue 1s recogmsed to the extent that the Company obtamns the nght to consideration in exchange for its
performance Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates,
VAT and other sales taxes or duty The following cnitena must also be met before revenue 1s recogmsed

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods 1s recognised when the sigruficant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods

Interest income
Revenue 15 recogmsed as mterest accrues
2. Consolidation and related party disclosures

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking 1s Icahn Enterprises L. P, a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange The Company 1s included in the consolidated financial statements of Icahn Enterprises L P, which
are publicly available. Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cash
flow statement under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 1 (revised 1996) The Company 1s also exempt
under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing related party transactions with entities that are
part of the Icahn Enterprises Group or investees of the Icahn Enterprises Group

The Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings are included in consolidated accounts for a larger group,
Federal-Mogul Corporation, drawn up to the same date 1n the same financial year and those accounts are drawn
up 1n accordance with the provisions of the Seventh Directive (83/349%/EEC) or 1n a manner equivalent to
consolidated accounts and consolidated annual reports so drawn up Accordingly the Company, 1n accordance
with the exemption 1n s 401 of the Compames Act, has not prepared consohdated financial statements The
financial statements therefore contam information about Federal-Mogul Limuted as an individual company and
not as a group

The Company has not presented segmental information required by the Compamnes Act 2006 as, 1n the opimon of
the director, this disclosure would be serously prejudicial to the interests of the Company

3. Analysis of results

2009 2008
(a) Other operating expenses £m £m
Distribution costs 76 85
Admunistrative expenses 160 322
Other operating expenses 236 407

Costs of operations charged 1n arnving at operating profit include £1 Om (2008 £72m) i respect of redundancy and
rationalisation  £nil of these costs (2008 £0 5m) have been charged as costs of sales and £1 Om (2008 £6 7m) as
administration expenses

(b} Other operating income
Other operating income includes £10 Om receivable following the assignment 1n 2009 to the Federal-Mogul Asbestos
Personal Imury Trust of certain nghts and interests in any surplus assets of the Chester Street and the Chester Street

Hercules Funds, funds of the UK Asbestos Trust that were established in 2006 upon the CVAs becoming effective

13




Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

2009 2008
(c) Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting)- £m £m
Auditor’s remuneration
- Audit of company financial statements 0l 03
- Audit of UK subsidiary companies 01 01
- Other fees to auditors — taxation services 01 09
Research and development 40 42
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
- owned assets 55 56
Operating lease rentals
- on plant and machinery 09 12
- on land and buildings 03 05
Loss / (profit) on disposal of fixed assets — continuing operations 01 -
Loss on foreign exchange movements 15 30

The auditors of the Company also recerved fees of £mil (2008 £ml) in connection with the audit of the T&N Retirement
Benefits Scheme (1989) In addition the auditors of the Company also recerved audit fees for auditing the accounts of the
Company’s overseas subsidiary undertakings of £0 Lm (2008 £0 2m)

2009 2008
4. Net interest receivable £m £m
Interest payable on group loans 27 (10 2)
Other interest - 0n
Exchange loss movement on loans denominated 1n a foreign currency (34) 71
(61 (17 4)
[nterest receivable on group loans 24 95
Interest receivable on deposits 16 24
Other interest 27 07
Exchange gain movement on loans denominated n a foreign currency 28 87
95 213
Net interest receivable 34 39
5. Tax on profit / (loss) on ordinary activities
2009 2008
(a) Analysis of tax charge / (credit) 1n the period fm £fm
Current year UK corporation tax at 28% (2008 28 5%) on the profit / (loss)
for the perod } - (14 7)
Adjustments 1n respect of previous penods (68) s
Group relief receivable  —pnior peniod 16 6 (11
Advance corporation tax - current period - 98
- prior period 36 12
134 53
Overseas taxation paid 03 02
Total current tax (note 5(b)) 137 G1n
Deferred tax {note 17} - -
Tax on profit /(loss) on ordinary activities recorded 1n the profit & loss
account 137 (51)

Advance corporation tax (“ACT”) relates to ACT wrntten off / (recoverable) in the year and a reduction mn surrendered ACT
for which payment has fallen due

14




Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

5. Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge / (credit) for period

The tax assessed on the profit / (loss) on ordinary activities for the year 1s higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 28% (2008 28 5%) The differences are explamed below

2009 2008
£m £m

Profit / (loss) on ordmary activities before taxation 156 (17
Profit / (loss} on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by the standard
rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% (2008 28 5%) 43 05
Effect of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 12 03
Impact of pension payments deferred to subsequent periods (14 9) (18 2)
Decelerated capital allowances 15 02
Movement 1n net asbestos costs (04) 27N
Higher taxes on overseas earnings 03 02
ACT written off - 98
Current year losses not recogmsed 69 -
Group relief surrendered for no constderation 14 69
Adjustment to prior year group relief surrendered for consideration 16 6 (rn
Adyustment to pnior year surrendered ACT for which payment has fallen due 36 12
Adjustment to prior vear corporation tax hability 68) 05
Difference 1n tax rates in respect of toss carned back from 2008 to 2007 - 07D
Current tax charge / {credit) for period (Note 5(a)) 137 (51)

In 2009 tax relief anises 1n respect of £50 Om (2008 £50 2m) of the £201m contribution to a defined benefit pension scheme
i 2006 — see note 5(c) for further details Tax relief also anses in respect of £2 7m (2008 £13 Om) 1n respect of payments
made by the Supervisors to meet liabitities anising under S 75 of the Pension Act 1995 — see note 5(c) for further details

(¢) Factors that may affect future tax charges

Total tax losses of approximately £220 O0m (2008 £183 Om) are carned forward for utilisation against future profits These
losses will only be recogrused as a deferred tax asset when such utilisation 1s foreseeable

In 2007 asbestos related personal injury habilities and related recoverables have been derecogmsed following the Plan, as
further explained 1n note 19 Tax relhef for payments 1n respect of asbestos hiabilities derecognised following the Plan 1s
expected to anse n the year of payment Amounts recoverable under relevant asbestos insurance assets derecognised
following the Plan are expected to be taxed 1n the'years in which sums are received” -

The Company made contnibutions to a defined benefit pension scheme of £200 8m 1n 2006 The Company 1s required to
spread 1ts claim for tax relief in respect of this sum in equal instalments over four years commencing 1n 2006

Under the terms of the CVA 1n 2006, the Company set aside funds 1n bank accounts over which the Superviscrs have control
which are used to make payments to holders of relevant CVA claims, in respect of asbestos habilities which are to be settled
out of funds 1n the CVA reserves under the terms of the CVA, tax relief 1s expected to anse in the years in which the
Supervisors make payments

15




Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 {continued)

5 Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

{c) Factors that may affect future tax charges (continued)

In 2006 the Company set aside in the CVA reserves £65 3m under the terms of the CVA to meet liabihities ansing under
Section 75 of the Penston Act 1995 Tax relief in respect of this sum 1s expected to arise m the years i which the
Supervisors make payments

Note 19 makes reference to the Stock Repayment Obligation of £338m which has been assigned to the Company m 2007 by
way of capital coninbution The SRO asset has subsequently been derecogmsed following the Plan The Company may
avail itself of the benefit of the SRO to meet established asbestos personal mjury claims To the extent that 1t does so the
capital contribution will be released to profit and loss account reserves and the amounts so released will be taxable n the
year of release

The Company’s potential deferred tax assets take account of an estimate of the potential future tax rehef that 1s expected to
anise 1n the Company from payment of derecogmsed creditors The Company’s potential deferred tax habilities take account
of an estimate of the potential future taxable profits that are expected to anse 1 the Company from receipts 1n respect of
derecognised assets and from releases from the capital contribution to the profit and loss account reserves

The potennal tax benefits ansing from net asbestos and pension payments and from funds in the CVA reserves will only be
recognised when those benefits are foreseeable

No deferred tax 1s recogmsed on the unremitted earmngs of overseas subsidianes, associates or jownt ventures

No deferred tax has been provided for tax that may become payable 1f revalued assets are disposed of at their revalued
amounts

Advance corporation tax of £33 1m (2008 £18 8m), none of which 1s recogmsed in the accounts, 18 available to carry
forward against future UK tax habilities

6 Employees 2009 2008
Monthly average number of employees
Manufacturing 792 1,048
Selling and Marketing 32 43
Research and Development 57 68
Admmstrative 259 305
1,140 1,464
2009 2008
Employment costs £m £m
Wages and salaries 325 40 8
Social secunty costs 35 49
Net pension charge (Note 7) 27 27
Redundancy payments 08 36
395 520

16



Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

7 Pensions commitments

Defined contribution scheme

2009
£m
27

2008
£m
27

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme 1n the form of a stakeholder plan

In 2009 costs were £2 7m (2008 £2 7Tm) As at 31 December 2009 outstanding employer contributions of £0 3m (2008
£0 1m) were included in Creditors — Amounts falling due within one year

In 2009 there are no other significant post-employment benefits

8. Director’s emoluments

The director of the Company has not recerved any emoluments 1n respect of his services as a director of the Company (2008

£mil)

The director was not a member of the Company’s defined contribution pension scheme mn 2009 or 2008

9, Tangible fixed assets Land and buildings Plant and machinery Total
Cost or valuation £fm £fm £fm
At 1 January 2009 186 159 4 178 0
Additions 01 36 37
Disposals {(04) 81) (8 5)
Transfers to Group companies - (rn (11)
At 31 December 2009 183 1538 172 1
Depreciation £m £m £fm
At | January 2009 75 1310 1385
Disposals {0 4) (76) (8 0)
Transfers to Group companies - (10) (10)
Chatge for the year 04 51 55
At 31 December 2009 75 127 5 1350
Net book value

At 31 December 2009 108 263 371
At 31 December 2008 111 284 395

Included in the cost of fixed assets are plant and machinery in the course of construction of £2 3m (2008 £2 Im) Assets in

the course of construction are not depreciated

2009 2008
Net book value of land and buildings £m £m
Freehold land — not depreciated 36 36
Freehold buildings 71 73
Short leasehold 01 02

10 8 111

Net book value of tangible fixed assets based Land and buildings Plant and machinery Total
On istoric cost £m £m £m
Cost (or ascnbed value) 108 153 8 164 6
Depreciation (38) (127 5) (1313)
Net book value based on histonic cost
At 31 December 2009 70 263 333
At 31 December 2008 71 28 4 355
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

10. Fixed asset investments
Subsidiary Undertakings

Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2009 618 4 37 6221
Dissolution of subsidiaries (73) 27 (10 0}
Repayments - 07 (07)
Currency translation - 01) 01)
At 31 December 2009 6111 02 6113
Prowvisions
At 1 January 2009 (119 3) 29) (122 2)
Dissolution of subsidianies 50 27 77
Reduction 1n year - 01 01
At 31 December 2009 (114 3) {01) (114 4)
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 496 8 01 496 9
At 31 December 2008 499 1 08 499 9

Details of the investments in which the Company holds 20% or more of the nomuinal value of any class of share capital are disclosed
below Advantage has been taken of the exemption in S231(5) of the Companies Act whereby, due to the large number of undertakings in
respect of which the Company would be required to make disclosure, disclosure has only been made 1n respect of those undertakings
whose results or financial position principally atfect the financial statements

Name of Country of Holding Proportion | For the year | Aggregate amount | Profit or Nature of
Company mcorporation of voung | ending (¥) of capital and (loss) for Business
if outside rights and reserves at theend | the year
Great Britain shares held of 1ts most recent
% financial year
£m £m

AE Limited Ordinary 64 94 311209 426 01 Holding

shares company
Federal- Czech Registered 100 311208 1010 127 Automotive
Mogul Republic shares friction
Friction matenals
Productsa s
Federal- Ordinary 100 311209 41 - Export sales
Mogul shares company
Export -
Services
Limited
FDML Ordinary 100 311209 4305 56 4 Holding
Holdings shares company
Limuted #

* Financial information taken from the audited financial statements

#0On 11 February 2009 T&N Holdings Limited changed its name to FDML Holdings Limited
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

10. Fixed asset investments (continued)

In accordance with FRS11, the director has compared the carrying value of mvestments to thetr value 1n use to the Company

and recorded an impairment charge for any individual investments that he considered impaired

The value 1n use has been denved from discounted cash flow projections using a nommnal discount rate of 11 5% (2008
12 5%) on a pre-tax basis Long-term growth rates consistent with each applicable global industry sector, ranging from

1 6% to 3%, have been assumed for all years

The Company’s principal subsidianies, associated undertakings and trade investments are hsted 1n note 20

11. Stocks 2009 2008
£m £m
Raw materials 24 26
Work 1n progress 14 16
Fimshed goods 104 116
14 2 15 8
The difference between purchase price or production cost of stocks and their replacement cost 1s not matenal
12. Debtors 2009 2008
Debtors falling due within one year £m £m
Trade debtors 236 251
Amounts owed by fellow subsidianes 974 109 5
Taxation — United Kingdom corporation tax - 21
Prepayments and accrued mcome 06 13
Other debtors 69 67
128 5 144 7
Debtors falling due afier more than one year
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries i5 -
Other debtors 32 6 4
47 64
13. Creditors — Amounts falling due within one year 2009 2008
£m £m
Trade creditors 103 78
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiaries 339 40 2
Payroll and other taxes, inctuding social secunty 13 14
Taxation — Umited Kingdom corporation tax T 11 -
Accruals, deferred mcome and other creditors 109 173
575 66 7
14. Creditors — Amounts falling due after more than one year 2009 2008
£m £m
Amounts owed to fellow subsidianes 4979 488 8
4979 488 8
15. Called up share capital
Authorised Authorised Issued and Issued and
No. of shares £m fully paid fully paid
Ordinary shares of 40p each No of shares £m
At | January 2009 725,000,000 2900 555,358,973 2222
At 31 December 2009 725,000,000 290 0 555,358,973 2222
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

16. Reserves

Share premium Special Captital contribution Profit and
Account Reserve reserve loss account
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 110 642 3380 (409 0)
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - 19
At 31 December 2009 110 64 2 3380 (407 1)

The special reserve was established in 1997 on a reduction n capital and 1s not distributable

In 2005 a non-returnable capital contribution of £13 2m was received from Federal-Mogul Corporation This amount 1s
distributable 1n future penods, subject to part 23 of the Compames Act 2006

In accordance with the terms of Federal-Mogul Corporation’s Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Reorgamzation (““the Plan”) the
US Asbestos Trust (“the Trust™) subscnibed for 57 5% of the Reorgamzed Federal-Mogul Class B Common Stock for the
subscription price of £338,000,000, such sum bemng left outstanding as a debt owing by the Trust 10 Reorganized Federal-
Mogul

On 27 December 2007 Reorgamzed Federal-Mogul assigned and transferred to the Company by way of capital contribution
all of 1ts nght, title and 1nterest i and to such debt, the “Stock Repayment Obligation” (SRO)

This amount was included as a capital reserve as 1t was not realised at that time A transfer 1s made between the Capital
Contribution Reserve and the Profit and Loss Account as the amounts are realised by reduction of the SRO during the year
A reduction 1in the SRO occurs either by setting off agamnst the liability 1n respect of an Asbestos Claim an equivalent
amount of the SRO, or by the Trust paying the whole or part of the SRO to the Company for the purpose of enabling the
Company to satisfy the hability in respect of an Asbestos Claim There have been no such transactions durning the year

17. Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax provided 2009 2008
£m £fm
Accelerated capital allowances - 29
Asbestos related costs - (23)
Other timing differences - (0 6)
Prowvision for deferred tax - -
Asbestos O-ther_tmung Total
related costs differences
£m £m £m
At | January 2009 23 23 -
Adjustments 1n respect of previous periods 23 (23) -
At 31 December 2009 - - -
Unprovided assets 2009 2008
£m £m
Decelerated capital allowances (14) -
Asbestos related costs (69) Gn
Pensions (03) (152)
Other iming differences (03) -
Losses {61 5) {51 3)
(70 4) {71 6)
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

2009 2008
18. Commitments and contingent liabihties £m £m
Future capital expenditure — contracts placed 08 038
Operating leases - payment commitments for 2009
On leases of land and buildings expiring
- within one year 01 -
- between two and five years - -
- 1n more than five years 02 02
03 02
On leases of plant and machinery expiring
- within one year 02 03
- between two and five years 03 04
03 07

Contingent habilities also exist 1n respect of cross-guarantees given by the Company and its UK subsidianies to support
some of the Group's UK banking facilities amounting to £ml (2608 £nil)

19. Asbestos-related personal mjury htigation
Background

The Company, and a number of its fellow subsidiaries of Federal-Mogul Corporation, are amongst many defendants named
in a large number of court actions, both 1n the Umted States and the United Kingdom, alleging personal injury resulting from
exposure to asbestos or asbestos-contaimning products

In 1996, the Company purchased a £500m layer of insurance (the "Hercules Policy") to cover asbestos-related disease
claims against the T&N Group, which will be tnggered should the aggregate cost of asbestos personal injury claims made or
brought against the Company or any of its subsidiaries listed in Schedule B to the Hercules Policy after 12 01 GMT on 1
July 1996, where the asbestos-related exposure consists at least 1n part of exposure to asbestos, asbestos products, asbestos
fibres or asbestos dust mined, manufactured, sold, nstalled or distnbuted prior to that date, exceed £690m (the Company
and such subsidianies are referred to as "Hercules-Protected Entitics")

In December 2001 one of the three remsurers, who each had a third share of the policy, challenged the vahidity of 1ts
remnsurance contract with the Company As a result of this lawsuit a claim was also made against the broker that assisted 1n
procunng the policy Under the terms of a settlement (the "Settlement") reached by the parties, 1t was agreed that the
rewnsurer and the broker would be hable, 1n total, for 82 75% of the one thurd share of the remsurance policy, the Company
effectively bearing the remaining 17 25% of the one third share (or approximately £28 75 mullion) Therefore the total
effective coverage provided by all three reinsurers (including the broker) 1s 94 25% (the "Repayment Percentage") The
Bankruptcy Court approved the settlement in November 2006

Impact of the Chapter 11 Filing and UK Admnistration Orders

On 1 Octcber 2001, the Company’s then ultimate parent undertaking, Federal-Mogul Corporation, and 1ts subsidiaries 1n the
United States voluntanty filed for financial restructuring under Chapter 11 of the US Bankruptcy Code In addition, the
majonty of Federal-Mogul subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, including the Company, filed for Chapter 11 and petitioned
for and were granted an admimistration order under the UK Insolvency Act 1986 Federal-Mogul Corporatton, together with
1its US and UK affihiates that commenced bankruptcy proceedings in the Umted States, including those that commenced
admnistration proceedings 1 the United Kingdom, are referred to collectively as the "Debtors” The proceedings were
commenced 1n response to a sharply increasing number of asbestos-related claims and therr demand on the Debtors’ cash
flows and hiquidsty
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FYederal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

19, Asbestos-related personal injury libgation (continued)
Impact of the Chapter 11 Filing and UK Admimstration Orders (continued)

On 10 July 2006 the admimstrators 1ssued to the creditors their proposals for company voluntary arrangements ("CV As") for
the Company and 50 other UK subsidhanes (together, the "CVA Companies”) The CVAs enabled the CVA Companies to
agree formally a composition or scheme of arrangement with their creditors determining how their debts should be paid and
i what proportions such debts would be settled These proposals were approved at sharcholders’ and creditors’ meetings of
the CVA Compantes held on 7 September 2006 and became effective on 11 October 2006 (the "Effective Date of the
CVAs") On 1 December 2006, the Company, and a further 63 of the UK companies, exated from UK adminustration

On the Effective Date of the CVAs, a UK Asbestos Trust (the "UK Trust") was established pursuant to the UK Asbestos
Trust Deed Claims made under the terms of the CVAs (which include asbestos personal imury claims against any CVA
Company where the alleged exposure occurred within the UK or Australia and certan other claims) are required to be
asserted through the agency of the UK Trust and are referred to as "CVA Asbestos Claims" The holder of a CVA Asbestos
Claim {as defined 1n the CVAs) 1s given under the CVAs a claim agamst the UK Trust equivalent to the CVA Asbestos
Claun that he holds against the CVA Company, this 1s referred to as a "Trust Claim"  The holder of a Trust Claim wll not
recerve the full valee of his Trust Claim out of the trust funds formung the UK Asbestos Trust but instead wall receive a
dividend based on the total claim at a level to be set from tume to ume by the UK Asbestos Trustee Asbestos personal
mjury ctaims against Debtors which did not fall within the defiminion of "CVA Asbestos Claims” were left to be dealt with
by the US plan of reorganmzation

On 8 November 2007, the US Bankruptcy Court confirmed Federal-Mogul Corporation’s Fourth Amended Joint Plan of
Reorgamzation ("the Plan") In early 2007, the Debtors and other Plan Proponents had solicited votes to accept or reject the
Plan through a process approved by the US Bankruptcy Court  The Plan Proporents compnsed the overwhelming majonty
of significant stakeholders 1n the Chapter 11 Cases, mmcluding representatives of the helders of current and future asbestos-
related personal injury claims against the Debtors On 15 June, 2007, the results of the Plan voting process with the US
Bankruptcy Court showed that all classes of ¢laims against and equity interests 1n the Debtors voted to accept the Plan by
margins n excess of the US Bankruptcy Code requirements  All classes of asbestos personal injury claims voted to accept
the Plan by margins n excess of those required for the imposition of an asbestos trust and channeling 1njunction pursuant to
section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code, which allows a Debtor to establish a funded trust to assume hability for all existing
and future asbestos personal hability claims against it The legal representative for future asbestos personal injury claimants
also supported approval of the Plan The Plan provides for distnbutions of cash and/or secunties to be made 1o holders of
pre-Petitton date (1e before 1 October 2001) claims against the Debtors as well as certamn claims that arose during the
peniod that the Debtors were in Chapter 11  On 14 November 2007, the Plan was affirmed by the US Distnct Court On 27
December 2007, following the expiration of a 30 day peniod when objections to the Plan could be raised, the Plan became
effective 1n accordance with its terms (the "Effective Date of the Plan"} and Federal-Mogul Corporauon together with 59 of
the UK filing companies, including the Company, emerged from their proceedings under Chapter 11 of the US Bankruptcy
Code

On the Effective Date of the Plan, an asbestos personal injury trust ("the US Trust") was established pursuant to Section
524(g) of the US Bankruptcy Code Claims made under the terms of the Plan against any Debtor that was a Hercules-
Protected Entity are required to be asserted through the agency of the US Trust and are referred to as "Debtor HPE Asbestos
Claims" The defimtion of "Debtor HPE Asbestos Claim" excludes any CVA Asbestos Claim (so that UK and Austrahan
claims are not included) The holder of a Debtor HPE Asbestos Claim (as defined 1n the Plan) 1s given under the Plan a
claim agamnst the US Trust equivalent to the Asbestos Personal Injury Claim that he holds against the Hercules-Protected
Entity, this 1s referred to in the Plan as a "Trust Claim" The holder of a Trust Claim will not receive the full value of his
Trust Clatm out of the trust funds forming the US Asbestos Trust, but instead will receive a dividend based on the total
claim at a level set from tme to time by the US Asbestos Trustees CVA Asbestos Claims against CVA Companies
continue to be dealt with by the CVAs
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

19. Asbestos-related personal injury litigation (continued)
Assumption of liabilities by the US Trust

Pursuant to and subject to the terms specified 1n the Plan, the US Trust assumed all liability for asbestos personal imjury
claims agamst the Reorgamzed Hercules-Protected Entities 1n excess of both (1) the Hercules Retention (being the remaming
amount of the limit of £650 million as defined by the Hercules Policy) and the Hercules Coverage (being the £500 million
msurance coverage provided under the Hercules Policy, subject to the Settlement) and (1) all other sums as are attributable
to or otherwise represent the Hercules Recovenes (being amounts recovered under the Hercules Policy) to the extent such
amounts exceed the Hercules Coverage

Under the terms of the Plan, upon the Hercules Policy Expiry Date (as defined in the Plan), the US Trust will assume
hability for all remaining Asbestos Personal Injury Claims (other than those covered by employer’s hablity msurance) The
"Hercules Policy Expiry Date" includes the date on which the Hercules Policy ceases to have effect whether by commutation
or seftlement

Under the terms of the Plan, the US Trust subscribed for 57 5% of the Reorgamzed Federal-Mogul Class B Common Stock
for the subscription price of £338m (being an amount approximately equal to the remaiming Hercules Retention under the
Hercules Policy), such sum being left cutstanding as a debt owing by the US Trust to Reorgamized Federal-Mogul
Immediately following this subscniption Reorgamzed Federal-Mogul assigned and transferred to the Company by way of
capital contribution all of 1ts right, title and interest i such debt, known as the "Stock Repayment Obligation”, thereby
ensuring that established Debtor HPE Asbestos Claims can be paid by being offset against the Stock Repayment Obligation

The Stock Repayment Obligauon shall be payable by offset, in whole or 1n part, upon notice by either the Company to the
US Trust or by the US Trust to the Company 1n exercise of the option to offset provided for under the terms of the Plan, or
shall be payable, in whole or in part, upon nouice by the US Trust to the Company 1n exercise of the option to make payment
provided for under the terms of the Plan To the extent that 1t has not been paid at any earlier date the Stock Repayment
Obligation shall be payable 20 years after the Effective Date of the Plan

Derecognition of Asset and Liability
The Director has considered the terms of the Plan and the CVAs and discussed these with the Company’s advisers

Whilst the terms of the Plan and the CVAs do not result in the legal release of the habilities up to the amounts of the
Hercules Retention and the Hercules Coverage, they provide that, 1n relation to the liabihties for asbestos personal injury
claims, the Company will not incur net cash outflows In addition the US Trust and/or UK Trust should bear all nisks due to
circumstances such as the insolvency or liquidation of any 1nsurance carrier or the broker, the inability to substantiate claims
under the Hercules Policy, reduced hiqudity of the US Trust and/or UK Trust, or reduced levels or complete exhaustion of
assets available to the US Trust and/or UK Trust to settle asbestos personal imury claims The recourse of the US Trust and
the UK Trust in respect of asbestos personal injury claims 1s himited by reference to certan of the Company’s assets, being
essentially the Stock Repayment Obligation and the proceeds of the Hercules Policy The assets concerned will be utilised
by the US Trust and the UK Trust to settle the habihties arising with no prospect of any residual benefit to the Company,
and thus the Company will not have access to or benefit from these assets which do not represent future economic benefits
that are controlled by the Company Therefore the Director considered that derecogmtion of the assets and habilities was
the most appropniate way of reflecting these transactions There has been no movement 1n respect of these balances dunng
the year (see the following table)

Insurance Recoverable and Stock Repayment Asbestos Related Net Asset / (Liability)
US Trust Loan Asset Obligation Provision Position
£m £m £m £m
Balances as at
311208 5000 31380 (8380) 00
Balances as at
311209 5000 3380 (8380) 00
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

20 Principal subsidiary and associated undertakings and trade investments at 31 December 2009

Holding Companies

FDML Holdings Ltd (formerly known as T&N Holdings Limuited) + UK
Federal-Mogul UK Investments Lid (formetly known as T&N Investments Limited) UK
Powertrain

Federal-Mogul Bradford Ltd UK
Federal-Mogul Piston Segman (50%)# Turkey
Federal-Mogul lzimit (44 1%)# Turkey
Dongsuh Industnal Company Ltd (50%)# South Korea
Anqing TP Goetze Piston Ring Company Ltd (35 7% China
Friction Products

Federal-Mogul Fnichion Products Ltd UK
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Products as + Czech Republic
Federal-Mogul Frniction Products SA Span

K-B Autosys Co Ltd {33 61%) South Korea
Federal-Mogul Fnction Products Company China
Federal-Mogul Fniction Products (Thailand) Lid Thailland
Engine Parts Aftermarket

Federal-Mogul Aftermarket UK Ltd UK

Sealing Products

Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Ltd UK
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Company China
Camshafts

Federal-Mogul Camshaft Castings Ltd UK

Powder Metal Products
Federal-Mogul Sintered Products Ltd UK

Systems Protection
Federal-Mogul Japan KK Japan

Apart from FDML Holdings Limited and Federal-Mogul UK Investments Limited, the UK compames operate as branches of
Federal-Mogul Limited All the above companies traded during the vear

Unless otherwise shown, mnvestments i overseas compames are held by subsidiaries of FDML Holdings Limited The
companes are icorporated and operate principally m the countnes mdicated Equuity mvestments are wholly owned, unless
otherwise shown, and consist of ordinary shares

# Associated undertakings
* Trade investments
+ Held direcily by Federal-Mogul Limited

21 Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8 (amended 2008) Related Party Disclosures not to disclose related
party transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries

There are no other matenal related party transactions
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Federal-Mogul Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

22, Corporate information

Head Office and Registered Office
Manchester International Office Centre
Styal Road

Manchester

M22 5TN

Company registration number 163992

Ultimate parent company

The Company’s immediate parent company 1s Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited, a company registered 1n England and
Wales The ultimate parent company and controlling party 1s Icahn Enterpnises L P registered 1n the USA  The group
accounts of Icahn Enterprises LP are the largest group accounts in which the Company 1s mcluded Accounts of this
company may be obtained from Icahn Enterprises L. P, 767 Fafth Avenue, Suite 4700, New York, NY10153, USA The
group accounts of Federal-Mogul Corporation Inc are the smallest group accounts m which the Company 1s included
Accounts of this company may be obtamned from Federal-Mogul Investor Relations, 26555 Northwestern Highway,
Southfield, MI 48034-2146, USA
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained or incorporated n this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not statements of historical fact constitute
* Forward-Looking Statements * within the meaming of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the - Reform Act ™)

Forward-looking statements give current expectations or forecasts of future events Words such as “anticipate,” believe,” estimate,”
‘expect,” ntend,” *plan,’ ‘seek,” may” and other words and terms of similar meaning in connectton with discussions of future
operating or financial performance sigmfy forward-looking statements Federal-Mogul Corporation (the ‘Company’) also, from time
to ime, may provide oral or written forward-looking statements tn other materials released to the public Such statements are made in
good faith by the Company pursuant to the ‘ Safe Harbor provisions of the Reform Act

Any or all forward-looking statements included in this report or i any other public statements may ulumately be correct
Forward-looking statements may mvolve known and unknown risks, uncertamnties and other factors, which may cause the actual
results, performance, experience or achievements of the Company to differ materally from any future results, performance,
experience or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements The Company undertakes no obligation to
update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise

Listed below are some of the factors that could potentially cause actual results to differ mateniatly from histonical and expected future
results Other factors besides these histed here could also matenally affect the Company s business

e Vanmations n current and anticipated future production velumes, financial condition, or eperational circumstances of the
Company s significant customers, particularly the world s onginal equipment manufacturers of commercial and passenger
vehicles

e The Company s ability to generate cost savings or manufacturing efficiencies to offset or exceed contractually or competitively
required price reductions or price reductions to obtain new business

¢ The Company s abiiity to obtain cash adequate to fund its needs, including availlability of borrowings under 1ts various credit
facilities

¢  Fluctuations 1n the price and availabihity of raw materials and other supplies used in the manufacturing and distribution of the
Company’s products

+  Material shortages. transportation system delays, or other difficulties in markets where the Company purchases supplies for the
manufacturing of 1ts products

s Sigmificant work stoppages, disputes, or any other difficulties in labor markets where the Company obtains materials necessary
tor the manufacturing of its products or where 1ts products are manufactured, distributed or sold

¢ Increased development of fuel cell, hybnid-electric or other alternative energy technologies

¢ Changes n actuarial assumptions, interest costs and discount rates, and fluctuations in the global securities markets which directly
impact the valuation of assets and habilities associated with the Company’s pension and other postemployment benefit plans

*  Varous worldwide economic, political and social factors, changes in economic condiions, currency fluctuattons and
devaluations, credit nsks 1in emerging markets, or political instability in foreign countries where the Company has signmificant
manulacturing operations, customers or suppliers

* Legal actions and claims of undetermimed merit and amount involving, among other things, product hability, warranty, recalls of

products manutactured or sold by the Company, and environmental and safety 1ssues ihvolving the Company’s products or
facilities
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* New or expanded htigation activity regarding alleged asbesios claims agamst foreign subsidiaries of the Company for which the
hability has not been permanently channcled to a trust pursuant to section 524(g) of the United States Banhkrupicy Code and/or
addressed by the provisions of the Company Voluntary Arrangements approved 1n the United Kingdom

*  Legislative activities of governments, agencies, and similar orgamzations, both 1n the United States and n other countries that
may affect the operatiens of the Company

* Physical damage to or loss of. significant manufacturing or distribution property plant and equipment due to fire, weather or
other factors beyond the Company s control

*  Possible terrornist attachs or acts of aggression or war, that could exacerbate other nisks such as slowed vehicle production or the
avatlabihty of supplies for the manufacturing of the Company s products

*  The Company's ability to effectively transition its information system infrastructure and functions to newer generation systems
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PART 1

As used i this Annual Report, the terms “Predecessor Company™ and “Predecessor™ refer to Federal-Mogul Corporation
prior to emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings The terms the "Company,” "Federal-Mogul," “Successor Company” and
“Successor” refer to Federal-Mogul subsequent to completion of Chapter 11 proceedings in December 2007.

ITEM 1 BUSINESS
Business Overview

Federal-Mogul Corporation 1s a leading global supplier of powertrain and safety technologies, serving the world s foremost otiginal
equipment manufacturers of autemotive, hght commercial, heavy-duty, agrniculiural, marine, rail, off-road and industnal vehicles, as
well as the worldwide aftermarket The Company’s leading technology and mnovation, lean manufacturing expertise, as well as
marketing and distribution deliver world-class products, brands and services with quality excellence at a competitive cost
Federal-Mogul 1s focused on its sustanable global profitable growth strategy, creating value and satisfaction for its customers,
shareholders and employees Federal-Mogu! has established a global presence and conducts 1ts operations through various
manufacturing, distribution and technical centers that are wholly-owned subsidianies or partially-owned joint ventures, erganized mto
five primary reporting segments Powertrain Energy, Powertrain Sealing and Bearings, Vehicle Safety and Protecuon, Global
Aftermarket, and Cerporate The Company consclidated its reporting segments from six to five during the first quarter of 2009,
elmunating the Automotive Products segment Prior year reporting segment amounts have been reclassified to conform to the new
reporting segment structure Federal-Mogul ofters 1ts customers a diverse array of market-leading products for OEM and replacement
parts ( ‘aftermarket ) applications, including pistons, piston rings, piston pmns, cyhnder hiners, valve seats and guides, 1gnition
products, dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exvhaust gaskets, static gaskets and seals, rigid heat shields, engtne
bearings, industrial bearings, bushings and washers, ransmission components, brake disc pads, brake limings, brake blocks, element
resistant systerns protection sleeving products, acoustic shielding, flexible heat shields, brake system components, chassis products,
wipers, fuel pumps and highting

History and Development

The Company, during December 2007, completed 1ts tinancial restructuring under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Code
(the * Bankruptey Code”) On December 27, 2007 (the “Effective Date™), the Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Reorgamzation tor
Debtors and Debtors-in-Possession (as Modified) (the Plan’ ) became effective and, in accordance with the Plan, the Predecessor
Company merged with and into New Federal-Mogul Corporation Pursuant to the merger (1) the separate corporate existence of the
Predecessor Company ceased, (11) New Federal-Mogul Corporation became the surviving corporation and continues to be governed by
the laws of the State of Delaware, and (111} New Federal-Mogul Corporation was renamed “Federal-Mogul Corporation ™ For further
information on the reorganization upon emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings, see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
mncluded in ltem 8 of this report

The Federal-Mogul Business

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("U S GAAP?), the Company was required to adopt
fresh-start reporting etfective upon emergence from bankruptcy on the Effective Date The Company evaluated the activity between
the Eftective Date and December 31, 2007 and, based upon the immateriality of such activity, concluded that the use of an accounting
conventence date of December 31, 2007 was appropnate As such, fresh-start reporting has been applied as ot that date As a result of
fresh-start reporting, financial statements of the Successor Company are not comparable o the financial statements of the Predecessor
Company For further tnformation on fresh-start reporting, see Nole 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of
this report

Federal-Mogul has operations in 33 countries and, accordingly, all of the Company s reporting segments denive sales from both
domestic and international markets The attendant nishs of the Company's international operations are primanily related to currency
fluctuations, changes in local economic and political conditions, and changes in laws and regulations
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The following 1ables set forth net property, plant and equipment ( PP&E") and net sales by geographic region as a percentage of total
net PP&E and total net sales, respectively

Successor Predecessor
Net PP&E Net Sales
December 31 Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008 2007

Unzited States 30% 33% 40% 38% 40%
Canada — — 2% 2% 2%
Total Umted States and Canada 30% 33% 42% 40% 42%
Germany 23% 23% 17% 20% 19%
France 5% 6% 8% 8% 8%
United Kingdom 4% 4% 4% 5% 6%
Italy 5% 5% 5% 5% 4%
Switzerland — —_ 4% 1% 5%
Other Europe 9% 9% 4% 4% 5%
Total Euiope 46% 47% 42% 16% 46%
Asia 14% 13% 8% 6% 5%
Mexico 5% 4% 4% 4% 4%
South America 3% 2% 3% 3% 2%
Other 2% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Total Rest of World 24% 20% 16% 14% 12%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

The lollowing table sets lorth net sales by reporting segment as a percentage of total net sales

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
Net sales by reporting segment
Powertrain Energy 27% 31%% 30%
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 15%  Ta _ . __1T%
Vehicle Safety and Protection 14% 14% 14%
Global Aftermarket 44% 38% 39%
100% 100% 100%

The Company derives significant sales trom both the original equipment ( “OE’) market and the aftermarkct The Company seeks to
participate 1n both of these markets by leveraging 1ts OE product engineering and development capability, manufacturing excellence,
and expertise to manage a broad and deep range of replacement parts to service the aftermarket Federal-Mogul 1s the OE technology
market share lcader in several product categories The Company believes that it 1s uniquely positioned to offer premium brands, OF
replacement and entry level products for all global aftermarket customers Therefore, the Company can be first to the aftermarket with
new products, service expertise and customer support As of December 31, 2009, the Company had current OE products included on
more than 300 global vehicle plattorms and more than 700 global powertrains used 1n light, medium and heavy-duty vehicles This
broad range of vehicle and powertrain applications remnforces the Company’s belief in 1ts uruque market position
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Strategy

The Company’s strategy 1s designed to create sustainable global profitable growth by leveraging existing and developing new

competitive advantages This strategy consists of the following primary elements

¢ Provide value-added products to customers in alt markets served through leading technology and innovation,

*  Develop products to enable increased fuel economy and reduce vehicle emissions. plus enable the use of alternative energies,

*  Uulize the Company's leading technology resources to develop advanced and innovative products, processes and manufacturing
capabihities,

s Offer leading technology and mnovation in visibility, vehicle control and stability to help vehicle makers meet safety and
performance specificauons crntical for customer satisfaction,

¢ Extend the Company’s global reach to support its OEM customers, furthering 1its relationships with feading Asian OEMs and
strengthening market share with U S and European OEMs,

¢  Assess acquisition and investment opportunities that provide product line expansion, technological advancements, geographic
positioning, penetration of emerging markets (including the "BRIC™ markets ot Brazil, Russia, Ind:a and China) and market share
growth,

s Leverage the strength of the Company’s global aftermarket leading brand positions, product portfolio and range, marketing and
selling expertise, and distribution and logistics capabilities, and

s Aggressively pursue cost competitiveness in all business segments by continuing to drive productivity 1n existing operations,
conselidating and relocating manufacturing operations to best cost countries, utihzing the Company s strategic joint ventures and
alliances and rationalizing business resources and infrastructure

The Company’s strategy 1s to develop and deliver leading technology and innovation which results in market share expansion in the
OE market and aflermarket The Company assesses individual opportunities to execute 1ts strategy based upon estimated sales and
margin growth, cost reduction potential, internal investment returns, and other criteria, and makes wnvestment decisions on a
case-by-case basis Opportuniies meeung or exceeding benchmark return criteria may be undertaken through research and
development activities, acquisitions, joint ventures and other strategic alhiances, or restructuring actvities as further discussed below

Research and Development The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed to
* provide solutions for customers and bring new, innovative products to market

* ntegrate the Company’s leading technologies into advanced products and processes,

* provide engineering support for all of the Company’s manufacturing sites, and

* provide technological expertise 1 engineering and design development

Federal-Mogul’s research and development activities are conducted at the Company's research and development locations Within the
United States. these centers are located 1n Plymouth, Michigan Toledo, Ghio, Skokie Ilhinois, Ann Arbor Michigan, and Exton,
Pennsylvamia Internationally, the Company’s research and development centers are {ocated in Burscheid, Germany WNuremberg,
Germany, Wiesbaden, Germany, Bad Camberg, Germany, Chapel, United Kingdom, Crepy, France, Shanghai, China and Yokohama,
Japan

Each of the Company's business units 1s engaged 1n engineering, research and development efforts working closely with customers to
develop custom solutions to meet their needs Total expenditures for research and development activities, including product
engmeering and validation costs, were $140 mulion, $173 nullion and $178 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively As a percentage of OE sales, research and development expenditures were 4 7%, 4 1% and 4 2% for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

Jownt Ventures and Other Strategic Alliances. The Company forms joint ventures and strategic alliances to gan share 1n emerging
markets facilitate the exchange of techmeal intormation and development ef new products, extend current product ofterings, provide
best cost manufacturing operations, and broaden 1ts customer base The Company believes that certain of 1ts joint ventures have
provided, and will continue to provide, opportunities to expand business relationships with Asian and other OEMs operating 1n BRIC
growth markets The Company 1s currently mvolved in 32 joint ventures located in 13 difterent countries throughout the world,
including China, India, Korea, Russia and Turkey Of these joint ventures, the Company maintaimns a controliing interest th 18 entitics
and accordingly, the financial results of these entittes are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and 1ts
Predecessor The Company has a non-controlling interest in 14 of its joint ventures, of which 8 are accounted for under the equity
method and 6 are accounted for under the cost method The Company does not hold a controlling interest 1n an entity based on
exposure to economic nsks and potential rewards {variable interests) for which the Company 1s the primary beneficiary Further, the
Company s joint ventures are businesses established and maintained 1n connection with its operating strategy and are not special
purpose entities
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Net sales for consolidated joint ventures were approximately 7% of consolidated net sales for the ycar ended December 31, 2009 The
Company s investment in non-consolidated joint ventures totaled $238 mullion as of December 31, 2009, and the equity 1n earnings of
such affiliates was $16 mullion for the ycar ended December 31, 2009

Restructuring Activities The Company and s Predecessor, as part of the sustainable global profitable growth strategy, has
undertaken various restructuring activities to streamline (ts operations, consohdate and take advantage of available capacity and
resources and ulumately achieve cost reductions These restructuring activities include efforts to integrate and rationalize businesses
and to relocate manufacturing operations to best cost countries Such activities have resuited in the redeployment of human and capital
resources to the Company s core businesses

An unprecedented downturn in the global automotive industry and global financial markets led the Company to announce. in
September and December 2008, certain restructuring actions, herewn referred to as “Restructuring 2009,” designed to improve
operating pertormance and respond to increasingly challenging conditions in the global automotive market It was anucipated that this
plan would reduce the Company’s global workforce by approximately 8,600 positions when compared with the workforce as of
September 30, 2008 During 2009 and 2008, the Company has recorded $31 mullien and $127 mulhion, respectively, in net
restructuring expenses associated with Restructuring 2009, and expects to mcur additional restructuring expenses up to §6 mithon
through 2010 Because the significant majority of the costs expected to be incurred 1n relation to Restructuning 2009 are related to
severance expenses, such activities are expected to yield future annual savings at least equal to the costs incurred

lhe Predecessor Company announced, in January 2006, a global restructuring plan (*Restructuring 2006 °} as part of 1ts sustamnable
global profitable growth strategy During 2007, the Predecessor Company incurred expenses of $39 mullion under this program
During 2008, the Successor Company incurred expenses of $5 mullion in connection with the Restructuring 2006 program The
Restructuring 2006 program was completed as of December 31, 2008 Payments associated with this program are expected to continue
into 2010

The Company s restructuring activities are further discussed in Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results ot Operations and Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

The Company’s Froducis
The following provides an overview of products manutactured and distributed by the Company’s reporting segments

Powertrain Energy Powertrain Energy products are used in automotive, light truck, heavy-duty, industrial, manine agricultural,
power generation and small air-cooled engine applications The pnmary products of this segment include pistons, piston rings piston
pwns, cylinder hners, valve seats and guides, and 1gnition products These products are offered under the Federal-Mogul®, AE®,
Champion®, Goetze® and Nural® brand names These products are either sold as mdividual products or offered to automotive
manufacturers as assembled modules This modular assembly product offering adds value to the customer by sumplifying the assembly
process. lowering costs and reducing vehicle development time Powertratn Energy operates 38 manufactunng facilities in 15
countries, serving a large number of major automotive, heavy-duty and industrial customers worldwide Powertrain Energy dertved
20% of 1ts 2009 OE sales 1n the United States and Canada, 63% 1n Europe. and 17% 1n the rest of the world ( Rest of World™}
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The following provides a description of the vanous products manufactured by Powertrain Energy

Product Description
Pistons The main task of the piston 1s to compress the air and fuel misture (n advance of igniion Following

combustion, the piston relays the combustion energy into mechanical energy In this process, substantial
pressures are exerted on the piston, imposing high demands on 1t in terms of ngidity and temperature
resistance

Piston Rings The three main tasks of piston rings 1n internal combustion engines include (1) sealing the combustion
chamber, (2) supporting heat transfer from the piston to the cylinder wall, and (3) regulating lubrication
and o1l consumption

Piston Pins Piston pins attach the piston to the end of the connecting rod, allowing the piston to pivot in each cycle
of the engine and following the revolution of the crankshaft

Cylinder Liners Cylinder liners, or sleeves, work 1n tandem with the piston and ring, formng the chamber in which the
thermal energy ot the combustion process 1s converted into mechanical energy

Valve Seats and Federal-Mogul designs and manufactures a wide variety of powdered metal inserts used 1n engines and
Guides general industrial applications, which are specially designed to meet particular customer requirements
Ignition {gnition products include spark plugs. glow plugs, ignition cotls and accessories

Powertrain Sealing and Bearings Pederal-Mogul 1s one of the world’s leading sealing solutions and bearings providers
Comprehensive design capabihity and an extensive product porttolio enable etfective delivery ot complete sealing packages and a full
range of bearings, bushings, and thrust washers for engine, transmission and driveline systems to a broad array of customers
Federal-Mogul offers a portfolio of world-class brand names, including Federal-Mogul®, Deva® Fel-Pro®, FP Diesel®, Glyco®,
Metatram®, Metagliss®, National®, Payen®, Poral® and Sintertech® The group serves a number of different industries including
automolive, truck commercial equipment {construction, agncultural, power gencration, manine and rail}, industrial, recreation and
consumer power equipment Product offerings include dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exhaust gaskets, static
gaskets and seals. rigid heat shields, engine bearings, industnial bearings bushings and washers sintered engine and transmission
components, and metalhc filters During 2007, the Company also introduced a hne of lead-free bearings for automotive cngines,
designed to enable automakers to meet increasingly stringent legislation prohibiting the use ot lead in automobites destined for sale 1n
certain markets Powertrain Sealing and Beanings operates 31 manufactuning facilites in 12 countries Powertrain Sealing and
Bearings denved 33% of (ts 2009 OE sales in the United States and Canada, 54% n Europe, and 13% 1n Rest ot World
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The foltowing provides a description of the various products manufactured by Powertrain Sealing and Bearings

Product

Description

Dynamic Seals

Bonded Piston Seals

Combustion and
Exhaust Gaskets

Static Gaskets and
Seals

Rigid Heat Shields

Engine Bearings

Industrial Bearings

Bushings and
Washers

Sintered Engine and
Transmission

Components

Metallic Filters

Dynamic seals are used between a housing or body structure and rotating or moving shafts to contain
lubricants, fluids and pressure nside the housing, while keeping out dust and other contaminates There
are numerous areas of application including engine crankshaft, transmussion driveshatt, pimion and
axle, and wheel seals

Bonded piston seals use hydraulic pressure in transmussions to facilitate gearshuft These products are
used n automatic, dual clutch transmissions and continuously variable transmissions

Combustion and exhaust gaskets are used between two surfaces to contan gas and pressure produced
from combustion These gaskets are primarily used on internal combustion engine applications
including cylinder head, exhaust mamfold, exhaust takedown, exhaust gas recirculation and
turbocharger gaskets

Static gaskets and seals create a barrier between wwo surfaces to contain flnds, pressure and pases
while keeping out dust and other contarminants There are numerous areas of application ncluding
engine covers, 01l pans, intake mamfolds, transmission covers and differential covers

Rigid heat shields are designed to provide a heat and sound barner to emitung components These
products cover a tull range of application on a vehicle from engine to tailpipe

Engine bearings ensure low friction rotation and guidance of the connecting rod and the crankshatt to
facihtate the transmission of full combustion power trom the piston They operate principally under
hydrodynamic lubrication condittons

Bronze bearings are used in highly loaded compression engines (diesel or gasoline turbocharged) A
full range of lead free solutions has been successtully developed These products cover a complete
range of electroplated and Sputter coated beanngs These extremely high performance materials
support the down sizing of the engines and consequent CO? reduction

Aluminum engine bearings are lead free and are primanly used in naturally aspirated gasoline engines
These materials have exceptionally good shiding properties when combined with cast iron crankshafis

Sold under the Deva®, Glycodur®, Metafram® and Metagliss® brands, industnal bearings are
primarily dedicated to apphcations operating 1n mixed or low lubrication cenditions Applications are
manly diverse industrial motors or converters and include wind turbines and hydroelectric power
generation equipment

Bushings and washers are used in engmnes and transmissions to ensure low friction rotation or
oscillation of shafts They are made of bronze, alumium or polymer material

Federal-Mogul designs and manufactures a wide variety of powdered metal mnserts used in engines and
transmussions, which are specially designed to meet particular customer requirements
Used n several industries (chemical, nuclear, water and air treatment, and food and beverage) these

filters are specially designed to meet particular customer requirements
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Velucle Safety and Protection Federal-Mogu! supplies friction, systems protection, chassis, wipers, fuel and lighting products The
Company 1s one of the world’s largest suppliers of friction materials These products are used in the automotive. motorcycle,
heavy-duty, commercial/industnial, aerospace, railway and consumer products markets The primary products of this segment include
brake disc pads, brake linings, brake blocks, element resistant systems protection steeving products. flenible heat shields, brake system
components, chassis products, windshield wipers, fuel pumps and lighting products Federal-Mogul ofters a portfolio of world-class
brand names, including Federal-Mogul® Abex®, Anco® Bentley-Harris®, Beral®, Champion®, Ferodo®, Moog®, ThermoQuiet®
and Wagner® Federal-Mogul supplies friction products to mest major customers in the light vehicle, commercial vehicle and
aerospace sectors and 1s also a leading company 1n the aftermarket Vehicle Safety and Protection operates 35 manufactuning facilities
in 15 countries, and derived 27% of its 2009 OE sales in the United States and Canada. 55% in Europe, and 18% 1n Rest of World

The following provides a description of the various preducts manufactured by Vehicle Safety and Protection

Product Description

Laght Vehicle Disc Pads A light vehicle disc pad assembly consists of

* friction matenial, which dissipates forward momentum by converting energy into  heat,

= underlayer, which 1s a layer of different tfnction matenal placed between the backplate and
friction material to improve strength, provide a thermal barrier, corrosion resistance, noise
performance or a combination of these characteristics.

¢ backplate, to support and locate the fricion material in the calwper, and

»  shum, which 15 a rubber/metal laminate developed to suppress nose

Commercial Vehicle Disc
Pads

Commercial vehicle disc brake pads are a growing segment of the fnction market, superseding
drum brakes on trucks busses, tractor units and trailers The basic construction of a commercial
vehicle disc pad 1s the same as a light vehicle disc pad

Railway Disc Pads Rallway disc pads are produced in single pad or paired pad format Federal-Mogul produces
sintered metal pads for railway applications

Light Vehicle Drum Brake
Limngs

Commercial Vehicle Full
Length Linings

Commercial Vehicle Half

Drum brake hnings are friction matenial affixed to a brake shoe and fitted on the rear service
brake, rear parking brake and/or transmission brake application

Full length hinings are the commercial vehicle equivalent of ight vehicle drum brake hnings

Hall blocks are segments of friction matertal made to be riveted onto drum brake shoes They are

Blocks used on heavier vehicle applicattons where discs are not used

Railway Brake Blocks Ratlway brake blocks work by acting on the circumference of the wheel They are highter and
quieter 1n operation than cast iron blocks However, friction performance 15 designed to replicate
that of cast iron blocks

Element Resistant
Sleeving

Element resistant sleeving products provide protection of wires, hoses, sensors, and mechanical
components and assemblies from heat electre-magnetic interference, dirt, vibration and moisture
Element resistant sleeving products include
- automotive wire harnesses and hoses,

abrasion protection and wire management of cable assemblies,
dielectric protection of electrical leads.

thermal and mechanical protection of hose assemblies, and
acoustic 1nsulating and sound-dampening materials

" ¢ 0
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Product

Description

Flexible Ieat Shields

Chassis

Wipers

Fuel Pumps

Lighting

Flexible heat shields are designed to provide heat barrier and thermal management

Chassis parts include ball joints, tie rod ends, sway bar links, idler arms. and pitman arms These
components aftect vehicle steering and vehicle nide quality

Windshield wiper parts include conventional and profile style wiper blades. blade refills and
wiper arms

Components 1n the fuel delivery system include mechanical fuel pumps, electric pump sets and
modular design applications

Automotive hghting products inctude power and highting systems, and interior and extertor
lighting components

Global Aftermarket Global Aftermarket sells products manufactured within the above reporting segments and purchased trom
outside suppliers to the independent automotive, heavy-duty and commercial/industrial replacement markets [ hrough global market
msight, supply chain expertise and world-wide brand and product line management, aftermarket customers worldwide benefit from the
Company's extensive OE technotogy and manufacturing expertise Federal-Mogul markets a broad porttolio of leading brands that are
designed to solve a problem, facilitate installation and tmprove safety, durability and vehicle performance This portfolio 1s organized
mto product categones that provide comprehensive vehicle solutions Global Aftermarket operates 21 distribution facilities tn 14
countries, serving a diverse base of distributors, retail parts stores and mass merchants around the world Global Aftermarket derived
64% ot 1ts 2009 sales 1n the United States and Canada, 21% i1n Europe and 15% in Rest of World

The following provides a description of the various products and  solutions” along with the brands distributed by Global Aftermarket

Category Product Lines Brand Names
Engine Solutions Engine Parts AE®, Carter®, 'P Dhiesel®, Glyco®, Goetze®, Nural®,
Fuel Delivery Products Sealed Power®
Sealing Solutions Gaskets Fel-Pro®, Goelze®, National®, Payen®
Seals
Steering Solutions Chassis MOOG®, Nauonal®, Precision®
Driveline

Braking Solutions

Service Solutions

Hub Assemblics

Disc Pads Abex®, Beral®, Ferodo®, Necto®, ThermoQuiet®,
Hydraulic Parts Wagner®
Linings
Rotors
Filters ANCO®, Champion®, Wagner®
Lighting

Performance Additives
Ignition Products
Wipers
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Reporting Segment Financial Information. Approximately 56% of the Company’s 2009 net sales were to the OE market and
approximately 44% were to the aftermarket The tollowing tables summarize net sales cost of products sold, gross margin and total
assets for each reporting segment For additional information related to the Company’s reporting segments, refer to Note 22 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this report

Net sales by reporting segment were

Powertramn Energy

Powertrain Sealing and Bearings
Vehicle Safety and Protection
Global Aftermarket

Cost of products sold by reporting segment was

Powertrain Energy

Powertrain Sealing and Bearings
Vehicle Safety and Protection
Global Aftermarket

Corporate

Gross margin by reporting segment was

Powertrain Energy

Powertrain Sealing and Bearings
Vehicle Safety and Protection
Global Aftermarket

Corporate

Total assets by reporting segment were

Powertrain Energy

Powertrain Sealing and Bearings
Vehicle Safety and Protection
Global A ftermarket

Corporate

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{Mhlhons of Dollars)
$ 1,413 s 2,090 § 2,063
819 1,154 1,156
772 985 1,016
2,326 2,637 2 679
b 5330 8§ 6866 3 6,914
Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Mullwons of Dollars)
by 1,284 $ 1,786 § 1,774
801 1,090 1,102
602 768 782
1,851 2,107 2,068
— (9) 3
$ 4,538 hY 5,742 $ 5,729
Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{Miullions of Dollars)
$ 129 b 304 % 289
18 64 54
170 217 234
475 530 611
— 9 (3)
b 792 $ 1,124 § 1,185

December 31

2009 2008
{(Millions of Dollars)

$ 1,696 $ 1,641
830 851

1,626 1,698

1,970 2007

1005 1039

b 7,127 $ 7 236
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The Company’s Industry

The automotive vehicle market scetor and energy, industrial and transpert market sector are comprised of two primary markets the
OE and OES market (collecuvely reterred to as the "OE’ market) in which the Company’s products are used in the manufacture of
new products and for manufacturer service replacement parts, and the aftermarket 1n which the Company s products are used as
replacement parts for current productton and previous models through the independent aftermarket or other service distribution
channels

The OE Market Demand for automotive parts tn the OE market 1s generally a function of the number of new vehicles produced
which 1s driven by macro-economic factors such as interest rates fuel prices, consumer confidence employment trends, regulatory
requirements and trade agreements Although OE demand 1s tied to planned vehicle production, parts suppliers alse have the
opportunity to grow through increasing their product content per vehicle, by inureasing market share with existing customers, and by
enpanding into new or emerging markets Companies with a global presence leading technology and mnovation, and advanced
product engineering, manufacturing and customer support capabilities are best posiuoned 1o take advantage of these opportunities

There are currently several significant trends that are impacting the OE market, including the tollowing

* Reduced Global Production — Duning the second half of 2008 and throughout 2009, an unprecedented downturn in the global
automotive industry caused the OEMSs to significantly reduce their global light duty and commercial vehicle production schedules
and output In total, the number ot vehicles produced during 2069 was 12 5 million in the Americas, 18 5 millhion in Europe, the
Middle East and Atrica ( EMEA™), and 29 9 million n Asia, compared to 2008 vehicle production of 16 4 m:lhon, 22 4 mullion
and 27 2 million in the Americas. EMEA and Asia respectively With global OE production decreasing at a significant pace, the
demand for parts, including products produced by the Company, has decreased during 2009, with only moderate increases
expected during 2010

+  Automotive Supply Consolidation — Consclidation within the automotive supply base 1s expected to continue as the entire
industry evolves and as the industry responds to the global reduction in production volumes Supphiers will seek opportunities to
achieve synergies 1n their operations through consolidation, while striving to acquire complementary businesscs to tmprove global
competiuiveness or to strategically enhance a product oftering to global customers

e (lobalizauon of Automotive Industry — OEMs are increasingly designing global platforms where the basic design of the vehicle
15 performed tn one location, but the vehicle 1s produced and sold in numerous geographic markets to realize significant
cconomies of scale by hmiting variations across product designs and geographic regions While developed markets 1n North
Amenica and Europe conttnue to remain important to OEMs, increased focus 1s being placed upon expanded design development
and production within emerging markets for growth opportunities, especially in the BRIC markets of Brazil Russia, India and
China As a result, suppliers must be prepared to provide product and techmcal resources in support of their customers within
these emerging markets Furthermore, OEMs are moving their operations to best cost geographies outside the U S and western
European markets and, accordingly, OEMs are ncreasingly requiring suppliers to provide parts on a global basis Finally, the
Asian OEMs continue to expand their reach and market share in relation to traditional domestic manufacturers As this trend 1s
expected to continue into the toreseeable tuture. suppliers must be geographically and technically positioned to meet the needs of
the Asian OEMs

* Focus on Fuel Economy, Reduced Em;ssions and Alternative Energy Sources — Increased fuel economy and decreased vehicle
emissions are of great importance to OEMs as legislators and customers continue 1o demand more efficient and cleaner operating

vehicles Increasingly stringent fuel economy standards and environmental regulations are driving OEMSs to focus on new
technologies including downsized, mgher output and turbocharged gasoline engines, diesel and turbocharged diesel, bio-mass and
hybrid diesel applications and hybrid, electric and alternative energy engines As a result, the number of powertrain
configurations will increase in response to the proliferation of commercially available energy sources Suppliers oftering solutions
to OEMs related to numerous vehicle fuel and powertiain configurations possess a distinct competiive advantage, which s
driving accelerated new product development cycles
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Focus on_Vehicle Safety — Vehicle safety continues to recerve industry attention by OEMSs as customers and legislaters view
safety as a fundamental driver in consumer purchasing decisions Accordingly OEMSs are seeking suppliers with new
technologies, capabuliiies and products that have the ability to advance vehicle safety Suppliers that are able to enhance vehicle
safety through innovative products and technologies have a distinct competitive advantage

Pricing Pressures — OEMs provide extensive pricing incentives and {inancing alternatives to consumers i order to generate sales
of new vehicles and retain or gain market share These actions have placed pressures on the OEMs profits and, 1 turn. the OEMs
expect certain recovery from their supply base In order 1o retain current business as well as to be competitively posttioned for

future new business opportuniuies, suppliers must continually identify and implement product innovation and cost reduction
activities to fund customer annual price concession expectations

Raw Matenal Cost Fluctuations — In recent periods, there have been significant fluctuations in global prices of aluminum, copper,
lead, nickel, platinum, resins steel, other base raw matenals and energy To the extent that cost tncreases are not passed on to
customers, suppliers must continue to idenufy leading design and innovative technological solutions and material substitution
options 1 order to retain a competitive advantage

Energy, Industrial and Transport Markets — In the energy, industnal and transport markets, customers continue to develop
altemnatives to histortc intrastructure This includes high efficiency wind turbines, power generators and other power conversion

devices Suppliers with the capability to utihze automotive expertise to service these and other related markets have a competitive
advantage

The Aftermarket Business Global Aftermarket products for current production and previous models are sold directly to a wide range
of distributors, retail parts stores and mass merchants who distribute these products to professional service providers and

do-1t-yourself” consumers Demand for aftermarket products 1s driven by many factors, including the durability of OE parts, the

number of vehicles in operation, the average age of the vehicle fleet and vehicle usage Although the number of vehicles on the road
and different models available continue te increase, the aftermarket has experienced softness due to increases in average useful lives
of automotive parts resulting from continued technological advancements and resulting improvements in durability

Some of the significant trends, both positive and negative, that are impacting the attermarket business include the following

Rate of Global OEM Production — Unul recently global OEM output has outpaced the volume of old vehicles taken out of service
year over year The current drop in OEM production has reversed thus trend thereby extending the average age of vehicles on the
road Should the average age of the vehicle fleet continue to nise over the long term, this increase in vehicles requirng
maintenance and repair will increase the demand for afiermarket replacement parts

Size of the Dealer Network — As a result of the drop in OEM vehicle production and the current economic downturn there has
been a contraction of the U 8 deater network and therefore a reduction in the availability of dealers offering post-warranty repair
work This should increase the demand for replacement parts through the independent aftermarket

Changes in Consymer Behavior — The aftermarket 1s impacted by changes in economic conditions, volatihity 1n fuel prices, and
expanding focus on environmental and energy conservation For example, the number of consumers with the abihty to purchase
new vehicles has been reduced due to adverse economic conditions and this may increase demand for repairs in order to keep
older vehicles road-worthy In relation to fuel prices nising fuel prices cause consumers to dnve less or defer vehicle repairs,
whereas falling fuel prices free up residual iIncome for consumers to make vehicle repairs

Extended Automotive Part Product Life and New Car Warranties — The average useful lives of automotive parts, both OE and
aftermarket, have been steadily increasing due 1o innovations in product technology and manufacturing Longer product lives and
improved durability allow vehicle owners to replace parts on their vehicles less frequently
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e Globahzatuon of Automotive Industry — OEMs are increasingly focused on emerging markets tor growth This imnureased OEM
focus on emergmg geographic regions will uttimately drive the need for replacement parts for vehicles produced and in service,
which the Company believes provides longer-term growth opportumities for its aftermarket business in these regions

¢ Vehicle Complexity — Today's vehicles are more complex n design, features, and integration of mechanical and electrical
products Ever increasing complexity adversely umpacts the demand for replacement parts through the tradittonal independent
aftermarket, as vehicle owners are less capable of perferming repairs on therr own vehicles

The Company’s Customers

The Company supplies OEMs with a wide variety ot technologically innovative parts, essentially all of which are manufactured by the
Company The Company's OE customers consist of automotive and heavy-duty vehicle manufacturers as well as agricultural,
off-highway, marine, raillroad. aerospace, high performance and industral applicaton manufacturers The Company has
well-established relationships with substantially all major American, European and Asian automotive OEMs

Federal-Mogul's aftermarket customers include independent warchouse distributors who redistribute products to local parts suppliers,
distributors of heavy-duty vehicular parts, engine rebuilders. retail parts stores and mass merchants The breadth of Federal-Mogul's
product lines, the strength of its leading brand names, marketing expertise, sizable sales force, and its distnbution and logistics
capability, are central to the success of the Company's Global A ftermarket operations

No individual customer accounted for more than 5% of the Company’s sales during 2009
The Company’s Competition

The global vehicular parts business 1s highly competitive The Company competes with many independent manufacturers and
distributors of component parts globally In general, competition for sales 1s based on price, product quality, technology, delivery.
customer service and the breadth of products oftered by a given suppher The Company 1s meeting these competitive challenges by
developing world-class technologies, efficiently integrating 1ts manufacturing and distribution operations, expanding its product
coverage within 1ts core businesses. restructuring its operations and transterning production to best cost countries, and utihizing its
worldwide technical centers to develop and provide value-added soluttons to 11s customers A summary of the Company s primary
independent competitors by reporting segment 1s set forth below

e Powertrain Energy — Primary competitors include Aisin Art Metal, BinZou, Bleistahl, Dong Yang, GKN, Hitachi-Automotive.
Kolbenschmidt, Mahle, NPR, Riken. STI and Sumitomo

e Powertrain Seahing and Bearings — Primary competitors include Daido, Dana/Reinz  Elring Klinger, Freudenberg, GKN,
Kolbenschmidt, Mahle, Miba, NOK and Pall

s Vehicle Safety and Protection — Primary compettors include Affima, Akebono, Bosch, Delfinger, Delphi, Galfer, General
Electric, Honeywell, Nishimbo, Stanley, TMD. Tnico and Valeo

¢  Global Aftermarket — Primary competitors include Affinia, Bosch, Contitech, Delphi, Denso, Honeywell, Mahle, TMD, ITrico,
I'RW and Valeo
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The Company’s Backlog

For OEM customers, the Company generally recerves purchase orders for specific products supplied for particular vehicles These
supply relauonships typically extend over the life of the related vehicle, subject to intenim design and technical specitication revisions,
and do not require the customer to purchase a minimum quanuity [n addition o customary commercial terms and conditions, purchase
orders generally provide for annual price reductions based upon eapected productivity improvements and other factors Customers
typically retmin the nght to terminate purchase orders, but the Company generally cannot terminate purchase orders OEM order
fulfillment 1s typically manufactured 1n response to customer purchase order releases, and the Company ships directly from a
manufacturing locatien to the customer for use in vehicle production and assembly Accordingly, the Company s manufacturing
locations do not typically maintain significant fimished goods inventory, but rather produce from on-hand raw materials and
work-in-process inventory within relatively short manufacturing cycles A significant risk to the Company is lower than expected
vehicle production by one or more of its OEM customers or termination of the business based upon perceived or actual shortfalls in
delivery, quality or value

For its Global Aftermarket customers. the Company generally establishes preduct line arrangements that encompass all parts offered
within a particular product line These are typically open-ended arrangements that are subject to termination by either the Company or
the customer at any time Pricing 1s market responsive and subject te adjustment based upon competitive pressures, matenial costs and
other commercial factors Global Aftermarket order fulfillment 1s largely petformed from fimshed goods inventory stocked 1n the
Company s worldwide distnbution network Inventory stocking levels 1n the Company s distribution centers are established based
upon historical and anticipated future customer demand

Although customer programs typically extend to future periods, and although there 1s an expectation that the Company will supply
certain levels of OE production and aftermarket shipments over such periods, the Company believes that outstanding purchase orders
and product line arrangements do not constitute firm orders Firm orders are limited to specific and authorized customer purchase
order releases placed with 1ts manutacturing and distribution centers for actual production and order fulfilment Firm orders are
typically fulfilled as promptly as possible after receipt from the conversion of available raw materiats and work-1n-process inventory
for OEM orders and from current on-hand fimished goods inventory for aftermarket orders The dollar amount of such purchase order
releases on hand and not processed at any point in time 1s not believed to be significant based upon the timeframe involved

The Company’s Raw Materials and Suppliers

The Company purchases varous raw matenals and compenent parts for use mn its manufacturing processes, including ferrous and
non-ferrous metals, non-metallic raw materials stampings, castings and forgings The Company also purchases parts manufactured by
other manufacturers for sale in the aftermarket The Company has not expenenced any significant shortages of raw matenals,
components or finished parts and normally does not carry nventories of raw materials or finished parts 1 excess of those reasonably
required to meet 1ts production and shipping schedules In 2009 no outside supplier of the Company provided products that accounted
for more than 2% of the Company s annual purchases

The Company achieved material and services cost savings of approximately $104 mulhon during 2009 The Company achieved this
impact through negotiated price reductions, resourcing activities, techmical projects, contractual price escalators and market
fluctuations Through us global purchasing function, the Company continues to work with 1ts suppliers to reduce its global matenal
costs
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Ieahn Sourcimg LL.C

[cahn Sowcing LLC (" Icahn Sourcing™) 1s an entity formed and controlled by Carl C Icahn, the Chairman of the Company's Board, in
order to leverage the potential buying power of a group of entities with which Mr fcahn erther owns or otherwise has a relationship in
negotiating with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services, and tangible and mtangible property The Company 1s a member of the
buying group and, as such, 15 afforded the opportumty to purchase goods, services and property from vendors with whom lcahn
Sourcing has negotiated rates and terms [cahn Sourcing does not guarantee that the Company will purchase any goods, services or
property from any such vendors, and the Company 1s under no cbhigation te do so The Company does not pay lcahn Sourcing any
fees or other amounts with respect to the buying group arrangement and [cahn Sourcing neither sells to nor buys from any member of
the buying group The Company has purchased a varicty of goods and services as a member of the buying group at prices and on
terms that 1t believes are more tavorable than those which would be achieved on a stand-alone basis

Seasonality of the Company’s Business

The Company s business 15 moderately seasonal because many North American customers typically close assembly plants for two
weeks in July for model year changeovers, and for an additional week duning the December holiday season Customners in Europe
tustorically shut down vehicle production during portions of July and August and one week in December Shut-down periods in the
Asia Pacific region generally vary by country The aftermarhet experiences seasonal fluctuations in sales due to demands caused by
weather and dniving patterns Historically, the Company’s sales and operating profits have been the strongest 1n the second quarter
For additional intormation, reter to the Company’s quarterly financial results contamned in Note 24 to the Consohdated Mnancial
Statements, included 1in Item 8 of this report

The Company’s Employee Relations
The Company had approximately 39,000 employces as of December 31, 2009

Various untons represent approximately 37% of the Company's U S hourly employees and approximately 70% of the Company's
non-U S hourly employees With the exception of two facihities in the U § , most of the Company's unionized manutacturing facilities
have their own contracts with their own expiration dates and, as a result, no contract expiration date affects more than one facility

An unpreccedented downturn in the global automotive industry and global financial markets led the Company to announce, in
September and December 2008, certain restructuring actions, herein referred to as ‘Restructuring 2009,” designed to improve
operating performance and respond to increasingly challenging conditions in the global automotive market It was anticipated that this
plan would reduce the Company s global workforce by approximately 8,600 posiiens when compared with the workforce as of
September 30, 2008 In January 2006, the Predecessor Company commenced a restructuring plan that included a sigmificant reduction
in the Company s workforce The majority of this reduction was achieved through plant closures during 2006 and 2007 The Company
has worked and will continue to work with global customers, local works councils, unions, management, and cmployees at those
locations atfected by the restructuring program to maintain productive employce relations and minimize any disruptions resulting from
these restructuring programs

Impact of Environmental Regulatrons on the Company

The Company's operations, consistent with those ot the manufacturing secter in general, are subject to numerous existing and
proposed laws and governmental regulations designed to protect the environment, particularly regarding plant wastes and emussions
and sohd waste disposal Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment for environmental control activities did not have a
material impact on the Company's financial position or cash flows i 2009 and are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position or cash tlows in 2010

The Company’s Intellectual Property

The Company helds in excess of 4,200 patents and patent applications on a worldwide basis, of which 943 have been filed 1n the
United States Ot the approximately 4 200 patents and patent applications approximately 30% are in preduction use and/or are
licensed to third parties and the remaining 70% are being considered for future production use or provide a strategic technological
benefit to the Company
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The Company does not matenially rely on any single patent, nor will the expiratton of any single patent matenally affect the
Company’s business The Company s current patents expire over various periods into the year 2033 The Company s actively
mtroducing and patenting new technology to replace formerly patented technology before the expiration of the existing patents In the
aggregate, the Company’s worldwide patent portfolio 18 materially important to s business because it enables the Company to
achieve technological differentiation from 1ts competitors

The Company also maintains more than 5 800 active trademark registrations and applications worldwide In excess of 90% of these
trademark registrations and applications are 1n commercial use by the Company or are heensed to third parties

Interests Held by an Entity Controlled by Mr Carl C Icahn

An enuty mdirectly owned and controlled by Mr [cahn filed a Schedule 13D and amendments therein with the Securities and
Enchange Commussion indicating that such entity has a beneficial mterest of approximately 76% of the Company s outstanding shares
of common stock As a result, Mr Icahn has the indirect ability to nominate and elect all of the directors on the Company’s Board of
Directors, other than the Chief Executive Officer, and other than Neil Subin (through at least December 27, 2009) Under applicable
law and the Company’s certificate of incorporation and by-laws, certain actions cannot be taken without the approval of holders of a
majority of the Company’s voting stock including, without limitation, mergers, the sale of substanhally all of the Company’s assets,
and amendments to 1ts certificate of incorporation and by-laws So long as Mr Icahn continues to control a majonty of the Company’s
outstanding capital stock, he will continue to have these governance rights and the ability to control the Company

The Company’s Web Site and Access to Filed Reports

The Company maintamns an internet Web site at www federalmogul com The contents of the Company s Web site are not incorporated
by reference 1n this report The Company provides access to 1ts annual and pertodic reports filed with the SEC free of charge through
this Web site The Company’s Integnty Policy is also available on its Web site The SEC maintains a Web site at www SEC gov where
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information about the Company may be obtained Paper copies of annua! and
periodic reports filed with the SEC may be obtained free of charge by contacting the Company’s headquarters at the address located
within the SEC Filings or under Investor Relations on the Company’s Web site

ITEM 1.A. RISK FACTORS

An investment 1n Federal-Mogul involves vanious risks The nisks discussed below are not the only ones taced by the Company Please
also read the cauttonary note regarding “Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 2

Adverse condrtions in the automotive market adversely affect demand for the Company’s products and exposes the Company to
credit risks of 1ts customers. The revenues of the Company’s operations are closely tied to global OE automobile sales, production
levels, and independent attermarket parts replacement activity The OE market 15 characterized by short-term volatility, with overall
expected long-term growth 1n global vehicle sales and production Automotive production in the local markets served by the Company
can be affected by macro-economic factors such as interest rates, fuel prices, consumer confidence, employment trends, regulatory and
legislative oversight requnements and trade agreements A vanation in the level of automobile production would atfect not only sales
to OE customers but, depending cn the reasons for the change, could impact demand from aftermarket customers The Company s
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected 1f the Company fails to respond 1n a imely and appropriate
manner to changes 1n the demand for 1ts products

Relative to the global automotive industry, the financial stability of the United States automotive indusiry has been deteriorating
Several companies have announced significant restructuring activities to eliminate excess capacity, reduce costs, and achieve other
benefits normally associated with restructuring activities Conuinued declines in the automotive production levels of Federal-Mogul’s
major OE customers, particularly with respect to platforms for which Federal-Mogul 1s a significant supplier, could materially reduce
sales and harm Federal-Mogul s profitability
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Accounts receivable potentialtly subject the Company to concentrations of creditnsk Fhe Company's customer base includes virtually
every sigmficant global automotive manufacturer, numerous Tier 1 automotive suppliers, and a large number of distributors and
installers of autornotive aftermarket parts

lhe financial distress of Federal-Mogul's OE customers and within the supply base could sigmficantly affect its operatung
performance During 2009. many of the Company’s OE customers continued to lower production levels due to a reduction 1n
end-customer demand Several other global automotive manutacturers are also experiencing operating and profitability 1ssues as well
as labor concerns In this environment, it 1s difficult to forecast future OE customer production schedules, the potential for labor
disputes, or the success or sustainability of any strategies undertaken by any of Federal-Mogul’s customers in response to the current
industry environment This environment may also put additional pricing pressure on suppliers to reduce the cost of products, which
would reduce Federal-Mogul’s margins In addition, cuts in production schedules are also sometimes announced by Federal-Mogul’s
OF customers with little advance notice, making 1t difficult for Federal-Mogul to respond with corresponding cost reductions

Federal-Mogul’s supply base has also been adversely affected by industry conditions Lower production levels for OEMs and
increases 1n certain raw matenal, commodity and energy costs have resulted in severe financial distress among many companies
within the automotive supply base Several large suppliers and customers have filed for bankruptcy protection or ceased operations
Unfavorable industry conditions have also resulted in financial distress within Federal-Mogul's supply base and an increase in
commercial disputes and the nisk of supply disruption In addition, the adverse industry environment has required Federal-Mogul to
previde financial support to distressed suppliers or take other measures to ensure uninterrupted production While Federal-Mogul has
taken certamn actions to mitigate these factors, Federal-Mogul has offset only a portion ot their overall impact on 1ts operating results
The centinuation or worsening of these industry conditions would adversely aftect Federal-Mogul’s profitability, operating results and
cash flow

The Company’s operafions n foreign countries exposes the Company to risks related fo economic and pelitical conditions,

currency fluctuations and import/export restrictions. The Company has manufacturing and distributton facihities 1n many countries

International operations are subject to certain risks including

e exposure to local economic conditions,

=  exposure to local pelitical conditions (1ncluding the risk ot seizure of assets by foreign governments),

¢ currency exchange rate fluctuations (including, but not himited to, materal exchange rate fluctuations, such as devaluations) and
currency controls, and

* export and import restrictions

The likelihood of such occurrences and therr potential effect on the Company are unpredictable and vary from country to country

Certain of the Company’s operating entuities report therr financial condition and results of operations in currencies other than the U S
delar (including, but not hmited to, Brazilian real, British pound, Chinese yuan renminbi, Czech crown, euro, Indian rupee, Mexican
peso, Polish zloty, Russian ruble and Venezuelan bolivar) In reporting its consohdated statements of operations, the Company
translates the reported results of these entities into U § dollars at the applicable exchange rates As a result, fluctuations 1n the dollar

against foreign currencies will affect the value at which the results of these entities are mcluded within Federal-Mogul’s consclidated
results

The Company 1s exposed to a risk of gain or loss from changes in foreign exchange rates whenever the Company, or one of 1ts foreign
subsidiaries, enters into a purchase or sales agreement 1n a currency other than its functional currency While the Company reduces
such exposure by matching most revenues and costs within the same currency, changes 1n exchange rates could impact the Company's
financial condition or results of operations

The Company has substannai indebtedness, which could restrict the Company’s business activities and could subject the Company
to significant interest rate risk As of December 31, 2009, the Company had approximately $2 9 billton of outstanding indebtedness
The Company 15 permutted by the terms of its debt mstruments to mncur substantial additional indebtedness, subject to the restnctions
therein The Company’s inability to generate suftictent cash flow to satisfy its debt obligations, or to refinance its debt obligations on
commercially reasonable terms, would have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
operations
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The Company’s indebtedness could

s limit the Company s ability to borrow money for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements or other
corporate purpeses,

» require the Company 10 dedicate a substantial portion of 1ts cash flow to payments on indebtedness, which would reduce the
amount of cash flow available to fund working capital, capatal expenditures, product development and other corporate
requirements,

* ncrease the Company s vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, and

¢ lumit the Company’s ability i0 respond to business opportunities

A significant portion of the Company s indebtedness accrues interest at vanable rates To the extent market tnterest rates rise, the cost
of the Company’s debt would increase, adversely affecting the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows

The Company is subject to passible insolvency of financial counterparttes The Company engages in numerous financial transactions
and contracts including insurance policies, letters of credit, credit Line agreements, financial derivatives (including nterest rate swaps),
and investment management agreements mvolving various counterparties The Company 1s subject to the risk that one or more of
these counterparties may become nsolvent and therefore be unable to discharge s obligations under such contracts

The automotive industry 1s hughly competitive and the Company's success depends upon its ability to compete effectively in the
market The Company operates 1n an extremely competitive industry, driven by global vehicle production volumes and part
replacement trends Business is typically awarded to the supplier oftfering the most favorable combination of cost, quality, technology
and service In addition, customers continue to require pertodic price reductions that requure the Company to continually assess,
redefine and improve 1ts operations, products and manufacturing capabilities to mantain and improve profitability The Company’s
management continues to develop and execute initiatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve 1ts strategy, however,
there can be no assurance that the Company wili be abie to compete effectively m the automotive market

If the Company loses any of is executive officers or key employees, the Company's operations and abiltty to manage the day-to-day
aspects of its business may be matenally adversely affected The Company s tuture performance substantially depends on its ability
{0 retamn and motivate executive officers and key employees, both individually and as a group If the Company loses any of its
executive officers or key employees, which have many years of experience with the Company and within the automotive industry and
other manutacturing industries, or 1s unable to recruit qualified personnel, the Company s abihity to manage the day-to-day aspects of
1ts busiess may be matertally adversely affected The loss of the services of one or more executive officers or key employees, who
also have strong personal ties with customers and suppliers, could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations

The employment agreement of José Maria Alapont, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer since March 1, 2005,
expires on March 23, 2010 Accordingly, no assurances can be given that Mr Alapont will not retire and will remain as President and
Chiet Executive Officer ot the Company upon expiration of his employment agreement The loss of Mr Alapont's services could have
a material adverse effect on the Company's busimess, financial condition and results ot operations

The Company does not currently maintain ‘key person™ lite insurance

The Company’s pension obligations and other post employment benefits could adversely impact the Company’s operating margins
and cash flows. The automotive industry, like other 1industries, continues to be impacted by the nsing cost of providing pension and
other post employment benefits In addiuon, the Company sponsors certatn defined benefit plans worldwide that are underfunded and
will require cash payments it the performance of the assets in the pension plans does not meet the Company s expectations, or other
actuarial assumptions are modified, the Company’s required contributions may be higher than it expects See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in [tem 8 of this report - -
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The price of the Company's comumon stock ts subyect to volatiltty- Various factors could cause the market price of the Company's
common stock to Huctuate substantially including general financial market changes, changes in governmental regulation, significant
automotive mndustry announcements or developments, the introduction of new products or technologies by the Company or s
competitors, and changes n other conditions or trends 1n the automotive industry Other factors that could cause the Company’s stock
price to tluctuate could be actual or anticipated variations 1n the Company s or its competitors’ quarterly or annual financial results,
financial results farling to meet expectations of analysts or investors, changes in securities analysts® estimates of the Company’s future
performance or of that of the Company s competitors and the general health of the automotive industry

Mr Carl C Icahn exerts significant influence over the Company and his interests may conflict with the interest of the Company’s
other stockholders Mr Carl C Icahn indirectly controls approximately 76% of the voting power of the Company s capital stock and,
by virtue ot such stock ownership, ts able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, including
¢ the elecuon of directors,
business strategy and policies,
mergers or other business combinations,
acquissiion or disposttion of assets.
future 1ssuances of common stock or other securities,
incurrence of debt or obtaining other sources of financing, and
the payment ot dividends on the Company s common stock

? & ¢ & & O

The existence of a controlling stockholder may have the eftect of making it ditficult for, or may discourage or delay, a third party from
secking to acquire a majority of the Company’s outstanding common stock, which may adversely atfect the market price of the stock

Mt [cahn's interests may not always be consistent with the Company s interests or with the nterests of the Company’s other
stockhelders Mr Carl C Icahn and entities controlled by him may also pursue acquisitions or business opportunities that may or may
not be complementary to the Company s business To the extent that contlicts of interest may anse between the Company and
Mr Icahn and his affiliates, those conflicts may be resolved 1n a manner adverse to the Company or its other shareholders

The Company’s stock price may decline due to sales of shares by Mr. Carl C Icahn. Sales of substantial amounts of the Company s
common stock, or the perception that these sales may oceur, may adversely aflect the price of the Company’s common stock and
impede i1s ability to ratse capital through the 1ssuance of equity securities in the future Mr Icahn 15 contractually entitled, subject to
certain exceptions, to exercise rights under a registration rights agieement (o cause the Company to register his shares under the
Securities Act By exercising his registration rights and selling a large number ot shares Mr Icahn could cause the price of the
Company's common stock to decline No other shareholder has registration nights

The Company may pursue acquisitions or joint ventures that involve inherent risks, any of which may cause the Company not to
realize anticipated benefits, and the Company may have difficulty mntegranng rhe operattons of any companies that may be
acquired, which may adversely affect the Company’s resulls of operations* Inthe past. the Company has grown through acquisitions,
and may engage n acquisitions 1n the future as part of the Company’s sustamable global profitable growth strategy The full benefits
ot these acquisitions, however, require integration of manufacuring, admuinistrauve, financial, sales, and marketing approaches and
personnel [t the Company 1s unable to successfully integrate its acquisitions, it may not realize the benefits of the acquisitions, the
financial resultts may be negatively affected, or additional cash may be required to integrate such operations

[n the future, the Company may not be able to successfully 1denufy suitable acqusition or joint venture opportunities ar complete any
particular acquisition, combination, joint venture or other transaction on acceptable terms The Company s 1dentification of suitable
acquisttion candidates and joint venture opportunities and the integration ot acquired business operations involves risks inherent in
assessing the values, strengths, weaknesses, risks and profitability of these opportumities  T'his includes the effects on the Company’s
business, diversion of management’s attention and risks associated with unanticipated problems or unforeseen liabihities, and may
require signiticant financial resources that would otherwise be used tor the ongoing development ot the Company’s business
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The difficulties of integration may be increased by the necessity of coordinating geographically dispersed organizations, integrating
personnel with disparate business backgrounds and combining different corporate cultures These difficulties could be further
increased to the extent the Company pursues acquisition or joint venture opportunities intermnationally The Company may not be
effective 1n retatning key employees or customers of the combined businesses The Company may face integration 1ssues pertaining to
the mternal controls and operations functions of the acquired companies and also may not realize cost efficiencies or synergies that
were anticipated when selecting the acquisition candidates The Company may experience manageral or other conflicts with 1ts joint
venture partners Any of these items could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations

The Company s failure to wdentify suitable acquisition or joint venture opportunities may restrict the Company s ability to grow s
business [f the Company 1s successful 1n pursuing future acquisiions or joint ventures, the Company may be required to expend
significant funds, mncur additional debt and/or 1ssue additonal securities, which may matenally adversely affect results of operations
if the Company spends significant funds or incurs additional debt, the Company’s abiluy to obtan financing for working capital or
other purposes could decline and the Company may be more vulnerable to economic dewnturns and competitive pressures

The Company’s restructuring activittes may not result in the anticipated synergies and cost savings. The Company expects to
continue to incur restructuring expenses and related costs of through 2010 in connection with the Company s sustainable global
profitable growth strategy It 15 possible that such costs could vary from intially projected amounts or that achieving the expected
synergies and cost savings will require additional costs or charges to earnings in tuture periods It 1s also possible that the expected
synergies may not be achieved Any costs or charges could adversely impact the business results of operations, liquidity and financial
condition

Certain disruptions in supply of and changes in the competitive environment for raw materials could adversely affect the
Company's operating margins and cash flows. The Company purchases a broad range of matenals, components and fimished parts
The Company also uses a significant amount of energy, both electricity and natural gas, in the production of its products A significant
disruption 1n the supply of these matenials, supplies and energy or the failure of a supplier with whom the Company has established a
single source supply relationship could decrease production and shipping levels, materially increase operating costs and materially
adversely affect profit margins Shortages of materals or interruptions 1n transportation systems, labor strikes, work stoppages, or
other mterruptions to or difficulties 1n the employment of labor or transportation in the markets where the Company purchases
material, components and supplies for the production of products or where the products are produced, distributed or sold, whether as a
result of labor strife, war, further acts of terrorism or otherwise, in each case may adversely affect profitability

In recent periods there have been sigmificant fluctuations in the prices of aluminum, copper, lead, nickel, platinum, resins, steel, other
base metals and energy which have had and may continue to have an unfavorable impact on the Company s business Any continued
fluctuations in the price or availability of energy and maternials may have an adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or
financial condition To address increased costs associated with these market forces, a number of the Company s suppliers have
implemented surcharges on existing fixed price contracts Without the surcharge, some suppliers clam they will be unable to provide
adequate supply Competitive and marketing pressures may limit the Company s ability to pass some of the supply and material cost
increases on to the Company’s customers and may prevent the Company from doing so in the future Furthermore, the Company’s
customers are generally not obligated to accepi price increases that the Company may desire to pass along to them This mabihty to
pass on price increases to customers when matenal prices ncrease rapidly or to sigmificantly higher than historie levels could
adversely atfect the Company s operating margins and cash flow, possibly resulting 1n lower operating income and profitabihity

The Company’s hedging activities to address commoduy price fluctuations may not be successful in offsefting future ncreases in
those costs or may reduce or eliminate the benefits of any decreases in those costs In order to mitigate short-term variation 1n
operating results due to the aforementioned commodity price fluctuations, the Company hedges a portion of near-term exposure to
certain raw materials used in production processes. primarily natural gas, copper, nickel, lead, plainum, high-grade aluminum and
alummum alloy The results of the Company’s hedging practice could be positive, neutral or negative 1n any pertod depending on
price changes in the hedged exposures

The Company s hedging activities are not designed to mitigate long-term commodity price fluctuations and, therefore, will not protect
from long-term commodity price increases The Company's future hedging positions may not correlate to actual energy or raw
matenials costs, which would cause acceleration in the recognition of unrealized gains and losses on hedging posiuons in operating
results
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The Company is subject to a vaniety of environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and the cost of complying, or the
Company’s failure to comply with such requirements may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and
results of operations The Company 15 subject to a vanety of federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations relating to
the rclease or discharge ot materials into the environment, the management, use, processing, handling, storage, transport or disposal of
hazardous waste matenals, or otherwise relating to the protection of public and employee health, safety and the environment These
laws and regulations expose the Company to liability for the environmental condition of 1ts current facilitics, and also may expose the
Company to hability for the conduct of others or for the Company’s actions that were 1n comphance with all apphcable laws at the
ume these actions were taken These laws and regulations also may expose the Company to hability for claims of personal injury or
property damage related to alleged exposure to hazardous or toxic materials 1n foreign countries where such liability has not been
resolved through the Company’s 524(g) Trust, as defined i Part T of this Annual Report Despite the Company s intention to be 1n
comphance with all such laws and regulations, the Company cannot guarantee that it wil at all umes be in comphiance with all such
requirements The cost of complying with these requirements may also increase substantially m future years [f the Company violates
or fails to comply with these requirements, the Company could be fined or otherwise sanctioned by regulators These requirements are
complex, change frequently and may become more stringent over time, whaich could have a matenal adverse etfect on the Company s
business

The Company’s failure to maintam and comply with environmental permits that the Company (s required to maintain could result 1n
fines or penalties or other sanctions and have a material adverse eftfect on the Company’s operations or results Future events, such as
new environmental regulations or changes in or modified interpretations of cisting laws and regulations or entorcement policies,
newly discovered information or turther investigation or evaluation of the potential health hazards of products or business acuvities,
may give rise to additionat compliance and other costs that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
conditicns and operations

The Company is invelved from time to time 1n legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes, which could have an
adverse impact on the Company’s profitability and consolidated financial posinon: The Company 15 involved in legal proceedings
and commercial or contractual cisputes that, from time to time, are significant These are typically claims that anise 1n the normal
course of business including, without hmnation, commercial or contractual disputes, including disputes with suppliers, ntellectual
property matters, personal injury claims, environmental 1ssues, tax matters and employment matters No assurances can be given that

such proceedings and claims will not have a matenial adverse impact on the Company’s profitability and consohidated tinancial
position

If the Company is unable to protect its intellectual property and prevent its tmproper use by third parties, the Company’s ability to
compete in the market may be harmed: Various patent, copyright, trade sccret and trademark laws afford only limited protection and
may not prevent the Company’s competitors from dupheating the Company's products or gaining access to its proprietary information
and technology These means also may not permit the Company to gain or maintain a compettive advantage

Any of the Company s patents may be challenged, invalidated, circumvented or rendered unenforceable The Company cannot
guarantce that it will be successful should one or more ot its patents be chailenged tor any reason 1t the Company’s patent claims are
rendered invalid or unenforceable, or narrowed 1n scope, the patent coverage afforded to the Company s products could be impaired,
which could significantly impede the Company s ability to market its products, negatively affect its competitive position and
materially adversely affect 1ts business and results ot operations

The Company s pending or future patent applications may not result in an issued patent Additionally newly issued patents may not
provide meaningful protection against competitors or against competitive technologies The United States federal courts may
invahdate the Company's patents or find them unenforceable Competitors may also be able to design around the Company’s patents
Other parties may develop and obtain patent protection for more eftective technologies, designs or methods [t these developments
were to occur, 1t could have an adverse eflect on the Company’s sales [t the Company’s intellectual property rights are not adequately
protected. the Company may not be able to commercialize its technologies, products or services and the Company s competitors could
commercialize the Company’s technologies, which could result 1n a decrease in the Company’s sales and market share and could
matertally adversely affect the Company s business, financial condition and results of operations
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The Company’s products could infringe the intellectual property rights of others, wiich may lead fo lifigation that could uself be
costly, could result in the payment of substantial damages or rayalties, and could prevent the Company from using technology that
is essentinl fo its products The Company cannot guarantee that 1ts products, manufacturing processes or other methods do not
infringe the patents or other wntellectual property rights of thurd parties Infringement and other intellectual property claims and
proceedings brought against the Company, whether successful or not, could result 1n substanttal costs and harm the Company’s
reputation Such claims and proceedings can also distract and divert management and key personnel from other tasks important to the
success of its business In addition, ntellectual property htigation or claims could force the Company to do one or more of the
following
¢ cease selling or using of any products that incorporate the asserted mtellectual property, which would adversely affect the
Company’s revenue,
pay substantial damages for past use of the asserted intellectual property,
obtain a license from the holder of the asserted intellectual property, which license may not be avatlable on reasonable terms,
if at all, and
e redesign or rename, in the case of trademark claims, products to avord infringing the ntellectual property rnights of third
parties, which may not be possible and could be costly and ume-consuming 1f 1t 1s possible to do

In the event of an adverse determunation i an intellectual property suit or proceeding, or the Company’s fatlure to hicense essential
technology, the Company s sales could be harmed and 1its costs could increase, which could matenally adversely affect the Company’s
business, tinancial condition and results of operations

The Company may be exposed to certain regulatory and financial risks related to chimate change Climate change s receiving ever
increasing attention worldwide Many scientists, legislators and others attribute global warming to increased levels of greenhouse
gases, including carbon dioxide, which has led to significant legislative and regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas emissions
There are a number of pending legislative and regulatory proposals to address greenhouse gas emissions For example, in June 2009,
the U S House of Representatives passed the American Clean Energy and Security Act that would phase-in significant reductions in
greenhouse gas emussions 1f enacted into law The U § Senate 15 considering & different bull, and 1t 1s uncertain whether, when and 1n
what form a federal mandatory carbon dioxide emissions reduction program may be adopted Simularly, certain countries 1n which the
Company operates have adopted the Kyoto Protocol, and this and other internatienal 1itiatives under consideration could affect our
international operattons These actions could increase costs associated with the Company s operations, mcluding costs for raw
materials and transportation Because 1t 15 uncertain what laws will be enacted, the Company cannot predict the potential impact ot
such laws on 1ts future consolidated financral condition. results of operations or cash flows

ITEM1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not Applicable
ITEM2 PROPERTIES

Federal-Mogul's world headquarters 1s located in Southfield, Michigan, which s a leased facility The Company had 175
manufacturing facilities, technical centers, distribution centers, and sales and administration office facilities worldwide at December
31, 2009 Approximately 44% of the facilities are leased, the majority of which are distribution centers, and sales and administration
offices The Company owns the remainder of the facilities

North Rest of

Type of Facihty America Europe World Total
Manutactuning faciiities 39 43 22 104
Technical centers 9 7 2 18
Distribution centers 9 8 4 2}
Sales and adminustration
offices 9 8 15 32

66 66 43 175
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The facilities range in size from approxmmately 100 square feet to 1 1 million square feet Management believes that substantatly all
of the Company’s facilities are in good condition and that 1t has sufficient capacity to meet 1ts current and expected manutacturing and
distribution needs

ITEM3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has been involved in various hiigauon matters regarding asbestos liabihities, environmental matters and other matiers as
described below

Resolution of Asbestos Liabilities

As described 1n greater detatl in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financral Statements, inciuded 1n ltem 8 of this report, all asbestos-related
personal injury claims against the Debtors will be addressed by the U § Asbestos Trust or the U K Asbestos Trust in accordance with
the terms of the Debtors confirmed Plan and the Company Voluntary Arrangements ( "“CVAS' }, and such claims will be treated and

paid 1n accordance with the terms of the Plan, the CVAs, and their related documents All asbestos property damage claims against the
Debtors have been compromused and resolved through the Plan and the CVAs Accordingly, the Debtors have not recorded an
asbestos liability as of December 31, 2009 or 2008

Environmental Matters

The Company 15 a defendant in lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admimstrative erders issued, in various jurisdictions pursuant to the
Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (* CERCLA ) or other similar national,
provincial or state environmental laws These laws require responsible parties to pay for remediating contamnation resulting trom
hazardous substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of their property, or by others
to whom they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition The Company has been notified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency, other natienal environmental agencies, and various provincial and state agencies that it may be a
potentially responsible party (“PRP”) under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and
other nattonal and state or provincial environmental laws PRP destgnation typically requires the funding ot site investigations and
subsequent remedial activities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costhest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to
which numerous companies sent wastes Despite the joint and several hability which might be imposed on the Company under
CERCLA and some of the other {aws pertaining to these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally
been small Theretore, the Company believes 1ts exposure for habibty at these sites 1s limited

The Company has also identified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or
addressing environmental contamination, 1n some cases as a result of contractual commitments The Company 1s actively seeking to
resolve these actual and potential statutory regulatory, and contractual obhgations Although difficult to quantify based on the
complexity of the issucs, the Company has accrued amounts corresponding o 115 best estimate of the costs associated with such
regulatory and contractual obligations on the basis of available information trom site investigations and best prolessional judgment ot
consultants

Total environmental liabilities were $22 million and $26 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively Management belieses
that such accruals will be adequate to cover the Company’s estimated hability for 1ts exposure 1n respect to such matters On the
Eftcctive Date, $26 milhion in environmental liabilities subject to compromise were settled 1in accordance with the Plan In the event
that such habilities were to sigmificantly exceed the amounts recorded by the Company, the Company’s results of operations and
financial condition could be materially aftected At December 31, 2009, management estimates that reasonably possible matenal
additional losses above and beyond management’s best esumate of required remediation costs, as recorded, approximate $45 million
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Other Matters

The Company 1s involved 1n other legal acttons and claims, directly and through its subsidiaries that arise in the normal course of
business Management does not believe that the outcomes of these other actions or claims are hkely to have a material adverse effect
on the Company s financial postition, operating results, or cash flows

ITEM 4 SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TOA VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submutted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

José Maria Alapont
Age 59

Willlam S Bowers
Age 57

David A Bozynski
Age 55

Jose Mana Alapont has been president, chief executive officer, and a director of the Company since
March 2005 Mr Alapont served as chairman of the board of directors of the Cempany from June
2005 10 December 2007 Mr Alapont has more than 35 years of global leadership experience in both
vehicle manufacturers and suppliers, with businss and operations responsibilities in the Americas,
Europe Middle East & Africa and Asia Pacific regions From 2003 to 2005 Mr Alapont was the
chief executive officer and a member of the board of directors of IVECO, the commercial vehicle
company of the Fiat Group From 1997 to 2003, Mr Alapont served wn vanous key executive
positions at Delphi Corporation. a global automotive suppher He began at Delphi as executive
director of international operations for Delphi energy and engine management systems 1n 1998, he
became responsible for Delphi energy and chassis systems international operations In 1999, Mr
Alapont was named a vice president of Delphi Corporation and president of Delphi Europe, Middle
East and Africa, and became a member of the Delphi strategy board, the company’s top
policy-making group In 2003, Mr Alapont was promoted 1o president of Delphi’s international
operations, and vice president of sales and marketing From 1990 to 1997, Mr Alapont served 1n
several executive roles and was a member of the strategy board at Valeo, a global automotive
supplier He started at Valeo as managing director of engine cooling systems, Spain In 1991, Mr
Alapont was named executive director of Valeo s worldwide heavy-duty engine cocling operations In
1992, he was promoted to group vice president of Valeo's worldwide clutch and transmission
compenents division e was named group vice president of the company s worldwide highting
systems division in 1996 Mr Alapont began and develeped his automotive career from 1974 to 1989
at Ford Motor Company and, over the course of 15 years, worked 1in different management and
executive positions at Ford of Europe He started in 1974 as an engineer at Ford of Spain, becoming
engine laboratory supervisor and later became engine plant production manager In 1984, he was
appointed manager of powertram guality at Ford of Europe He later became manager of powertrain
supphier quality assurance 1n 1987 at Ford of Europe Mr Alapont earned degrees 1n industrial
engineering from the Technical School of Valencia in Spamn and in philology from the University of
Valencia in Spamn

Mr Bowers has served as senior vice prestdent, sales and marketing, and a member of the strategy
board of the Company since 2006 Prior to joining the Company, Mr Bowers spent nearly 30 years at
General Motors Corporation and Delpht Corporatton, most recently as executive director of sales,
marhketing and planning for the energy and chassis division from 2002-2006 Previously, he was based
in Tokyo, Japan, as the Asia-Pacific regional director for Delph: s energy and chassis systems {rom
1998-2002 Mr Bowers worked as commercial and technical director for Delphi Automotive
Systems, Singapore, from 1995-1998, and as chief engineer from 1992-1995 Previously he was
engineering group manager, divisional program manager, powertrain systems development engineer,
and control systems engineer at General Motors Corporation

Mr Bozynsk has served as vice president and treasurer ot the Company since 1996 Prior to joining
the Company 1n 1996, Mr Bozynsk: had a 21-year career with Unisys, where huis last appointment
was vice president and assistant treasurer Previously. he served as vice president, line of business
finance, responsible for the finance function of Unisys four commercial hines of business Mr
Bozynski also served as vice president, corporate business analysis
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Jean Brunol
Age 57

James (Jay) Burkhart

Age 52

Gerard Chochoy
Age 56

René L. F Dallecur
Age 56

Steven K Gaut
Age 48

Mr Brunol has served as semior vice president, business and operations strategy, and a
member of the strategy board of the Company since 2005 Prior to Joming the Company, trom
January 2004 to April 2005, Mr Brunol was semor vice president, product and busmess
strategy, international operations at IVECO, the commercial vehicle company of the Fiat
Group Previously, Mr Brunol was business partner and executive advisor for private equity
funds and independent companies He also served as president of tube operations at Thomson
from 2000-2002, and was chief executive officer of SAFT ALCATEL Battery & Power
Systems Company from 1997 to 2000 Mr Brunol was product director, transmissions, and
executive vice president, electronics, at Valeo between 1992 and 1997 He began his career at
Thomson, where he served in several leadership positions from 1981 to 1992 Mr Brunol also
served at the French Natronal Council for Scientific Research (CNRS) from 1976 to 1981

Mr Burkhart has served as semior vice president, Global Aftermarket, and a member of the
strategy board of the Company since 2007 Previously, he served as vice president of global
marketing. Aftermarket Products and Services since 2004 Mr Burkhart joined the Company
in 1998 with the acquisition of Cooper Automotive and was most recently vice president of
global marketing for Aftermarket Products & Services Pror to joining Cooper, he was vice
president of marketing worldwide, for Tenneco Automotive

Mr Chochoy has served as sentor vice president, Powertrain Sealing and Bearings and a
member of the strategy board of the Company since 2007 He joined the Company as senor
vice president, global development in March 2007 Previously trom 2003 to 2007, Mr
Chochoy was executive vice president of the automotive seating group at Faurecia, based n
Paris From November 2000 to July 2003, he was executtve vice president of operations at
NEC Computer International, and general manager of the Packard Bell brand Mr Chochoy
served 12 years at Valeo, most recently group vice president of wiper systems from February
1995 to October 2000

Mr Dalleur has served as senior vice president, Customer Satisfaction, Global Engineering
and Manufacturing ot the Company since April 2009 Previously, he was senior vice
president, Vehicle Safety and Protection, from April 2007 He has been a member of the
Strategy Board since May 2005 He served as seruor vice president, Vehucle Satety and
Performance, from May 2005 to April 2007 He served as senior vice president, global
friction products, since 2001, and was named vice president of sealing systems. igmuen and
wipers, Europe in 2000 Prior to joining the Company 1n 1998 with the acquisitton of Cooper
Industnies, Mr Dalleur held various positions in engineening, purchasing, and plant and
general management 1n the automotive and aerospace 1ndustries

Mr Gaut has served as vice president, corporate communications and government relatuons,
and a member of the strategy board of the Company since April 2008 Prior to joiming the
Coempany 1n April 2008, he was director of communications and marketing services for the
Europe Middle East and Africa region and global powertram division for Delphi Corporation,
based in Paris, France From 2003 to 2008, Mr Gaut served in roles of increasing
responsibility in communications, sales, marketing and planmng at Delphi Corporation while
based in Europe Prior to relocating to Europe he served as corporate director of media
relattons for Delph Corporation Prior to joing Delpht Corporation in 1993, Mr Gaut
served in various communications and human resources roles at General Motors Corporation
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Alston German
Age 45

Pascal Goachet
Age 59

Alan Haughie
Age 46

Ramazi Hermiz
Age 44

Rainer Jueckstock
Age 50

Mr German has served as Vice President and Chief Information Officer, and a member of the
strategy board of the Company since December 2008 Previously, he was IS director, global
SAP Mr German jomed the Company in 1994 and has served as senior information systems
consultant, valve tramn and transmission 1S director. business unit IS director and corporate IS
director, Asia Pacific Region Prior to joining the Company, Mr German progressed through
various positions, including information technology manager, powertrain division, with a
United Kingdom-based automotive supplier

Mr Goachet has served as senior vice president, human resources and organization, and a
member of the strategy board ot the Company since July 2006 Previously, he was named
director of human resources, EMEA and Asia-Pacific m May 2005 Prior to joumng the
Company, Mr Goachet was a staff’ member of the French Minstry of Labor in 2005 He
served as vice president of corporate human resources, NEC Computers International, a
subsidiary of NEC Japan from 2000 to 2005, and divisional director, human rescurces, Group
Lafarge, Special Materials Division from July 1996 to December 2000 In addition, Mr
Goachet has held vanous human resources leadership positions at Air France Group 1n 1996,
at Valeo Group from 1990 to 1995, and at the Matra Group from 1980 to 1990 Previously, he
was a cabinet member of the French Mmistry of Jusuce In December 2007, the Government
of France appointed Mr Goachet as a Foreign Trade Advisor of the Republic of France
Additionally he was inducted into the French Legton of Honor 1n 2004

Mr Haughie has served as vice president. controller and chief accounting ofticer of the
Company since 2005 Previously, he served as dircctor, corporate finance since 2000, and
prior to that. worked as controller in the Company’s aftermarket business located n
Manchester, United Kingdom, frem 1999 to 2000 Prior (o jomuing the Company in 1994,
Haughie worked for Ernst & Young in the U K 11 various audit roles

Mr Hermiz has served as senior vice president, Vehicle Safety and Protection since 2009, and
a member ot the strategy board of the Company since 2005 Previously, he was semor vice
president aftermarket products and services from 2007 to 2009 and scrior vice president ot
sealing systems from 2005 to 2007 Mr Hermuz has served as director of purchasing, director
pull systems and inventory, vice president, global supply-chain management, and wvice
president of the Company's European Aftermarket operation He joined the Company 1n 1998
with the acquistion of Fel-Pro, Inc Pnor to joning Fel-Pro m 1990, Mr Henmiz was
manager, purchasing and quality assurance for Tniangle Home Products, a manufacturer of
residential lighting and other products He began his career as a design and product engineer
for Keldu Technologies, a consulting firm serving the heavy-duty construction industry

Mr Jueckstock has served as senior vice president, Powertraun Energy, and a member of the
strategy board of the Company since Apnl 2005 Previously, he was senior vice president

global powertrain Mr Jueckstock joined the Company n 1990, and has served as sentor vice
prestdent, powertratn operations, semor vice president, pistons, rings and liners, vice
president, nings and liners, operations director, piston rings, Europe, and managing director of
the Friedberg, Germany, operation He also was sales director for rings and liners, Europe,
finance controller in Burscheid, Germany, and finance manager in Dresden, Germany
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Jetff Kaminski
Age 48

Robert L Katz
Age 47

Markus Wermers
Age 45

Mr Kaminski has served as semior vice president and chief financial officer since 2008, and a
member of the strategy board of the Company since 2005 Previously he was sentor vice
president, global purchasing Prior to that, he was vice president of global supply chain
management Mr Kaminsk: also was vice president, finance, global powertrain systems, and
served in several finance and operations positions, including finance director, sealing systems,
managing director of the Company's Aftermarket subsidiary based in Australia, and
international controller for the Aftermarket group based in Southfield, Michigan During
2001, he served briefly as vice presudent, finance, GDX Automotive Prior to joming the
Company 1 1989, Mr Kamnski was manager of financial reporting at R P Scherer
Corporation He began his career 1n public accounting at Defoitte and Touche LLP

Mr Kaiz has served as semior vice president and general counsel since May 2007 He was
appointed Secretary of the Company in December 2007 Mr Katz joined the Company as vice
president and general counse!l m January 2007 and became a member of the strategy board of
the Company Prior to jomnng the Company, Mr Katz was general counsel-EMEA and
EMEA regional compliance officer for Delphi Corporation s Europe, Middle East and Africa
(EMEA) operations headquartered 1n Paris, France since January 1999 From 1996 to 1998,
Mr Katz served as assistant general counsel for General Motors (Europe) AG, at 1ts European
headquarters 1n Zurich, Switzerland Mr Katz was previously an associate at Milbank.
Tweed, Hadley & McCloy, an international law firm, from 1986 to 1995, where he worked in
the M&A and General Corporate Group, in both New York, New York and London, England

Mr Wermers has served as senior vice prestdent, global purchasing and a member of the
strategy board of the Company since April 2008 From November 2004 to March 2008, Mr
Wermers was vice president, sales and marketing, Europe, Middle East and Africa region,
after having served as vice president, sales and marketing, for the Company’s pewertrain
business unit Mr Wermers jomed Federal-Mogul 1n 1991, where he held vanious positions ot
increasing responsibility, including sales director, Sealing Systems, sales director, pistons,
rings and liners, sales director, Ford, and applications engincer and key account manager in
Germany
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PART 1

ITEMS MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s stock 1s listed on the NASDAQ Global Stock Market
There were approximately 80 stockholders of record of Common Stock as of February 19, 2010 including multiple beneficial holders

at depositories, banks and brokers listed as a single holder of record in the street name of each respective depository, bank or broker
High and low sales prices for the Company s common stock for each quarter in 2008 and 2009 as follows

2009 2008
Quarter High Low High Low
First 5 776 % 215 8§ 2700 § 18 00
Second b 1262 § 625 § 2120 % 14 91
Third $ 1459 § 823 % 1729 § 1194
Fourth $ 1780 § 1068 § 1280 § 312

For additional information with respect to the Company’s common stock, refer to Note 19 to Consohdated Financial Statements,
included in Item 8 of this report

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2008 or 2009 The Company has certain restrictions under 1ts Exit Facilities from paying
dividends 1n the future

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return during the period from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009
of the Company s Common Stock to the S&P 500 Stock Index The graph assumes that $100 was invested on January 1, 2009 m each
of the Company’s Common Stock, the stocks comprising the S&P 500 Index and the stocks comprising the peer group The peer
group 1s comprised on the following compames ArvinMeritor, BorgWarner, Dana, Magna, Tenneco and TRW This performance
graph shall not be deemed to be ncorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this Form 10-K nto
any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specitically incorporates this
information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed seliciting material or filed under such Acts

2
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents information trom the Consohidated MNinancial Statements as of or for the ftive years ended December 31,
2009 This information should be read in comunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and "Financial Statements and Supplemental Data "

In accordance with U S GAAP, the Company was required to adopt fresh-start reporting effecive upon emergence from bankruptcy
on the Effective Date The Company evaluated the activity between the Effective Date and December 31, 2007 and, based upon the
immateriality of such activity, concluded that the use of an accounting convenience date of December 31, 2007 was appropriate As
such, fresh-start reporting has been applied as of that date As a result ot fresh-start reporting, financial statements of the Successor
Company are not comparable to the financial statements of the Predecessor Company For further information on {resh-start reperting,
see Note 3 to the Conschdated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this report

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Milhons of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Data
Net sales Y 5,330 $ 6,866 § 6914 $ 6,326 b 6.286
Costs and expenses (3 344) (6,673) (6,718) (6,242) (6.223)
Restructuring expense net (32) (132) (48) (66} 30)
Adjustment of assets to fair value _ o Um 451) (61) (46) (122)
Amortization expense (49) (76) (19) {18) (18)
Chapter 11 and U K Administration related

rearganization cxpenses, net {3) (17) (81) (95) (138)
Settlement of U K pension plans — — — (500} —
Gain on settlement of Lhabilittes subject to

Lompromise — — 761 — —_
Fresh-start reporting adjustments —_ — 956 — —
Other mecome, net 43 37 36 28 46
Income tax benefit (¢xpense), net 39 (19) (332) 64 (132)
Net (loss) income (33) (465} 1,408 (549) (331
Less net (income) loss attributable to

noncontrolling interests (12) (3) 4 () (3)
Net (loss) income attributable to

Federal-Mogul $ @5 S (468) $ 1,412 S (550) § (334)
Common Share Summary
Net {loss) income per share — basic $ (0 46) $ (469 $ 1574 $ {615) § (3 75)
Net (loss) income per share — diluted b {0 46) b (469 $ 15 46 3 (615 § (3 75)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basie

(in millions) 98 9 997 897 894 891
Weighted average shares cutstanding —

diluted (1n mullions) 993 1000 913 913 913
Dividends declared per common share $ — b — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Other Financial Information
Net cash provided from (used by) operating

activities $ 328 3 627 § 35 $ 422) $ 318
Expenditures for property, plant, equipment 176 320 310 237 190
Depreciation and amortization expense 327 349 354 329 344

Successor Predecessor
As of December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
{Millions of Dollars)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
l'otal assets $ 7,127  § 7,236 § 7866 §% 7179 h 7,733
Short-term debt 97 102 118 482 607
[Long-term debt 2,760 2,768 2518 27 8
Liabilities subject to compromise — — — 5.813 5,989
Federal-Mogul sharcholders' equity (deficit) 1,023 931 2,124 (1.,748) (2,433)
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ITEM7 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Overview

I'ederal-Mogul Corporation 1s a leading global supplier of a broad range of components, accessories and systems to the automotive,
small engine heavy-duty, marine, railroad, agricultural, off-road, acrospace and energy, indusirial and transport markets, including
customers in both the ongmal cquipment manufacturers ( OEM ) market and the replacement market ( aftermarket } The
Company s customers include the world s largest automotive OEMs and major distributors and retalers in the independent
aftermarket During 2009, the Company derived 56% of its sales from the OE market and 44% from the afiermarket Geographically,
the Company derived 40% of 1ts 2009 sales 1n the United States and 60% imternationally 1he Company has operations in established
markets mcluding Canada, France. Germany, Italy, Japan Spain the United Kingdom and the United States. and emerging markets
including Argentina, Brazil, China, Czech Republic, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico, Peland, Russia, South Africa, Thailand, Turkey
and Venezuela The attendant risks of the Company’s international operations are primanly related to currency tluctuations, changes
in local cconomic and political condiions, and changes in laws and regulations

Fhe predecessor to Federal-Mogul Corporation. (the “Predecessor Company’ or the °Predecessor’) and all of 1its then-existing
wholly-owned United States subsidianes (U S Subsidiaries”) filed voluntary petitions on October 1 2001 for reorgamization under
Chapter 11 of Tutle 11 of the United States Code (the "Bankruptcy Code™ } with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of
Delaware (the ‘Bankruptcy Court’) On October 1, 2001, certain of the Predecessor Company s United Kingdom subsidiaries
(together with the U S Subsidianies, the ‘Debtors’) filed voluntary petitions for reorgamzation under the Bankruptcy Code with the
Bankruptcy Court On November 8, 2007, the Bankruptcy Court entered an Order (the “Confirmation Order *) confirming the Fourth
Amended Joint Plan of Reorgamization for Debtors and Debtors-in-Possession (as Modtfied) (the Plan™) and entered Findings of Fact
and Conclusions of Law regarding the Plan (the Findings ot Fact and Conclusions of Law™) On November 14, 2007, the United
States District Court for the District of Delaware entered an order affirming the Confirmation Order and adopting the Findings of Fact
and Conclusions ot Law On December 27, 2007, the Plan became eftective n accordance with its terms (the “Effective Date™) On
the Eflective Date, the Predecessor Company merged with and into New Federal-Mogul Corporation whereupon (1) the separate
corporate existence of the Predecessor Company ceased, {11) New Federal-Mogul Corperation became the surviving corporation and
continues te be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware and (111) New Federal-Mogul Corporation was renamed Federal-Mogul
Corporation " (also referred to as ‘Federal-Mogul, the ‘Company " the ‘Successor Company or the ‘ Successor™)

The Company operates m an extremely competitive industry, driven by global vehicle production velumes and part replacement
trends Business 1s typically awarded to the supplier oftering the most tavorable combination of cost, quahity, technology and service
Customers continue to require periodic cost reductions that require the Company to continually assess, redefine, and improve its
operations, products, and manutacturing capabilities to maintain and improve profitability Management continues to develop and
execute 1nitiatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve 1its strategy for sustainable global profitable growth, including
the following ongoing mitiatives

e (lobal Orgamization — Recognizing the ever-increasing globalization of the automotive industry, the Company organized its
primary business units on a global basis — Powertrain Energy, Powertrain Sealing and Bearings, Vehicle Safety and Protection,
and Global Aftermarket This allows each business to take advantage of best practices in product development. technology and
innovation, manufacturing capability and capacity Furthermore, the Company continues to develop and implement standardized
processes and consohdated systems to further the direction and performance ot the business

¢  Lean Manufactunng and Productivity — Management implemented a series of inttiatives targeted at leveraging the Company s
global scale and reducing total enterprise costs These imbiatives included implementation ot standard manufactuning methods
across business segments to achieve operational cificiencies and decrease production costs, implementation of a global
purchasing function tocused on the reduction of giobal matenal costs, headcount reduction programs to reduce selling, general
and admunistrative costs, and optimized capital expenditure processes to ensure capital tunds are directed at the most strategically
appropriate investments with the highest rates of 1eturn
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+  Best-Cost Producugn — The Company has established and expanded manufacturing operations in best-cost countries in an eftort
1o meet the cost pressures inherent in the industry and increase profitability The Company has manufacturing operations or jomnt
venture alliances 1n Brazil, Ching, Czech Republic, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico, Poland, Russia, Thadland and Turkey

¢ Global Distribution Optimization — The Company continued uts efforts to optimize its aftermarket distribution network 1 order to
improve both the efficiency of operattions and customer order fulfillment and delivery performance including mitiatives to
streamhine 1ts American and European aftermarket operations, and expand 1ts aftermarket operatiens in Asia

* Global Delivery Performance — In addition to the distribution network consolidation efforts, the Company upgraded many of its
remaining distribution centers with state-of-the-art warchouse management systems Furthermore, the Company has renewed 1t3
focus on nternal logisuics and execution of inventory ‘pull” systems throughout its manufacturing operations and suppliers to
ensure prompt and accurate replenishment of tts distrnibution network

s Expand Asia Pacific Presence — The Company has mvested in manufacturing operations, both wholly-owned and joint venture
relaucnships, in the Asia Pacific region and maintains three technical centers in Shangha, China. Bangalore, India. and
Yokohama, Japan to support the Company s efforts in this region The Company mtends to use these operations and techmcal
centers to strengthen 1ts current, as well as to develop new, customer relationships in this important region

e Customer Valued Technology - The Company has sigmificant engineering and technical resources throughout its businesses
tocused on creating value for customers with innovative solutions for both product applications and manutacturing processes

Critical Accounting Policies

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report. have been prepared in conformity with U 8
GAAP and, accordingly, the Company s accounting policies have been disclosed in Note | to the Consohidated Financial Statements
The Company considers accounting estimates to be cnitical accounting policies when

e the estimates involve matters that are highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate 1s made, and

e difterent esumates or changes to estimates could have a materal impact on the reported tinancial position, changes in financial
position, or results of operations

When more than one accounting principle, or the method of its application s generally accepted. management selects the principle or
method that 1t considers to be the most appropriate given the specific circumstances Apphication of these accounting principles
requires the Company s management 10 make estimates about the future resolution of existing uncertainties Estimates are typrcally
based upon historical experience current trends, contractual documentatien, and other information, as appropriate Due to the inherent
uncertainty imvolving estimates, actual results reported in the future may differ from those estimates In preparing these financial
statements, management has made 1ts best esumates and judgments of the amounts and disclosures included 1n the financial
statements, giving due regard to materiality [he following summarizes the Company’s critical accounting policies
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Accounting and Reporting During Reorganization

The Debtors operated as debtors-in-possession from October 1, 2001 to the Effective Date and adopted the provisions of FASB ASC
Topic 852, Reorgamizations ( FASB ASC 852 ) (tormally AICPA Stalement of Position 90-7, Financial Reperting by Entities 1n
Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code), upon commencement of the bankruptcy proceedings The Predecessor Company’s

Consolrdated Financial Statements for the penods from October [, 2001 through December 31, 2007 have been prepared in
accordance with the provisions ot FASB ASC 852 Accordingly, all pre-petition liabilities subject to compromise were segregated 1n
the consolidated balance sheet and classified as liabilities subject to compromise at the estimated amount of allowable claims
Liabihues not subject to compromise were separately classified as current and non-current Interest was not accrued on debt subject to
compromise subsequent to the Petition Date Reorgamization ftems include the expenses, realized gans and losses, and provisions for
losses resulung from the reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code, and such items are reported separately as reorganization items in
the Company s consolidated statements of operations

In accordance with U S GAAP, the Company was required te adopt tresh-start reporting effective upon emergence from bankruptcy
on December 27, 2007 The Company evaluated the activity between December 27, 2007 and December 31, 2007 and. based upon the
immateriahty of such activity, concluded that the use of an accounting conventence date of December 31, 2007 was appropriate As
such, fresh-start reporting has been applied as of that date As a result of fresh-start reporting, financial statements of the Successor
Company are not comparable to the financial statements of the Predecessor Company For further mformation on fresh-start reporting,
sce Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report

The Company adopted fresh-start reporting under the provisions of FASB ASC 852 as of December 31, 2007 Accordingly, the
Company’s reorganization value was allocated to existing assets using the measurement gmdance provided in Staternent of Financial
Accounting Standards 141, Business Combinations, which was subsequently amended by FASB ASC Topic 805 In addition,
habilities were recorded at the present value of amounts estimated to be paxd Finally, the Predecessor Company s accumulated deficit
was eliminated, and the Company s new debt and equity were recorded 1n accordance with the Plan

Esumates used in determining fair value measurements include, but are not limited to, expected future cash flow assumptions, market
rate assumptions tor contractual obhgations, actuarial assumptions tor benefit plans, settlement plans tor litigation and contingencies,
and appropriate discount rates The Company's estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but that
are herently uncertain In addition, estimated habilities are subject to change as the Company completes the implementation of the
Plan

[he adoption of fresh-start reporting has had a matenal effect on the financial statements As a result, consolidated financial
statements published for perieds following December 31, 2007 are not comparable with those published betore such date See Notes 2
and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included m Item 8 of this report, for further discussion of the provisions of FASB
ASC 852

Pension Plans and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors several detined benefit pension plans ( ‘Pension Benefits’) and health care and life insurance benelfits { Other
Benefits °} for certain employees and retirees around the world Using appropniate actuarial methods and assumptions, the Company s
defined benefit pension plans, non-pension postemployment benefits, and disabibity, carly reurement and other postemployment
benetits are accounted tor 1n accerdance with FASB ASC Topic 713, Compensation — Retiement Benefits

Actual results that differ from assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future periods and accordingly, generally affect
recognzed expense and the recorded obligation in future periods Therefore, assumptions used to calculate benefit obligations as of
the end of a liscal year directly impact the expense to be recognized in future periods The primary assumptions aftecting the
Company’s accounting for employee benefits as of December 31, 2009 are as follows

s Long-term 1ate of rettun on plan assets ‘The required use of the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets may result in
recognized returns that are greater or less than the actual returns on those plan assets in any given year Over tme however, the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 15 designed to approximate actual carned long-term returns The Company uses
long-term historical actual return nformaton, the mix of investments that comprise plan assets, and future estimates of long-term
mvestment returns by reference to external sources to develop an assumption of the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets The expected long-term rate of return used to calculate net periodic pension cost 1s 8 50% tor U S plans and 5 79% tor
non-U S plans
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¢ Duscount rate The discount rate 1s used to calculate future pension and postemployment obligauons Discount rate assumptions
used to account for pension and non-pension postemployment benefit plans reflect the rates available on high-quahty,
fixed-income debt instruments on December 31 of each year In determinming its pension and other benefit obligations, the
Company used weighted average discount rates of 5 75% for U § plans and 5 13% for non-U S plans

e Health care cost trend For postreurement health care plan accounting the Company reviews external data and Company specific
historical trends for health care costs to determine the health care cost trend rate The assumed health care cost trend rate used to
measure next year s postemployment health care benefits 15 7 1% declimng to an ultimate trend rate of 5 0% in 2014 The
assumed drug cost trend rate used to measure next year s postemployment health care benefits 15 8 5% declining to an ultimate
trend rate of 5 0% 1n 2014

The following table tllustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for projected benefit obligations (“PBO™), associated
expense and other comprehensive loss ( OCL™) The changes in these assumplions have no impact on the Company s 2009 funding
requirements

Pension Benefits

Umited States Plans Non-US Plans Other Benefits
Change Change Change Change
m 2010 Change n m 2010 Change m Change Change
Penston mn Accumulated Pension m Accumulated m 2010 mn
Eipense PRO OCL Fxpense PBO OCl Expense PBO
(¥ulons of Dollars)
25 bp decrease in discount rate $ 2 % % 0§ 26) § — 8 9 % %) $ —_ by 11
25 bp increase 1n discount rate (2} (26) 26 — &3] 9 _— [{E0)]
25 bp decrease in return on ’
assets rate 2 — — — — — — —
25 bp increase 1n return on
assets rate 2y — — — — _ — —

The assumed health care trend rate has a significant impact on the amounts reported for non-pension plans The following table
lustrates the sensitivity to a change 1n the assumed health care trend rate

Total Service and

Interesf Cost APBO
(Milhons of Dollars)
100 bp increase (n health care trend rate s 2 % 24
100 bp decrease 1n health care trend rate (2) 22)

Emuonmental Matters

The Company 1s a defendant in lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admimstrative orders 1ssued, 1n vanous jurisdictions pursuant to the
Fedecral Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act ot 1980 {(“CERCLA ) or other simular national.
provincial or state environmental laws These laws require responsible parties to pay for remediating contamination resulting trom
hazardous substances that were discharged inte the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of therr property, or by others
to whom they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition The Company has been noufied by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and various provincial and state agencies that 1t may be a
potentially responsible party {( PRP™} under such laws tor the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and
other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and
subsequent remedial activities

The Company has also idenufied certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleamng up or
addressing environmental contamination, in some c¢ases as a result of contractual commitments The Company 15 actvely seeking to
resolve these actual and potential statutory regulatory and contractual oblhigations Although difficult to quantity based on the
complexity of the 1ssues, the Company has accrued amounts cotresponding to 1ts best estimate of the costs associated with such
regulatory and coniractual obligations on the basis of available information from site investigations and best professional yjudgment of
consultants
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On the Eftective Date, $26 mullion 1n environmental habiliies subject to compromise were settled in accordance with the Plan
Recorded environmental liabihties were $22 mitlion and $26 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008 respectively These accruals are
based upon management s best estimates, which requires management to make assumptions regarding the costs for remediation
activities, the extent to which costs may be borne by other hable parties, the financial viability of such parties the time periods over
which remediation acuvities will be completed, and other tactors Although management believes its accruals will be adequate to
cover the Company s estimated lability for its exposure 1n respect to such environmental matters, any changes in the underlying
assumptions could materially impact the Company’s future results of operations and financial condition At December 31, 2009,
management estimates that reasonably passible material additional losses above and beyond management’s best esuumate of required
remcdiation costs as recorded approximates $45 million

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records conditional asset 1etirement obligations {¢ CARO™) 1n accordance with F'ASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement
and Environmenial Obligations The Company’s primary CARO activities relate to the removal of hazardous building maternals at its
facilities The Company records a CARO when the amount can be reasonably estimated typically vpon the expectation that an
operating site may be closed or sold The Company has 1dentified sites with contractual obhigations and several sites that are closed or
expected to be closed and sold In connection with these sites, the Company has acerued $30 milhon and $27 million as of December
31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for CAROQ, primanly related to anticipated costs of removing hazardous building materials, and has
considered impairment 1ssues that may result from capntalization of CARO

In determining whether the estimated fair value ot CARO can reasonably be estimated, the Company must determine (f the obligation
can be assessed In relation to the acquisition price of the related asset or 1f an acive market exists to transter the obligation If the
oblhigation cannct be assessed in connection with an acquisition price and 1if no market exists for the transfer of the obligation, the
Company must determme if it has sufficient information upon which to esimate the obligation using expected present value
techniques This determination requires the Company to estimatc the range of settlement dates and the potential methods of settlement,
and then to assign the probabilities to the various potential settlement dates and methods

In cases other than those included in the $30 muillion, where probability assessments could not reasonably be made, the Company
cannot record and has not recorded a hability for the affected CARO If new intormation were to become available whereby the
Coempany could make reasonable probability assessments tor these CARO, the amount accrued for CARO could change sigmificantly,
which could matenally impact the Company s statement of operations and/or financial position Settlements of CARO 1n the
near-future at amounts other than the Company’s best estumnates as of December 31, 2009 also could materially impact the Company s
future results of operations and finanecial condition

Long-Lived Assets

As a result of fresh-start reporting, long-lived assets such as property. plant and equipment have been stated at estimated replacement
cost as of December 31, 2007, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a fower value was appropriate Long-hved assets
such as definite-lived intangible assets have been stated at esumated fair value as of December 31, 2007 Depreciation and
amortization 1s computed principally by the straight-line mecthod tor financial reporting purposes and by accelerated methods for
imncome tax purposes Definite-hved asscts are periodically reviewed for impairment windicators If impairment indicators exist, the
Company performs the required analysis and records an impairment charge as required, in accordance with the subsequent
measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360. Property. Plant & Equipment

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment analysis as of October | or more frequently 1f impairment indicators exist, in
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topie 350, Imtangibles — Goodwill and Other This
mmpairment analysis compares the estimated fair value ot these assets to the related carrying value, and an impairment charge 15
recorded for any excess of carrying value over esumated tair value [he estimated fair value 1s based upon consideration of various
valuation methodologies. including gwdeline transaction multiples. multiples of current ecarnings, and projected tuture cash flows
discounted at rates commensurate with the risk mnvolved
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The Company s goodwill balance by reporting segment as of December 31, 2009 1s as follows (in millions)

Powertrain Energy s 277
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 96
Vehicle Safety and Protection 700

5 1.073

All of the Company’s reporting umts with a goodwill balance passed - Step 1” of the October 1, 2009 goodwill impairment analysis
All Step | ' results had fair values in excess of carrying values of at least 15%

The Company reviews the carrying value of its long-hived and indefimte-lived assets, whether held for use or disposal, including other
intangible assets, annually or more frequently when events and circumstances warrant such a review Estimating fair value for both
long-lived and indefinite-lived assets requires management to make assumptions regarding future sales volumes and pricing. capital
expenditures, useful hves and salvage values of related property. plant and equipment, the Company’s ability to develop and
implement productivity improvements, discount rates, effective tax rates, market multiples, and other items Any differences in actual
results irom management s estimates could result in fair values difterent from estumated fair values, which could materially impact the
Company s future results of operatiens and financial condition Management believes that the estimates of tuture cash flows and fair
value assumptions are reasonable, however, changes n assumptions underlying these estimates could affect the evaluations
Significant judgments and estimates used by management when evaluating assets for impawrment include (1) an assessment as to
whether an adverse event or circumstance has triggered the necd ter an impairment review, and (1) discounted or undiscounted future
cash flows generated by the asset

The Company recorded total impairment charges of $17 million, $451 mullion and $61 milhon for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with FASB ASC Topie 718, Compensation — Stock
Compensation which requires companies to expense the estunated far value ot employee stock options and other torms of
stock-based compensation Estimating fair value for shared-based payments in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 requires
management to make assumptions regarding expected volaulity of the underlying shares. the risk-free rate over the life of the
share-based payment, and the date on which share-based payments will be settled Any differences n actual results from
management’s estimates could result in fair values different from esumated fair values, which could materially impact the Company’s
future results of operations and financ:at condition Additional financial information related to the Company s share-based payments
15 presented in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, fncome Taxes (“FASB ASC 740”) The
determination of the Companys tax provision s complex due to operations m many tax junsdictions outside the United States
Deferred tax assets and habihities are recogmzed for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and habilities and therr respective tax bases and operating loss and other tax loss and
credit carryforwards The realization of deterred tax assets 1s dependant upon the Company s ability to generate tuture taxable income
The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce us deferred tax assets to the amount that it believes 1s more likely than not to be
realized Deterred tax assets and habilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income 1n the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The Company records a valuation allowance that primarily
represents eperating and other loss carryforwards for which utilization 1s uncertain Management judgment 1s requited in determining
the Company s provision for tncome taxes, deferred tax assets and habiliies and the valuation allowance recorded against the
Company s net deferred tax assets

The Company did not record taxes on 1ts undistributed earnings of $617 million at December 31, 2009, since these earnings are
considered by the Company to be permanently reinvested If at some future date, these earnings cease to be permanently reinvested,
the Company may be subjeet to United States income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Determining the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on the potential distribution of these earmings 1s not pracucable as such hability, 1f any, 1s
dependent on circumstances existing when remuttance occurs
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At December 31, 2009, the Company had a deferred tax asset of $358 million net of a valuation allowance of $865 million, and
deferred tax habilities of $805 mullien At December 31, 2008, the Company had a deferred tax asset of $313 million, net of a
valuation allowance of $786 million, and deferred tax habiliues of $795 mullion

The Predecessor Company adopted the Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes provisions, now codified within FASB ASC 740,
as of January 1, 2007 This gwidance clanfies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in companies’ financial
statements As a result, the Company applies a more-likely-than-not recognitton threshold for all tax uncertainties It only allows the
recogmtion of those tax benefits that have a greater than 50% likelthood of being sustuned upon examunation by the taxing
authorities Management judgment 1s required in determuming when the Company s deferred tax assets and habilites have met the
more likely than not threshold As a result of this adoption, the Predecessor Cempany recogrized a $14 million decrease in the
Lability tor unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007 total shareholders’ deficit
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Company’s results of operations should be read in connection with liems 1 and 7A of this Form 10-K,
as well as “Forward-Looking Statements’ and Item | A “Risk Factors” These rlems provide additional relevant information
regarding the business of the Company, its strategy, and the varnious industry dynamics in the OEM market and the aftermarket which
have a direct and significant impact on the Company’s results of operations, as well as the risks associated with the Company’s
business

Consolidated Results

Net sales by reporting segment were

Successor Predecessor

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
(Milhons of Dollars)

Powertrain Energy $ 1413 8§ 209 % 2,063
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 819 1,154 1,156
Vehicle Safety and Protection 772 985 1,016
Global Attermarket 2,326 2,637 2,679
$ 53310 3% 6866 § 6,914

Net sales by group and region are hsted below ‘PTE”, PTSB”, VSP” and * GA” represent Powertrain Energy, Powertrain Sealing
and Bearings. Vehicle Safety and Protection and Global Aftermarket, respectively

PTE PTSB VSP GA Total
Successor — 2009
Umnited States and Canada 20% 33% 27% 64% 42%
Europe 63% 54% 55% 21% 42%
Rest of World 7% 13% 18% 15% 16%
Successor — 2008
United States and Canada 20% 30% 20% 64% 40%
Europe 65% 59% 55% 22% 46%
Rest of World 13% 11% 16% 14% 14%
Predecessor — 2007
United States and Canada 21% 35% 32% 65% 42%
Eurepe 66% 55% 54% 23% 46%
Rest of World 13% 10% 14% 12% 12%
Cost of products sold by reporting segment was
Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
- 2009 2008 2007
(Milltons of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy § 1284 % 1,78 § 1,774
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 801 1,090 1,102
Vehicle Safety and Protection 602 768 782
Global Aftermarket 1.851 2 107 2.068
Corporate — 9 3
$§ 4338 $ 5742 § 5,729
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Gross margin by reporting segment was

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Mallwons of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy $ 129§ 304 § 289
Powertrain Sealing and Beanings 18 04 54
Vehicle Safety and Protection 170 217 234
Global Aftermarket 475 530 611
Corporate — 9 3)
$ 792 3 114 % 1,185

Consohdated net sales decreased by $1,536 milhion, or 22%. to $5 330 miilion for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $6,866
million for the year ended December 31, 2008 Over 60% of the Company s sales onginate outside the United States, therefore the
mmpact of the U § dollar strengtheming 1n 2009, primanly against the euro, decreased reported sales by $303 million

In general, hight and commercial vehicle OE production, and hence demand from the OEM’s for the Company s products, declined
significantly n all regions When the regional year over year production declines n both hight and commercial vehicle are applied to
the various markets in which the Company’s OE products are sold the weighied average drop 1n global OEM demand was 32%
Against this global production volume decline, the Company increased its OE market share in all regions, with the result that, on a
constant dollar and constant pricing basis, the reduction in the Company’s sales to OEM s was himited to 24% Global aftermarket
volumes decreased by 11% due to a combination of items including macro-economic factors driving deferred mamtenance spending at
the consumer level and the credit cnisis impact on customers in various countries in Eastern Europe and South America In addition,
glebal aftermarket’s 2008 volume included increased sales due to the geographic expanstion of one of the Company’s North American
customers due to an acquisition The combined mmpact ot these factors was a net sales volume decline of $1,254 million Net customer
price increases were $23 mulion

In connection with fresh-start reporting completed as ot December 31, 2007, inventory balances as of that date were increased by $68
millien During the three months ended March 31, 2008, the Company recognized $68 million 1n addinonal cost of goods sold, which
reduced gross margin by the same The non-recurrence of this one-time event has resulted in an wncrease 1 gross margin for 2009
when compared to 2008, and 15 reterenced several times 1n the discussions that follow

Cost of products sold decreased by $1.204 million to $4,538 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $5,742
million for the year ended December 31, 2008 This was primarily due to a $748 milhon decrease in matenal, manufacturing labor and
variable overhead costs as a direct consequence of the lower production volumes Productivity 1n excess of labor and benefits inflation
of $62 muilion represents improvements in the total manufacturing cost base 1 excess of those due to reduced production volume and
mix changes Other factors contributing to this decrease were currency movements of $270 muillion, improved materials and services
sourcing of $82 million and the non-recurring 2008 tresh-start reporting impact on inventory ot $68 million

Gross margin was $792 million, or 14 9% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to §1,124 million, or 16 4% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 The most significant factor affecting gioss margin was that of reduced salcs, where the
impact of lower volumes of $1,254 milhion was partially offset by lower cost of products sold of $748 mullion, resulting 1n lower gross
margin of $306 nullion Favorable productivity in excess of labor and benefits inflation of $62 million, the non-recurring 2608
fresh-start reporting impact on inventory of $68 million. improved matenals and services sourcing of $82 million and net customer
price ncreases of $23 mulhion were more than offset by sales volume decreases that reduced margins by $506 mulhon, increased
depreciation of $16 million, increased pension expense of $10 million and currency movements of $35 milhion
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Reporting Segment Results 2009 versus 2008

The following table provides changes in sales cost of products sold gross margin and operational EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2009 compared with the year ended December 31, 2008 for each of the Company s reporting segments Operational
EBITDA 15 defined as earmings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain 1tems such as restructunng
and impairment charges, Chapter 11 and UK Admnistration related reorgamization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of
businesses gain on settlement of liabilhities subject to comprise, fresh-start reporting adjustments, expense assoctated with U S based
funded pension plans and the impact on 2008 gross margin of the fresh-start reporting valuation of inventory

PTE PTSB VSP GA Corporate Total
{Mullions of Dollars)
2008 Sales, Successor b 2090 S 1L154 5§ 985 § 2,637 § — 8 6,566
Sales volumes (504) {292) (168) (290) - (1,254)
Customer pricing (36) 13 (&) 47 — 23
Foreign currency (137) (56} (44) {68) — (305)
2009 Sales, Successor b1 1,413 S 819 § 772 S 2326 § — § 5,330
FTE PTSB VSP GA Corporate Total
(Milhons of Dollars)
20038 Cast of Products Sold, Successor s 1,786 S 1090 § 768 S 2,107 § %) § 5,742
Sales volumes / mix (31hH) (179) 7% (175) ) (748)
Productivity, net ot inflation (32) {32) (13) 5 10 (62)
Matenals and services soureing (16) {19) 30 an (6) (82)
Depreciation 6 6 4 1 (1) 16
Pension i (n — — 10 10
Non-recurrence of 2008 fresh-start reporting impact on
inventory {11} h (5) (43} — {68)
Foreign currency 139 (51 (43) (31} — (270)
2609 Cost of Products Sold, Succesvor 3 1,134 S 80t S 602 § 1,851 % — S 4.533
PTE P1SB VSP GA Corporate Total
(Malhons of Dellars)
2008 Gross Margin, Successor s 304 5 64 S 217§ 530 S 9 3 1,124
Sales volumes / mix (193) (113) (89} (115 4 (506)
Customer pricing (36 13 (1} 47 —_ 23
Productivity net of inflation 32 32 13 (3} (10) 62
Matenals and services sourctng 16 19 30 11 3 82
Depreciation {6} {6) (%) h | (16y
Pension (1} 1 — — {10) [¢19)]
Non-recurrence of 2008 fresh-start reporting impact on
inventory il 7 5 45 — 68
Foreign currency 2 1 (h {37) —_ 135)
2009 Gross Margin, Successor $ 129 § 18 § 170 § 475 § — 8§ 792
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PTE PTSB VSP GA Corporate Total
{Mhllions of Dollars)

2008 Operational EBITDA, Successor H 354 § 58 8 06 S 3 3 (233 $ 762
Sales volumes / mix (193) (113 (89) (113) 4 (506)
Customer pricing 36) 13 ) 47 — 23
Productivity — Cost of products sold 32 32 13 (5) (10) 62
Productivity — SG&A 23 17 10 25 57 132
Productivity — Other Income — (2) _ —_ — 2)
Sourcing — Cost of preducts sold 16 19 30 11 6 82
Sourcing - SG& A — — —_ 3 3 6
Sourcing — Other Income 1 — —_ — 15 16
Equity earmngs on non-consohdated affihates (6) (2) ) 2 — (]
Stock-based compensation — — — — (41 40
Foreign currency [q1)] (3) 43 (2 15 (19
Other (5) (1) {3) {5) 9 13)
2009 Operational EBITDA, Successor s 176 § 18 3 164 S 320 § (175) § 503
Interest expense, net (132)
Depreciation and amortization (327)
Restructuring expense, net (a2)
Adjustment of assels to fair value (an
Chapter 11 and U K Admunistration related reorganization

expenses 3
Expense associated with U S based funded pension plans {66}
Other 2
Loss before tncome taxes 5 @Y

Powertnrain Energy

Sales decreased by $677 million, or 32%, to $1,413 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $2.090 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2008 PTE gencrates over 80% of 1ts revenue outside the Unuted States and the resulting currency movements
decreased reported sales by $137 mullion Sales volumes decreased by $504 mitlon due to OF preduction volume dechines in all
regions, shightly oftset by market share gains and new program launches n all regions Price downs assouated with customer
contractual agreements reduced sales by $36 milhon, mmcluding the impact of matenal price escalators whereby, through prior
arrangements with certain customers, the Company transiers all, or part, of the changes 1n material costs to its customers

Cost of products sold decreased by $502 mullion to $1,284 mulhen for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $1,786 million
for the year ended December 31 2008 This was primaniy due to a $311 milion decrease 1n material, manufacturing labor and
variable overhead costs as a direct consequence of the lower production volumes Productivity in excess of labor and benefits inflation
of $32 mullion represents improvements 1n the total manufacturing cost base in excess of those due to reduced production volume
Other significant factors contributing to this decrease were currency movements of $139 million and improved materials and services
sourcing of $16 mullion

Gross margin decreased by $175 mullion to $129 million, or 9 1% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $304
million, or 14 5% ot sales, tor the year ended December 31, 2008 The unfavorable impact of sales volumes contributed to a $193
million decrease 1in gross margin, being the difference between the volume related reductions of $504 mullion 1in sales and $311
million 1n the cost of products sold Other less significant factors contributing to the margin erosion were $36 mullion 1n customer
pricing decreases, partially ofiset by $32 million of favorable productivity in excess of labor and benefits inflation and improved
materials and services sourcing of $16 million

Operanonal EBITDA decreased by $178 million to $176 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $354 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2008 This decrease was primarily due to the impact of reduced volumes ot $193 milhon When combined with
the other macro-economic tactors, such as adverse currency movements of $10 million and reduced mcome from non-consolidated
aftihiates of $6 milhon, the latter due to reductions in global market demand, EBITDA before operational actions fell by $209 million
Improved productivity in both cost of products sold and SG&A ncreased EBITDA by $55 milhon, and improved matenals and
services sourcing contributed a further $17 million  However, these favorable actions were partly oflset by reduced customer pricing
ot $36 million
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Powertain Sealing and Beay ings

Sales decreased by $335 million, or 29%, to $819 muillion for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $1,154 mullion for the year
ended December 31 2008 PTSB gencrates approsimately 70% of its revenue outside the United States and the resulting currency
movements decreased reported sales by $56 million Sales volumes decreased by $292 mullion due to OE production volume declines

in all regrons, shightly offset by market share gamns and new program launches in all regtons Customer pricing increased sales by $13
million

Cost of products sold decreased by $289 million to $801 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $1,098 million
tor the year ended December 31, 2008 This was primanly due to a $179 mulion decrease in material, manufacturing labor and
variable overhead costs as a direct consequence of the lower production volumes Productivity 1n excess of labor and benetits inflation
of $32 mulhion represents improvements in the total manufacturing cost base 1n excess of those due to reduced production volume

Other factors contributing to this decrease were currency movements ot $57 million and improved materials and services sourcing ot
$19 mllion

Gross margin decreased by $46 million to $18 million, or 2 2% of sales, for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to $64
milhion, or 5 5% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 The unfavorable impact of sales volumes contributed to a $113
million decrease m gross margin, being the dificrence between the volume related reductions of $292 millien in sales and $179
mulhion 1n the cost of products sold Other sigmficant factors that helped to mitigate to the impact of lower volumes were $13 million
1n customer pricing increases, $32 millton of tavorable productivity in excess ot labor and benefits intlation and improved materials
and services sourcing of $19 milhon

Operational EBITDA decreased by $40 muiliion to $18 milhon tor the year ended December 31, 2009 from $58 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2008 T'his decrease was primarily due to the impact of reduced volumes of $113 mullion When combined with
the other macro-economic factors, such as adverse currency movements of $3 million and reduced income from non-consolidated
affiliates of $2 millton, the latter due to reductions in global market demand, EBITDA before operational actions fell by $118 mullion
Improved productivity tn both cost of products sold and SG&A increased EBITDA by $49 mullion improved matenals and services
sourcing contributed a turther $19 milhion and tavorable customer pricing added $13 million

Vehicle Safety and Protection

Sales decreased by $213 mullion, or 22%. to $772 million for the vear ended December 31, 2009 from $985 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008 VSP generates over 70% of 1ts revenue outside the United States and the resuling currency movements decreased
reported sales by $44 million Sales volumes fell by $168 million due to lower OE production in all regions, shightly offset by market
share gains and new program launches in all regions

Cost of products sold decreased by $166 mullien to $602 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $768 millien for
the year ended December 31, 2008 This was primartly due to a $79 mullion decrease in maternial, manufacturing labor and varable
overhead costs as a direct consequence of the lower production volumes Productivity in excess of labor and benefits inflation of $13
million represents improvements in the total manufacturing cost base in excess of those due 1o reduced production volume changes

Other factors contributing to this decrease were currency movements of $43 million and improved matenals and services sourcing of
$30 million

Gross margin decreased by $47 million to $170 muillion, or 22 0% of sales, for the year ended December 31. 2009 compared to $217
milhon, or 22 0% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 The unfavorable impact of sales volumes contributed to an $89
million decrease 1n gross margun, being the difference between the volume related reductions of $168 millien 1n sales and $79 million
n the cost of products sold Improved materials and services sourcing reduced costs by $30 milhon and favorable productivity in
excess of labor and benefits inflation was $13 million
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Opcrational EBITDA decreased by $42 mullion to $164 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $206 mullion for the vear
ended December 31, 2008 This decrease was primarily due to the impact of reduced volumes of $89 milhon When combined with
the other macro-economic factors, such as adverse currency movements ot $1 million and reduced income from non-consolidated
affihates of $1 milhion, EBITDA betfore operational actions tell by $91 mithon Improved productivity in both cost of goods sold and
SG&A mcreased EBITDA by $23 mulhion, improved materials and services sourcing contnbuted a turther $30 million, and custemer
pricing $1 million

Global Aftermar ket

Sales decreased by $311 mullion, or 12%, to $2,326 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2009 frem $2,637 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008 This change was caused by decreased sales volumes n all regions totaling $290 mullion due to a
combination of factors including the economic recession reducing consumer spending and the frailty ot financial markets in Eastern
Europe and South America, partially offset by customer price increases ot $47 million Unfavorable foreign currency movements were
$68 mullion

Cost of products sold decreased by $256 million to $1,851 milhon for the yvear ended December 31, 2009 compared to $2,107 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008 This was primanly duc to a $175 million decrease due to reduced volume of product purchased
as a direct consequence of the lower market demand Other factors contributing to this decrease were the non-recurring 2008
fresh-start reporting impact on inventory of $45 million and currency movements of $31 million

Gross margin decreased by $55 milhion to $475 million, or 20 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $530
million, or 20 1% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 The untavorable impact of sales volumes contributed to a $115
mullion decrease n gross margin, being the difference between the volume related reductions of $290 mullion in sales and $175
million 1n the cost of products sold Customer price increases were $47 million, and the non-recurrence of the 2008 fresh-start
reporting tmpact on mventory which increased reported gross margin by $45 mulhon was mostly offset by adverse currency
movements of $37 million

Operational EBITDA decreased by $57 million to $320 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $377 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008 This decrease was primarily due to the impact of reduced volumes of $115 million When combined with
adverse currency movements of $20, EBITDA before operational actions fell by $135 mullion [mproved productivity, mamly in
SG&A, mareased EBITDA by $20 mullion, improved materials and services sourcing contributed a tuither $14 million, and customer
pricing $47 million

Corporate

Operational EBITDA increased by $58 million to $(175) million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $(233) mullion for the
year ended December 31, 2008 This increase was duce to reduced SG&A 1in excess of labor and benefits inflation of $57 mullion,
improvements n the cost of services of $9 milhon, favorable currency movements ot $15 million and increased gains on hedging
transactions of $13 mullion, partially ofiset by increased stock-based compensation expense tor hability based awards of $41 mullion
primarily due to the impact of the Company’s rising stock price

Selling, General and Admmnistrative Expense

SG& A expenses were $690 mullion, or 12 9% of net sales. for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to $774 million or
11 3% of net sales the year ended December 31 2008 Included within SG&A 15 a charge ot $37 milhon relating to the U S funded
pension plan The favorable impact of exchange movements decreased SG&A by $27 rmullion, leaving a constant-dollar decrease of
$111 million which 1s due to reduced employee costs and other productivity improvements, net of labor and benefits nflation,
partially oftset by increased pension costs

Included in SG&A cxpense above were research and development (" R&D™) costs, including product engineering and validation costs,
of $140 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $173 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 As a
percentage of OEM sales, research and development was 4 7% for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 4 1% for the vear ended
December 31, 2008
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Interest Expense

Net interest expense was $132 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $180 mullion for the year ended December
31,2008 The decrease 1s pnmarily due to lower average interest rates

Other Income, Net

Other income net was $43 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with other income, net of $37 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008 The Company was party to two lawsuits 1n Ohio and Michigan relating to indemniftcation for costs
anising from environmental releases from industrial operations of the Predecessor Company prior 1o 1986 During 2009 and 2008, the
Company reached settlements with certain parties, which resulted in net recovenes to the Company of $12 million and $17 milion,
respectively

During 2009, an affiliate purchased and sold debt investments on the Company’s behalf for $22 mullion and $30 mullion, respectively
This resulted 1n a single cash transaction with the affiltate for an $8 mullion net gain, which the Company recogmized in other income

In 2008, the Company expenienced a fire at a plant 1n Europe During 2008, the Company received cash proceeds of $30 mullion from

its insurance carrier, for which 1t recognized a $12 million gamn asseciated with the involuntary conversion During 2009, the
Company received additionat proceeds of $7 million, which was recognized as a gain
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Reporting Segment Results 2008 versus 2007

The tollowing table provides changes in sales, cost of products sold. gross margin and Operational EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2008 compared with the year ended December 31, 2007 for each of the Company’s reporting segments

2007 Sales, Predecessor

Sales volumes and new bustness
Customer pricing

Foreign currency

2008 Sales, Successor

2007 Cost of Products Sold, Predecessor

Sales volumes / mix

Productivity, net of inflation

Maternials and services sourcing

Depreciatton

Penston

Increase to inventory values as a result of fresh-stary
reporting

Foreign currency

2008 Cost of Products Sold, Successor

2007 Gross Margmn, Predecessor

Sales volumes / min

Customer pricing

Productivity net of inflation

Matertals and services sourcing

Depreciatuion

Pension

Increase to inventory values as a result of fresh-start
reporting

Foreign currency

2008 Gross Margin, Successor

FTE PTSB VSP GA Corporate Totat
(Millions of Dollars)

s 2063 S 1,15 § 1,16 S 2,679 § - 5 6,914
29 (75) (64) (119) - (287)
122) 31 (6) 39 - 42

78 42 39 38 - 197

$ 2,690 S 1,154 S 985 $ 2,637 S - 5 6,866

PTE PTSB SP GA Corporate Total
{Mifhons of Dollars)

1,774 § L,102 % 782 § 2068 S 3 s 5,729
(10) 29 (12} (36) | (86}
43) (3 (54) - {12) (122)

7 2 26 (8) i 28
(32} (18) (13 - - (63)
- 1 1 - (3} 0

11 7 5 45 - 68

79 38 33 33 1 189
1,786 S 1,090 § 768 % 2,107 8 9 S 5,742

PTE PTSB YS§P GA Corporate Total
{Milhens of Dollars)

289 § 54 5 234§ 611§ 3 s 1,185
(1) (46) (52) (83) (1) (201)

(22) 31 (6) 39 - 42

43 13 54 - 12 122
(D 2) (26) 8 ) (28)

32 18 13 - - 63

- ) (4 - 3 !
(1 (7) (5) {45} - (68)

(1) 4 6 - (1 8

304 S 64 8 217 8 530 S 9 S 1,124
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PTE FTSB VSP LA Corporate Total
(Millions of Dollars)

1007 Operantonal EBTTDA, Suceessor s 385 S 50 S s S 423 S 263y S 790
Sales volumes / mix (19) (46) (52) (83) n (201)
Customer pneing (22) 31 (3] 39 - 42
Productsvity ~ Cost of products sold 43 13 54 - 12 122
Productivity — SG&A 6 6 2 H (¢10)] 9
Productivity — Other income 1 8 - - (i8) {9)
Sourcing - Cost of products sold (7} 2) (26) 8 e} {28)
Sourcing — SG&A - 1 - - 3 4
Sourcing — Other encome - 2) - - 1 (1}
Equity earings on non-consolidated affiliates {9} (2} 1 ) - (12}
Stack based compensation - - - - 23 23
Environmental claims settlements 17 17
Foreign currency 4 2 5 (b {4) 4
Other 2 (n 3 (2) 8 10
2008 Operational EBITDA, Successor § 354 § 58 8§ 206 § 377 8§ {233) § 762
Interest expense net (180)
Deprecianon and amortization (349)
Adjustment of assets to fair value (451
Restructunng expense, net (132)
Chapter |1 and U K Administration related reorgamzation

expenses (7
Gross margin impact of December 31, 2007 fresh-stant

reporting 1nventery adjustment (68)
Expense associated with U S based funded pension plans (5)
Other (6)
Loss before income taxes $ (446)

Powertram Energy

Sales increased by 327 million, or 1%, to $2,090 muillion for the year ended December 31, 2008 trom $2,063 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2007 PTE generated over 80% of its revenue outside the United States and the resulung currency movements
increased 1eported sales by $78 million Sales volumes decreased by $49 million due to OE production volume decreases in Europe
and North America The November 2007 acquisition ot a controlling interest 1n a joint venture in China contributed additional sales of
$20 mullion Continued customer pricing pressure reduced sales by $22 million

Cost of products sold inereased by $12 muilion to $1 786 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $1,774 mullion
for the year ended December 31, 2007 This shight increase was due to foreign currency movements ot $79 million and the 2008
fresh-start reporting impact on inventory of $11 million, partially offset by favorable productivity 1n excess of labor and benefits
inflation ot $43 million, which represents improvements in the total manutacturing cost base in excess of those due to reduced
production volume and mix changes, and lower depreciation expense of $32 mullion due to the revaluation of fixed assets n
conjunction with tresh-start reporting

Gross margin increased by $15 million to $304 mallion, or 14 5% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $289
million, or 14 0% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2007 This increase was due to favorable productivity 1n excess of labor
and benefits inflation of $43 million and lower depreciation expense of $32 million, partially offsct by decreased sales volumes, which
reduced gross margin by $19 nullion, customer price reductions of $22 million and the 2008 fresh-start reporting impact on inventory
of $11 million

Operational EBITDA decreased by $1 million to $354 malhion for the vear ended December 3 1, 2008 from $335 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007 The unfavorable impact of sales volumes dechines ot $19 milhon, customer price decreases of $22 milhon
and decreased equity earmings on non-consolidated affiliates of $9 million were mostly offset by favorable productivity in excess of
labor and benefits inflatton of $50 million
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Sales decreased by 32 mullion, or less than 1%, to $1,154 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $1,156 mullien for the
year ended December 31, 2007 Approaimately 70% of PTSB s revenues were generated outside the United States and the resulung
currency movements increased sales by $42 mullion Reduced Iight vehicle OE production in North Amertea and Europe outweighed
mereases in market share and OE production volume in Asia, resulting in a net volume decline of $87 million Customer prices were
increased by a net $31 million The March 2008 acquisition of FMBIL increased sales by $12 million

Cost of products sold decreased by $12 milhion to $1,090 mullion tor the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $1,102 muillion
for the year ended December 3t, 2067 This shight decrease was pnimanly due to a $29 mullion decrease associated with the decline in
sales volume This reduction i1s due to reduced matenial, manufacturing labor and vanable overhead costs as a direct consequence of
the lower production volumes, partly oftsct by increases in the cost base resulting from changes in the mix of products manufactured
and sold in the period Another factor contributing to this decrease was lower depreciation expense of 318 mullion due to the
revaluation of fixed assets in conjunction with fresh-start reporting These noted decreases were partially ofiset by foreign currency
movements of $38 milhien

Gross margin increased by $10 million to $64 million, or 5 5% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $54
million, or 4 7% ol sales, for the year ended December 31, 2007 This increase was due to increased customer pricing of $31 million
and lower depreciation of $18 million, partially offset by the gross margin impact of $46 mullion due to lower sales volumes

Operational EBITDA increased by $8 mullion to $58 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $50 million tor the year
ended December 31, 2008 This increase was due to increased customer pricing of $31 miullion and favorable productivity 1n excess of
labor and benefits inflation of $27 million, partially offset by the unfavorable impact of sales volumes declines of $46 miliion

Vehicle Safety and Protection

Sales decreased by $31 nullion, or 3%, to $985 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $1,016 mitlion for the year ended
December 31, 2007 Approamately 70% of VSP's sales were gencrated outside the United States and the resulting currency
movements increased sales by $39 million Sales volumes fell by $64 m:llion as sigmificant market share gains in Asia were more than
oiiset by the decline in light vehicle and OE production in North America and Europe Customer price reductions were $6 miilion

Cost of products sold decreased by $14 million to $768 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $782 mullion for
the year ended December 31, 2007 This shight decrease was primarily due to $54 milion of favorable producuvity 1n excess of labor
and benefits inflation. which represents improvements in the total manufacturing cost base in excess of those due to reduced
produciion volume and mux changes Other factors contributing to this decrease were lower depreciation expense of $13 million due to
the revaluation of fixed assets in conjunction with Iresh-start reporting and a $12 million decrease assoctated with the decline in sales
volume These noted decreases were partially ofiset by foreign currency movements of $33 mullion and unfavorable materials and
services sourcing of $26 million

Gross margin decreased by $17 milhion to $217 mullion, or 22 0% of sales, for the vear ended December 31, 2008 compared to $234
million, or 23 0% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2007 This decrease was due to the gross margin impact ot $32 million
caused by lower sales volumes and unfavorable materials and services sourcmg of $26 mullion, partially offset by favorable
productivity in excess of labor and benefits inflation of $54 mitlion and lower depreciation expense of $13 mithion

Operational EBITDA decreased by $19 million to $206 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $225 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2007 This decrease was due to the unfavorable impact ot sales volumes declines ot $32 mullion and untavorable
materials and services sourcing ot $26 million, partially offset by favorable productivity in excess ol labor and benefits intlation of
$56 mullion
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Global Afierman ket

Sales decreased by $42 muthion, or 2%, to $2,637 million for the vear ended December 31, 2008 from $2,679 mullion for the year
ended December 31 2007 This change was due to sales volume decreases of $119 milhon, partially offset by customer price
increases of $39 million and currency movements of $38 million

Cost of products sold increased by $39 million to $2 107 million for the vear ended December 31 2008 compared to $2,068 million
for the vear ended December 31, 2007 This was due to the non-recurring 2008 fresh-start reporing impact on inventory of $45
million and foreign currency movements of $38 mulhon, parually offset by a $36 million decrease associated with the decline n sales
volume This $36 mullion reduction 1s due to reduced volume of product purchased as a direct consequence of the lower market
demand, partly oftset by increases in the cost base resulting from changes in the mix of products bought and sold in the period

Gross margin decreased by $81 million to $530 milhion, or 20 1% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $611

miullion, or 22 8% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2007 Before considering the impact of the one-time inventory charge of
$45 mullion, gross margin would have been 21 8% of sales The impact of the volume decrease was compounded by unfavorable
movements in the mix of products and markets into which the aftermarket products were distnibuted, lowenng margin by $83 muillion

This margun erosion was partially offset by increased customer pricing of $39 million

Operational EBITDA decreased by 346 mullion to $377 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $423 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2007 The unfavorable impact of sales volumes declines of $83 mullion was partially offset by customer price
decreases of $39 mullion

Corporate

Operational EBITDA increased by $30 mullion to $(233) million for the year ended December 31, 2008 trom $(263) million for the
year ended December 31, 2007 This increase was primarily the result of the favorable impact of stock based compensation of $23
mullion and environmental claims settlements of $17 million, partially offset by untavorable productivity of $16 million

Selling, General and Admunistrative Expense

SG&A expenses were $774 mullion, or 11 3% of net sales, for the vear ended December 31, 2008 as compared to $828 mullion, or
12 0% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2007 The unfaverable impact of exchange movements increased SG&A by $18
million, which was more than offset by a constant-dollar reducuon of $72 million, pnmanly due to reduced pension costs of $31
million and other productivity improvements, net of labor and benefits inflation

Included in SG&A expense above were research and development ( ‘R&D") costs, including product engineering and vahdation costs,
of $173 mullien for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $178 million for the year ended December 31. 2007 As a
percentage of OEM sales, research and development was 4 1% and 4 2% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively

Interest Expense

Net interest expense was $180 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $199 million tor the year ended December
31, 2007 The decrease 15 due to lower average interest rates on higher debt partially offset by amortization of $22 mullion as a result
of marking to marhket the exit financing arrangements as pari of fresh-start reporting
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Other Income, Net

Other income, net was $34 million tor the year ended December 31, 2008, compared with other income, net of $41 mullion for the
year ended December 31, 2007 The Company was a party to twe lawsuits in Ohio and Michigan relating to indemnification tor costs
ansing trom environmental releases from industrial operations of the Predecessor Company prior to 1986 During 2008, the Company
reached settlements with certain parties which resulted 1n net recoveries to the Company of $17 million In addition, the Company
had a fire at a plant 1n Europe for which 1t recognized a $12 mulhion gain associated with the involuntary conversion

Adjustment of Assets to Estimated Fair Value

The Company and 1ts Predecessor recorded total impairment charges of $17 million, $45! million and $61 muilion for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, as follows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2608 2007
(Mhaihons of Dollars}
Property, plant and equipment 5 20 % 18 § 36
Goodwill 3) 239 25
Other indefinne-lived ntangible assets — 130 —
Investments tn non-consolidated affiliates — 64 —
5 17 $ 451 § 61

The Company s adjustment of assets to estimated fairr value are further discussed 1n Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Staternents,
included m [tem 8 of this report

Chapter 11 and U.K Administration Related Reorgamization Expense

Chapter 11 and U K Administration related reorganization expenses n the consolidated statements of operations consist of legal,
financial and advisory tees, including fees of the U K Administrators, critical employee retention costs, and other directly related
internal costs as summartzed below These cxpenses have decreased tor the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 when compared
to the year ended December 31, 2007 as a result ot the Company s emergence from bankruptey on December 27, 2007

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{Mhllons of Dollars)
Professional fees directly related to the tiling 5 i s 17 % 73
Crnitical employee retention costs — — 3
3 3 8 17 $ 81

Restructuring Activities

lThe Company and its Predecessor, as part of the sustainable global profitable growth strategy, has undertaken vartous restructuring
activities to streamline its operations, consolidate and take advantage of available capacity and resources and ultimately achieve cost
reductions These restructuring activities include efforts to integrate and rattonalize businesses and to relocate manufacturing
operations to best cost countries Such activities have resulted in the redeployment of human and capital resources to the Company s
core businesses
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An uvnprecedented downturn 1n the global automotive industry and global financial markets led the Company to announce, in
September and Drecember 2008, certain restructuring actions, herein referred to as ‘Restructusing 2009, designed to improve
operating performance and respond to increasingly challenging conditions 1n the global automotve market It was anticipated that thas
plan would reduce the Company’s global workforce by approsimately 8 600 posttions when compared with the workforce as of
September 30, 2008 During 2009 and 2008, the Company has recorded $31 mullion and $127 multion, respectively, i net
restructuring expenses associated with Restructuring 2009, and expects to incur additional restructuring expenses up to 36 nulhon
through 2080 Because the significant majority of the costs expected to be incurred in relation to Restructuring 2009 are related to
severance expenses, such activities are expected to yield future annual savings at least equal to the costs incurred

The Predecessor Company announced, in January 2006, a global restructuring plan (*Restructuring 2006 °) as part of its sustainable
global profitable growth strategy During 2007, the Predecessor Company incurred expenses ot $39 million under this program
During 2008, the Successor Company incurred expenses of $5 million 1n connection with the Restructuring 2006 program The
Restructuring 2006 program was completed as of December 31, 2008 Payments associated with this program are expected to continue
into 2010

The Company s restructuring activities are further discussed in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financtal Statements, included n [tem 8 of
this repert

Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $39 mullion on a loss before income taxes of
$72 mullion, compared to income tax expense of $19 million on a loss betore income taxes ot 5446 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2008 The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2009 differs from the U S statutory rate primarily due to
favorable audit settlements, a tax benefit from the reversal of valuation allowances which 15 offset by the non-recognition of income
tax benefits in vartous jurisdictions and a tax benefit recorded to continuing operations pursuant te an exception to the ntraperiod tax
allocation rules For the year ended December 31, 2008, the primary difference between the Company’s income tax expense at its
statutery rate and actual tax expense recorded was the result of goodwill impairment

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Nct cash provided by operating activities was $328 mullion, $627 million and $35 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2009,

2008 and 2007, respectively The most significant factors contributing to operating activity cash flows 1n 2008 and 2007 are those 1n
relation to emergence from Chapter 11 Cash from operations, excluding the impacts of the Plan, 15 shown below

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{Mlhons of Dollars)

Net cash provided from operating activities $ 328§ 627 § 35
Adjustments

Payment {from} to U S Asbestos Trust (40) (225) 140
Payment of interest on pre-petition debt and notes — — 132
Payments to settle non-debt liabilities subject to compromise 51 - =23 44
Cash from operations, excluding the impacts of the Plan 5 339 % 425 § 351
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Working Capital

The cash inflows from changes in working capital were $25 miuthon, $82 mullion (excluding $68 rmllion fresh-start adjustment to
inventory) and $92 million for the years ended December 31, 2009 2008 and 2007, respectively

‘The cash inflow due to changes 1n accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $14 million This 1s due to a major
focus on credit collection, which resulted 1n a significant reduction 1n overdue and late payments generating cash inflow of about $64
million, which was partly offset by the impact of higher fourth quarter 2009 sales volumes in excess of those in the fourth quarter of
2008 of about $5¢ million

The cash inflow due to changes 1in accounts receivable tor the year ended December 31, 2008 of $89 million 1s pnimanly due to a
reduction n sales volume Excluding the impact of foreign exchange, sales revenue in the last two months of 2008 was approuimately
$311 million lower than the equivalent period of 2007

The cash outflow due to changes in accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2007 of $47 million 1s primanily due to an
increase 1n sales volume, partially offset by payments received i 2007 for property sold in 2006 Excluding the impact of foreign
enchange, sales revenue in the last two months of 2007 was approxumately $67 million higher than the equivalent period of 2006
During 2007, $20 million was recerved related to property sales made in 2006

The cash inflow due to changes in inventory ot $93 million and the cash outflow due to changes in accounts payable of $82 million tor
the year ended December 31, 2009 are both largely as a result of the drop in global revenues for full year 2009 as compared to full
year 2008

The cash inflow due te changes in inventory for the year ended December 31, 2008 of $33 milhion (excluding $68 million fresh-start
adjustment to mventory) and the cash outflow due to changes 1n accounts payable for the year ended December 31, 2008 of $61
million both reflect the impact of decreased production volumes 1n the fourth quarter of 2008 — impacts which continued 1n 2009

Through more efficient internal logistics and supply cham management, the Predecessor Company reduced inventories by $15 million
duning for the year ended December 31, 2007 Excluding the impact of foreign exchange, the significant improvement in payments
terms created a cash inflow of $124 million for purchased goods and services for the year ended December 31, 2007

Cash Flow Used by Investing Activities

Cash flow used by investing activities was $166 million, $306 million and $263 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively Expenditures for property, plant and equipment of $176 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 were
$144 mullion lower than for the year ended December 31, 2008 As a result of the reduction in global revenue, the Company was able
to utihize excess capacity and equipment, including that made available through the consolidation of production activities at certain
locations These actions made it possible for the Company to operate with a lower level of capital investment throughout 2009

During 2009, an affiliate purchased and sold debt investments on the Company s behalf for $22 million and $30 mullion, respectively
This resulted 1n a single cash transaction with the affiliate for an $8 million nct gan, which the Company recognized in other income

Procecds from the sales of property. plant and equipment were $2 mulhon, $13 million and $26 millon for the years ended December
31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively The 2007 proceeds were largely due to the sale of real estate following the closure of a
manufacturing facility tn Upton, England durning 2007 Also during 2007, the Predecessor Company realized proceeds of $14 nmllion
cach for the sale of a 12 2% ownership interest 1n an industnal brake manufacturer and the sale of a 30% ownership interest 1n a piston
venture in India

I'he Company mamntamns investments in 14 non-consolidated atiihates, which are located in China, Geirmany, India, Italy, Korea,
Turkey, the Unuted Kingdom and the United States The Company s direct ownership in such affibates ranges from approximately 1%
to 50% The aggregate investments n these affiliates were $238 muilion and $221 mullion as of December 31 2009 and 2008,
respectively Upon the adoption of iresh-start reporting, the Company s invesiments n non-consohidated affiliates were adjusted to
estimated fair value

54

Source FEDERAL MOGUL CORP 10-K, February 23 2810 Fewered b Mosamasiar® Bocumer - fReeearey5¥




The Company’s joint ventures are businesses established and maintained 1n connection with 1ts operating strategy and are not special
purpose entities In general, the Company does not extend guarantees, loans or other tnstruments of a variable nature that may result in
wncremental risk to the Company’s liquidity posiwon Furthermore, the Company does not rely on dividend pavments or other cash
flows from 1its non-consoiidated affiliates to tund 1ts operations and, accordingly. does not believe that they have a material effect on
the Company s hquidity

The Company holds a 50% non-controlhing interest 1n a joint venture located i Turkey This joint venture was established 1n 1995 for
the purpose of manufactuning and marheting automotive parts, including pistons, piston rings, piston pins, and cylinder liners, 1o
ongtnal equipment and aftermarket customers Pursuant to the Joint venture agreement, the Company’s partner holds an option to put
its shares to a subsidtary of the Company at the higher of the current fair value or at a guaranteed minimum amount The term of the
contingent guarantee 15 indefinite, consistent with the terms of the jont venture agreement However, the contingent guarantee would
not survive termination of the jomt venture agreement

The guaranteed mimimum amount represents a contingent guarantee of the miial investment of the jownt venture partner and can be
exercised at the discretion of the partner As of December 31, 2009, the total amount of the contingent guarantee, were all triggering
events to occur approximated $60 nillion Management believes that this contingent guarantee 15 substantially less than the estimated
current fair value of the guarantees interest in the affihate As such, the contingent guarantee does not give rise to & contingent
liabihity and, as a result, no amount 1s recorded for this guarantee If this put option were exercised, the consideration paid and net
assets acquired would be accounted for 1n accordance with business combination accounting guidance

If this put option werc exercised at its estimated current tair value, such exercise could have a material effect on the Company s
hiquidity Any value 1n excess of the guaranteed minimum amount of the put option would be the subject of negotiation between the
Company and its joint venture partner

The Company has determined that its investments 1n Chinese joint venture arrangements are considered to be Lhmuted-lived™ as such
entities have specified durations ranging from 30 1o 50 years pursuant to regional statutory regulations In general, these arrangements
call for extension renewal or hiquidation at the discretion of the parties to the arrangement at the end of the contractua! agreement
Accordingly, a reasonable assessment cannot be made as to the impact of such contingencies on the future hquidity position of the
Company

Cash Provided from (Used by} Financing Activities

Cash flow used by financing activities was $35 milhion for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to cash provided from
financing activities of $197 million and $265 nullion for years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively Financing activity
duning 2009 primarily related to scheduled debt repayments, whereas 2008 and 2007 had significant borrowing actuvity [he Company
purchased approximately 1 1 mullion shares of its common stock for approximately $17 mullion 1n a single transaction from an
unrelated party on September 11, 2008

In connection with the consummation of the Plan, on the Effective Date, the Company entered into a Tranche A Term Lean
Agreement (the -Tranche A Facility Agreement™) The Tranche A Facility Agreement provided for 2 $1,335 milhion term loan 1ssued
on the Effective Date to satisfy mn part the obligations owed under the Prepetiton Credit Agreement and certain other prepetition
surcty-related obligations On December 27, 2007, the Company notified the admimistrative agent under the Tranche A Facthty
Agreement of the Company’s intent to repay the Tranche A term loan during January 2008 On January 3, 2008, the Tranche A term
loan was repaid 1n full

On the Effective Date, the Company, as the issuer, entered into an Indenture (the ‘Indenture™) relating to the issuance of
approximately $305 million 1n sentor subordinated third priority payment-in-hind notes (the “PIK Notes °, referred 1o together with the
Tranche A Facility Agreement as the * Repaid Instruments’) The PIK Notes were 1ssued 1n order to satisfv in part the obhigations
under the Prepetition Credit Agreement and certain other prepetition surety-related obligations On December 28, 2007, the Company
gave s notice of intent to redeem the PIK Notes, 1n full, in January 2008 at a price equal to therr redemption price On January 3,
2008 the PIK Notes were redeemed n full
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Also on the Effective Date, the Company entered into a Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement (the Exit Nacilities”) with
Citicorp U S A Inc as Admmistrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Banh. N A as Syndication Agent and certain lenders The Exat
Facihues include a $540 million revolving credit facility (which 1s subject to a borrowing base and can be increased under certain
circumstances and subject to certain conditions) and a $2,960 million term loan credit facihity divided into a $1 960 million tranche B
loan and a $1,000 million tranche C loan The Company borrowed $878 million under the term loan facility on the Effective Date and
the remaining $2,082 million of term loans. which were available lor up to sixty days after the Effective Date have been fully drawn
as described below As of the Effective Date. existing letters of credit under the Predecessor Company s debtor-in-possession (“DIP")
credit agreement of $34 million and existing letters of credit 1ssued under the Predecessor Company s prepetition credit facility of $39
mullton, were rolled over as letters of credit under the Exit Facilities

The obhgations under the revolving credit tacility mature December 27, 2013 and bear interest for the first six months at LIBOR plus
1 75% or at the alternate base rate { ABR,” defined as the greater of Citibank, N A ’s announced prime rate or 0 50% over the Iederal
Funds Rate) plus 0 75%, and thereafter adjusted in accordance with a pricing gnd based on availability under the revolving credit
facihity Interest rates on the pricing gnd range from LIBOR plus 1 50% to LIBOR plus 2 00% and ABR plus 0 50% to ABR plus
1 00% The tranche B term toans mature December 27, 2014 and the tranche C term loans mature December 27, 2015 The tranche C
term loans are subject to a pre-payment premium should the Company choose to prepay the loans prior to December 27, 2011 All
Exat Facilities term loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 1 9375% or at the ABR plus 0 9375% at the Company’s election To the extent
that interest rates change by 25 basis points, the Company s annual interest expense would show a corresponding change of
approximately $4 million

On January 3, 2008, the Company drew an additional $2,082 million under the Exat Factlities, of which $1,642 mullion was used by
the Company to repay or redeem the Repaid Instruments and interest thereon, both as discussed above Given that the Company
mtended to finance the Repard Instruments on a long-term basis, commuments tor such long-term financing existed as ot December
31, 2007 and that such intent was achieved with the refinancing of the Repaid Instruments with long-term borrowings under the Exit
Facilities, each ot the Repaid Instruments was classified as long-termi in the Company s balance sheet as of December 31, 2007

The Company has the following contractual obligations and commercial commitments outstanding at December 31, 2009

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter Total
{Mulhons of Dollars)

Debt obligations $ 97 3 31 s 30 § 30 § 1,853 8§ 935§ 2,976
Interest payments 105 101 101 101 63 21 492
Letters of credit 50 — — — — — 50
Payments for settlement of llabilities subject to

compromise 19 — — R — —_ 39
Pension and vther posternployment benefit

plans 150 148 182 157 147 * 784
Operating leases 35 27 22 19 19 10 132
Total . L - e $ 476 S 307 § 335 8 307 § 2082 § 966 3 4473

*Fundimg requirements beyond 2014 are not available

The Company's ability to obtain cash adequate 1o fund us needs depends generally on the results of its operations, restructuring
imtiatives, and the availability of {inancing Management believes that cash on hand. cash flow from operations and available
borrowings under 1ts Exit Facilities will be sufficient to tund capital expenditures and meet 1ts operating obligations through the end of
2010 In the longer term, the Company believes that 1ts base operauing potential, supplemented by the benefits from 1ts announced
restructuring programs, will provide adequate long-term cash tlows However, there can be no assurance that such mitiatives are
achievable in this regard

The Exat Faciliies contain some affirmative and negative covenants and events of default. including, subject to certain exceptions
restrictions on ncurring additional indebtedness, mandatory prepayment provisions associated with specified asset sales and
dispositions, and Imitations on 1) investments, 1) certam acquisttions, mergers or consolidations, 111) sale and leaseback transacuions,
1v) certamn transactions with affiliates, and v) dividends and other payments in respect ot capital stock The Company was in
compliance with all debt covenants under its Exit Facilities as ot December 31, 2009 Based on current forecasts, the Company
expects to be 1n compliance with the covenants under the Exit Factlities through December 31, 2610
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The Company’s subsidiaries in Brazil, France, Germany, [taly, Japan and Spain are party to accounts recervable factoring
arrangements Gross accounts recetvable factored under these facilities were $217 million and $222 million as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively Of those gross amounts, $190 milhion and $209 million, respectively, were factored without recourse and
treated as a sale Under terms of these factoring arrangements, the Company 15 not obligated to draw cash immediately upon the
factoring of accounts recervable Thus, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has outstanding factored amounts of $4
mullion and $8 mullion, respectively, for which cash has not yet been drawn Expenses associated with receivables factored are
recorded in the consolidated statements of eperations within ~Other income, net

Subsequent Event

The Company has operated an aftermarket distribution center in Venezuela for several years, supplymg imported replacement
automotive parts to the local ndependent aftermarket Since 2005, two exchange rates have existed in Venezuela the official rate,
which has been frozen since 2005 at 2 15 bohivars per U S dollar, and the parallel rate, which floats at a rate much higher than the
official rate Given the existence of the two rates i Venezuela, the Company 1s required to assess which of these rates 15 the most
approptiate for converting the results of its Venezuelan operations mto U S dollars at December 31, 2009 The Company has no
positive intent to repatriate cash at the parallel rate and has demonstrated the abtlity to repatriate cash at the official rate in early
January 2010, thus, the official rate was decmed appropnate for the purposes of conversion into U § dollars

Near the end of 2009, the three year cumulauve inflation rate for Venezuela was above 100%, which requires the Venezuelan
operation te report 1ts results as though the U S dollar 1s 1ts functional currency 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 830, Foreign
Currency Matters, commencing January 1, 2010 { “inflationary accounting™) The tmpact of this transition to a U S dollar functional
currency 1s that any change m the U § dollar value ot bolivai denominated monetary assets and liabilities must be recognized directly
I earnings

At Drecember 31, 2009, the summanized balance sheet of the Company s Venezuelan operations 1s as follows (all balances are in U S
dollars, converted at the official exchange rate of 2 15 bolivar per U S dollar)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 76
Other monetary assets, net 5
Net monetary assets 81
Non-monetary assets, net 5
Total b 86

[n early January 2010, prior to the bolivar devaluation, the Company repatriated $14 mullion at the official rate of 2 13 bolivars to U S
doliar On January 8, 2010 subsequent to this cash repatniation, the ofticial exchange rate was set by the Venezuelan government at
4 3 bolivars per U § dollar, except for certain “strategic industries® that are permutted to buy U S dollars at the rate of 2 6 bolivars per
US dollar Subsequent to this devaluation, the Company has repatnated $11 mullion at this * strategic” rate

The Company estimates that the immediate impact of inflationary accounting tor its Venezuelan operations in 2010 is a loss of
between $13-530 million, largely dependent on the Company’s expected ability to continue to repatnate cash at the “strategic™ rate of
2 6 bolivars per U S dollar versus the ofticial rate 0f 4 3

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
In the normal course of business, the Company 1s subject to market exposure from changes n foreign currency exchange rates interest
rates and raw material prices To manage a portion of these inherent risks, the Company purchases various derivative financial

instruments to hedge against unfavorable marhet thanges The Company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Company s subject to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates due to its global operauons The Company
manufactures and sells its products in North America, South Amenica, Asia, Europe and Africa As a result, the Company's financial
results could be significantly affected by factors such as changes n foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic cenditions in
foreign markets 1n which the Company manufactures and distributes 1ts products The Company's operating results are primarnly
exposed to changes in exchange rates between the U S dotlar and European currencies

As currency exchange rates change translation of the statements of operations of the Company's international businesses into United
States dollars affects year-over-year comparab:lity of operating results The Company does not generally hedge operating translation
risks because cash flows trom international operations are generally reinvested locally Changes in foreign currency exchange rates are
generally reported as a component of stockholders™ equity (deficit) tor the Company’s foreign subsidianies reporting in local
currencies and as a component of income for its foreign subsidiaries using the US doliar as the functional currency The Company s
other comprehensive income (loss) increased by $68 mullion tor the year ended December 31, 2009 and decreased by $252 milhon for
the year ended December 31, 2008 due to cumulative translation adjustments resulting primarily from changes in the U S dollar to the
euro and British pound

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company's net current assets (defined os current assets less current liabihiies) subject to
foreign currency translation rnisk were $807 million and $734 milhion, respectively 1he potential decrease in net current assets from a
hypothetical 10% adversc change in quoted foreign currency exchange rates would be $81 mullion and $73 mulhon, respectively The
sensitivity analysis presented assumes a parallel shift in foreign currency exchange rates Exchange rates rarely move wn the same
direction This assumption may overstate the umpact of changing exchange rates on individual assets and Lhabilities denommnated 1n a
toreign currency

I'he Company generally tries to utilize natural hedges within 1ts foreign currency activities including the matching of revenues and
costs, to minimize foreign currency risk Where natural hedges are not 1n place, the Company considers managing certain aspects of
its foreign currency activities and larger transactions through the use of foreign currency options or forward contracts Principal
currencies hedged have histerically included the euro, British pound, Japanese yen and Canadian dollar The Company had notional
values of $10 milion and $5 mithion of toreign currency hedge contracts outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
that were designated as hedging nstruments tor accounting purposes Unrealized net gains of $1 mullion were recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2008 No amounts were recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive
loss™ as ot December 31, 2009

interest Rate Risk

In connection with the Restructuring Proceedings and 1n accordance with FASB ASC 852, the Predecessor Company ceased recording
interest expense on 115 outstanding pre-petition Notes, Medium-term Notes and Senior Notes effective October 1, 2001 The
Predecessor Company’s contractual interest not accrued or paxd was $162 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 The
Predecessor Company continued to accrue and pay contractual interest on the Senior Credit Agreement in the month incurred, totaling
$129 million for the year ended December 31, 2007

In connection with the consummation of the Plan, on the Effective Date. the Company entered into a lerm Loan and Revolving Credit
Agreement (the “Exat Faciliies ?) The Exat Facihties inciude a $540 mullion revolving credit tacility {which 1s subject to a borrowing
base and can be increased under certain circumstances and subject to certain conditions) and a $2.960 million term loan credit facihty
divided into a $1 960 mithon tranche B loan and a $1 000 mitlion tranche C loan The Company borrowed $878 million under the
term loan tacihty on the Effecuve Date and the remaining $2,082 million of term loans were drawn on January 3, 2008 As of the
Eftective Date, existing letters of credit under the Predecessor Company’s deblor-in-possession credit agreement 1n the approximate
amount of $34 million, and evsung letters of credit 1ssued under the Predecessor Company’s prepetition credit facility in the
approximate amount of $39 million, were rolled over as letters of credit under the Exit Factlities

Che obligations under the revelving credit facility mature December 27, 2013 and bear interest rates that adjust in accordance with a
pricing grid based on avairlability under the revolving credit facthity Interest rates on the pricing grid range trom LIBOR plus | 50% to
LIBOR plus 2 00% The tranche B term loans mature December 27, 2014 and the tranche C term loans mature December 27, 2015
The tranche C term loans are subject to a pre-payment premium, should the Company choose to prepay the loans prior 1o December
27, 2011 Al Exit Facilities term loans shall bear interest at LIBOR plus 1 9375% or at the ABR plus 0 9375% at the Company s
election To the extent that interest rates change by 25 basis points, the Company's annual interest expense would show a
corresponding change ot approximately $4 million
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The Company, during 2008, entered into a series of five-year interest rate swap agreements with a total notional value of
$1,190 million to hedge the variability of interest payments associated with its vanable-rate loans under the Exit Faciliues Through
these swap agreements, the Company has fixed its interest rate at an average nterest rate of approximately 5 37% on the hedged
principal amount of $1,190 muilhion Since the interest rate swaps hedge the varability of interest pavments on vanable rate debt with
the same terms, they qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, unrealized net losses of
$50 million and $67 milhon, respecuvely were recorded 1n  Accumulated other comprehensive loss” as a result of these hedges As
of December 31, 2009, losses of $34 mullion are expected to be reclassified from “Accumulated other comprehensive loss™ to the
consolidated statement of operations within the next 12 months No hedge meffectiveness was recognized for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008

These interest rate swaps reduce the Company’s overall interest rate nsk However, due 10 the remaining outstanding borrowings on
the Company’s Exit Facihties and other borrowing tacilities that continue to have vanable interest raies, management believes that
interest rate nisk to the Company could be matenal 1t there are significant adverse changes n interest rates

Commodity Price Risk

The Company 15 dependent upon the supply of certain raw matenals used 1n its production processes, these raw materials are exposed
to price fluctuations on the open market The primary purpose of the Company s commodity price forward contract activity 1s to
manage the volatihty associated with these forecasted purchases The Company monitors its commodity price risk exposures regularly
to maximize the overall efiectiveness of its commodity tonwvard contracts, including exposures related to natural gas, tin, brass,
bronze, zinc, copper, nickel, lead, high-grade aluminum and aluminum alloy Forward contracts are used to mitigate commodity price
risk associated with raw materials, generally related to purchases forecasi for up to fifteen months inthe futue

Al December 31, 2006, the Predecessor Compzny had 54 commeodity price hedge contracts outstanding that were not designated as
accounting hedge contracts, with a combined notional value of $55 million and a fair value hability of 33 milhon Through March 31,
2007, the Predecessor Company recogruzed all changes wn fair value of these hedges 1n current earmings resulung in unrealized gains
of $10 million recerded to * Cther mcome, net for the three months ended March 31, 2007 Eftective April 1, 2007, the Predecessor
Company completed the required evaluation and documentation te designate the majonty of such contracts as cash flow hedges

The Company had 140 and 364 commodity price hedge contracts outstanding with combined notional values of $28 mullion and $91
million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, of which substantially all mawre within one year Of these cutstanding
contracts, 112 and 346 commodity price hedge contracts with combined nouional values of $26 million and $83 mulhion at December
31, 2009 and 2008 respectively, were designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes Unrealized net gains of $5 muilion
and unrealized net losses of $33 million were recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” as of December, 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively Unrealized net gains of $3 million were recognized in  Other income, net” for the year ended December 31, 2009,
assoclated with meffectiveness on contracts designated as accounting hedges
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management 1s responsible for establishing and mamtaining adequate tnternal control over financial reporting, as such term 15 defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the U § Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Under the supervision and with the participation of
the principal executive and financial officers of the Company, an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial
reporting was conducted based upon the framework 1 fmternal Controfl — Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations (the “COSQ Framework™) of the Treadway Commission Based on the evaluation performed under the
COSO Framework as of December 31, 2009, management has concluded that the Company s internal control over financial reporting
15 effective

Emst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm has audited the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009, as stated 1n their report which 1s included herewn
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Federal-Mogul Corporation

We have audited Federal-Mogul Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria
established 1n Internal Control—Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commussion (the COSO criteria) Federal-Mogul Corporation’s management 1s responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included 1n the
accompanying Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting included as [tem 8 Qur responsibility 1s to express
an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was mamtained 1n all matenal respects Our audit included obtaimng an understanding of internal contrel over
tinancial reporting, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we constdered necessary 1n the circumstances
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basts for our opinion

A company’s internal control over financial reporting 1s a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation ot financial statements for external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertamn to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ot the assets of the
company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary t permut preparation of financial statements
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 1in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or imely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a matenal effect
on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detedt misstatements Also, projections
ot any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the nisk that controls may become inadequate because of changes 1n
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In cur opinion, Federal-Mogul Corporation maintained, 1n all matenal respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on the COSO criterta

We also have audited, 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Federal-Mogul Corporation as of December 31 2009 and 2008 (Successor) and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
{Successor), and 2007 (Predecessor), and our report dated February 23, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 23, 2010 - -
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

['o the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of
Federal-Mogul Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Federal-Mogu! Corporation (the Company) as of December 31
2009 and 2008 (Successor). and the related consolidated statements of operations, sharcholders' equuty (deficit) and cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 {Successor), and 2007 {Predecessor) Our audits also ncluded the financral statement
schedule hsted in the index at 1tem 15(a) These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management QOur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with the standards ot the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those
standairds requite that we plan and peiform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are tree ot
material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial
statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide 2 reasonable basis for our opimion

[n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements reterred 1o above present fairly, in all matenial respects, the consolidated financial
positien of Federal-Mogul Corporation at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with US generally accepted accounting
principles Also, in our opmion, the related financial statement schedule, when constdered n relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all matemal respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note 3 to the consohdated financial statements, on November 8, 2007, the U S Bankruptcy Court entered an order
confirming the Plan of Reorganization, which became effective on December 27, 2007 Accordingly, the accompanying consohdated
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with MNnancial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB °) Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC ) 852, Reorgamizations, (formally AICPA Statement of Posiion 90.7 Finanuial Reporting by Entities 1n
Reorganization under the Bankruptey Cede). for the Successor as a new entity with assets habilities and a capital structure having
carrying values not comparable with prior periods as described 1n Note 3

As discussed 1n Note ! to the consolidated financial statements 1n 2009 the Successor changed 1ts method ot accounting for and
presentation of consolidated net income (loss) attributable to the parent and non-controlling mterest

As discussed n Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, 1n 2007 the Predecessor changed its method of accounting for tax
uncertaintics

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) the
Company’s internal control over financal reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on cnitena established i Internal
Control—Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoring Orgamzations of the Treadway Commussion and our report
dated February 23, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thercon

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 23, 2010
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Milhens of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

Net sales 3 5330 % 6,866 $ 6,914
Cost of products sold (4,538) (5,742} (5,729)
Gross margin 792 1,124 1,185
Selling general and administrative expenses {690) (774) (828)
Adjustment of assets to fair value (17) (451) (61)
Interest expense, net (132) (18%) (19%)
Amortization expense (49) {76) (19
Chapter 11 and UJ K Adnunistration related reorganization expenses, net (3) a7 (81)
Equity earnings of non-consohdated affihates 16 23 38"
Restructuring expense, net (32) (132) (48}
Gain on settlement ot Liabtlities subject to compromise — -— 761
Fresh-start reporting adjustments — — 956
Other income, net 43 37 36
(Loss) income before income taxes R 72) (446) 1,740
Income tax benefit (expense) 39 (19) {332)
Net (loss) tncome {(33) {465) 1,408
Less net (income) loss aitributable to noncontrolling interests (12) (3) 4
Net (loss) tncome attributable to Federal-Mogul $ {(45) $ {468} $ 1.412
Net (Losg) Income Per Common Sharg Attnibutable to Federal-Mogul

Basic $ 046y $§ (469 % 1574
Diluted 3 (046) § {(469) § 13 46

See accompanying notes to consehidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Successor
December 31
2009 2008
{Milhons of Dollars)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cquivalents b 1,034 $ 888
Accounts recervable, net 950 939
Inventories, net 823 894
Prepaid expenscs and other current assets 221 267
Total current assets 3,028 2,988
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,834 1,911
Goodwill and other indefinite-hved intangible assets 1,427 1,430
Definite-lived intangible assets, net 513 564
Other noncurrent assets 323 343
$ 7127 $ 7.236
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current habilitics
Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt 3 97 h Y 102
Accounts payable 537 622
Accrued habilities 410 4383
Current portion of postemployment benefit habihity 61 61
Other current liabilittes 173 204
Total current habilities 1,280 1,472
Long-term debt 2,760 2,768
Postemployment benefits 1,298 1,240
Long-term poruon of deferred income taxes 498 554
Other accrued habihties 192 206
Shareholders' equity
Preferred stock ($ 01 par value, 90,000,000 authorized shares, none 1ssued) — —
Common stock ($ 01 par value, 450,100 000 authorized shares, 100,500,000 1ssued shares,

98,904,500 outstanding shares as of both December 31, 2009 and 2008) 1 1
Addittonal paid-in capital, including warrants 2,123 2,123
Accumulated deficit (313) (468)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (371) (688)
Treasury stock, at cost (17 (17)

Total Federal-Mogul shareholders' equity 1,023 951
Noncontrolling interests 76 45
l'otal shareholders' equity 1,099 996
3 7,127 b 7,236

See accompanyng notes 1o consohdated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Milhions of Dollars)

Cash Provided From (Used By} Operating Activities

Net {loss) income s 33) $ (465) $ 1,408
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided from (used by)
aperating activities

Depreciation and amortization 327 349 354
Gain on settlement of habilities subject to compromuse — — (761)
Fresh-start reporting adjustments — — (956)
Payments from (to) U § Asbestos Trust 40 225 {140)
Payment of interest on pre-petstion debt and notes — —_ (132)
Payments to settle non-debt habilities subject to compromise, net (51) (23) [E2)]
Chapter 11 and U K Administration related reorganization expenses 3 17 81
Payments for Chapter |1 and U K Administration related reorganization
expenses (6} (48) (73)
Adjustment of assets to fair value 17 451 61
Restructuring expense, net 32 132 48
Payments against restructuring hiabihties 94 (40) (67)
Gamn on involuntary conversion (7) {12) —_
[nsurance proceeds from involuntary conversion, excluding capital 7 24 —
Gain on sale of debt investment (%) — —
Gain on sale of assets and businesses — — 8
Change 1n postemployment benefits, including pensions 48 (1) 79
Change n deferred taxes 34) 49 260
Changes 1n operating assets and habilities
Accounts recervable 14 89 47)
Inventories 93 122 15
Accounts pavable (82) (61} 124
Other assets and Liabihites 62 (171) (165)
Net Cash Provided From Operating Activities 328 627 35
Cash Provided From (Used By) Investing Activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (176) (320) (310) w
Nel scttlement trom sale of debt investment 8 — —
Net proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 2 13 26
Insurance proceeds from mvoluntary conversion of capital — 6 —
Net proceeds trom the sale of busincsses — — 14
Praceeds from sale of investments — — 14
Payments to acquire business — (5 (7
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (166} {306) {263}
Cash Provided From (Used By} Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings on exat tacilities — 2,082 2,669
Repayment of Tranche A , Revolver and PIK notes — (L,791) —
Payments to Predecessor Company lenders —_ — (2,701)
Proceeds from borrowings on DIP credut facility — — 669
Principal payments on DIP credit facility —_ — (360)
Principal payments on exit tacilities (30) 22) —
Decrease in other long-term debt —_ (18) (15)
(Decrease) mcrease 1n shori-term debt 3] (29) 66
‘Treasury stock purchase — {17 —_
Net proceeds (payments) from factoring arrangements 4 (W] (43)
Debt amendment / 1ssuance fees (1) (1) (20)
Net Cash (Used By) Provided From Financing Activities (33 197 265
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on cash 19 (55) 29
Increase 1n cash and equivalents 146 463 66
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Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements
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Balance at Januoary 1, 2007,
Predecessor

Net income (loss)

Less net loss attnbutable to
nencontrolling interests

Currency transfation
adpustments and other

Defined benefit plans, net of
$(£2) tax impact

Hedge instruments no tax
impact

Total Comprehensive Income

Adoption of FIN 48

Stoch compensation

Conversion of mandatortly
redeemable securtties, net

Balance at December 31, 2007,
Predecessor

Fresh-start reporting
adjustments

Cancellation of Predecessor
preferred and common stock

Elimination of Predecessor
accumulated deficit and
accumulated other
comprehensne mcome

Issuance of new equity,
including warrants 1n
connection with emergence
from Chapter 11

Fair value adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2007,
Successor

Net (loss) income

1.ess net income attributable to
noncentrolling interests

Currency transtation
adjustments and other

Defined benefit plans, net of §1
tax umpact

Hedge mstruments net of $3 tax
umpact

Taotal Comprehensive Loss

Purchase of treasury stock

Fresh-stact reporting adjustment

Balince at December 31, 2008,
Successor

Net (loss) income
Less net income attributable to
noncontroling interests
Currency translation
adjustments and other
Defined benefit plans, net of
${ 10 tax impact
Hedge mstruments, net of §(19}
tax impact
Total Comprehensive Income
Capttal investment 10 subsidiary
Balance at December 31, 2009,
Successor

Consolhidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION

Series C Accumuolated
ESOP Addttional Retamed Other
Preferved Common Paid-in Earnings Comprehensive  Treasury Stock, Noncontrolling
Stock Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (EL.oss) at Cost Total Interests
(Mulhons of Dollars)
8 28 8 445 § 2160 $  (4,151) § (230) $ — 5 (1,748) § 54
1408 1,408 4)
4 4
223 223 {6}
144 144
®) e
1,770 (10}
(14 (4)
7
4 37 41
28 449 2,204 2.753) 128 — 56 44
283 (449) {2 204) (2,681)
2753 (128) 2625
1 2,123 2,124
44
_— 1 2,123 _ — — 2,124 88
{465) {465) 3,
(3) 3
(252) (252) (2}
(341) 341)
95) (95)
(1136} 1
- - an . 17N .
44)
“— 1 2,123 (468) (638) an 951 45
{33} 33 12
{12y (12
68 68 10
I6 16
33 33
72 22
9
$ — 5 1 8 2,123 § (513) 8 (571) § a7n s 1,03 § 76

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fnancial Statemen Presentatton The predecessor to Federal-Mogul Corporation, (the Predecessor Company™ or the Predecessor™)
and all of its then-existing wholly-owned United States subsidiaries ( U S Subsidiaries ) filed voluntary petitions on October 1, 2001
for reorgamzation under Chapter |1 of Title 11 of the United States Code (the * Bankruptcy Code™) with the United States Bankruptey
Court for the District of Delaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”) On October 1 2001, certain of the Predecessor Company s United
Kingdom subsidiaries (together with the U S Subsidiaries, the Debtors ) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under the
Bankruptcy Code with the Bankruptcy Court On November 8, 2007, the Bankrupicy Court entered an Order (the * Confirmation
Order”} confirming the Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Reorgamzation for Debtors and Debtors-in-Possession (as Modified) (the
Plan™) and entered Findings ot Fact and Conclusions ot Law regarding the Plan (the * Findings ot Fact and Conclusions of Law*) On
November 14, 2007, the United States Dustrict Court for the District of Delaware entered an order atfirming the Confirmation Order
and adopting the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law On December 27, 2007 (the Effective Date” ), the Plan became effective
in accordance with its terms On the Effective Date, the Predecessor Company merged with and into New Federat-Mogul Corporation
whereupon (1) the separate corporate exustence of the Predecessor Company ceased, (n) New Federal-Mogul Corporation became the
surviving corporation and continues to be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware and {1} New Federal-Mogul Corporation
was renamed ‘Federal-Mogu! Corporauon ” (also referred to as “Federal-Mogul.” the Company,” the “Successor Company,” or the
Successor™)

The consolidated financial statements for the period the Predecessor Company was tn Bankruptey were prepared in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification ( ASC™) Topic 852, Reorgamizations (formally
AICPA Statement of Position 90-7, Frnancial Reporting by Entittes in Reorganization under the Bankrupicy Code), and on a gotng
concern basis, which contemplated continuity of operations and realization of assets and liquidation of habilities 1n the ordinary course
of business

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United States ( U S GAAP™), the Company was requured to adopt
fresh-start reporting effective upon emergence trom bankruptcy on December 27, 2007 The Company evaluated the activity between
December 27, 2007 and December 31, 2007 and. based upon the immateriality of such activity, concluded that the use of an
accounting convenience date of December 31, 2007 was appropriate As such tresh-start reporting has been applied as of that date As
a result of fresh-start reporting, financial statements of the Successor Company are not comparable to the financial statements of the
Predecessor Company For further information on fresh-start reporting, sce Note 3

Principles of Consolidation The Company conschdates into 1ts financial statements the accounts of the Company, all wholly-owned
subsidiaries, and any partially-owned subsidiary that the Company has the ability to control Control generally equates to ownership
percentage, whereby investments that are more than 50% owned are consolidated, investments 1n affiliates of 30% or less but greater
than 20% are accounted for using the equity method, and investments 1n affiliates ot 20% or less are accounted for using the cost
method The Company does not hold a controlling interest in any entity based on exposure to economic risks and potential rewards
{vanable interests} for which the Company 1s the primary beneficiary Funther the Company s joint ventures are businesses
cstablished and maintained in connection with the Company s operating strategy and are not special purpose enuities All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated

Use of Estimates 1he preparation of finaneial statements 1n conformity with U S GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that aftect the amounts reported therein Due w0 the mherent uncertainty involved in making estimates. actual results
reported in future periods may be based upon amounis that differ from these esumates

Controlling Ohwnership Mr Carl C [cahn indirectly controls approximately 76% of the voting power of the Company s capital stock
and, by virtue ot such stock ownership 15 able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, including the election of
directors, business strategy and policies mergers or other business combinations, acquisition or disposition of assets, future 1ssuances
of common stock or other securities, incurrence of debt or obtaining other sources of financing. and the payment of dividends on the
Company’s common stock The existence of a controlling stockholder mav have the eftect of making 1t difficult for, or may
discourage or delay, a third party from seching to acquire a majority of the Company s outstanding common stock, which may
adversely affect the market price of the stock
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

Mr Icahn’s nterests may not always be consistent with the Company’s nterests or with the interests of the Company’s other
stockholders Mr Carl C Icahn and entities controlled by him may also pursue acquisitions or business opportunities that may or may
not be complementary to the Company’s busmess To the extent that conflicts ot interest may arise between the Company and Mr
[cahn and his atfiliates, those conflicts may be resolved in a manner adverse to the Company or 1ts other shareholders

Cash and Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities ot 90 days or less from the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents

Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Trade accounts receivable 1s stated at net realizable value, which
approximates tair value The Company does not generally require collateral for its trade accounts recervable Accounts receivable 1s
reduced by an allowance for amounts that may become uncollectible 1n the future This estimated allowance 18 based primanly on
management’s evaluation of specific balances as the batances become past due, the financial condiion of 1ts customers and the
Company’s histerical experience of write-offs The Company’s general policy for uncollectible accounts, 1f not reserved through
specific examination procedures, 1s to reserve based upon the aging categories of accounts receivable and whether amounts are due
from an original equipment manufacturer (“OEM™) or aftermarket customer Past due status 15 based upon the invoice date of the
original amounts outstanding Included in selling, general and administration ("SG& A™)} expenses are bad debt expenses of $5 millton,
$6 million and $1 mullion tor the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively Account balances are charged oft
against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery 1s considered remote The
Company’s allowances for deubtful accounts were $19 million and $27 milhion at December 3t, 2009 and 2008 respectively

Federal-Mogul subsidiaries in Brazil, France, Germany, Italy, Japan and Spamn are party to accounts receivable factoring
arrangements Gross accounts receivable factored under these tacihities were $217 mulhion and $222 milhion as of December 31, 2009
and 2008. respectively Of those gross amounts, $190 million and $209 mulion, respectively, were factored without recourse and
treated as a sale Under terms of these factoring arrangements, the Company 1s not obligated to draw cash immediately upon the
factoring of accounts receivable Thus, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, cash has not yet been drawn related to outstanding factored
amounts of $4 million and $8 mullion, respectively Expenses associated with recervables factored are recorded in the consolidated
statements of operations within “Other mcome, net’

Inmventories Upon emergence from bankruptcy, the Successor Company values inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost
determined on a first-in, tiist-out (“FIFO™) basis As a result of both the adoption of the FIFO inventory valuation methodology and
the application of fresh-start reporting, the Predecessor Company’s last-in, firstout (“*LIFO™) and other inventory reserves were
eliminated as of December 31, 2007 The value of inventories has also been reduced for excess and obsolete inventories based on
management s teview of on-hand inventories compared to historical and estimated tuture sales and usage

Prior to emerging from bankruptcy, the Predecessor Company vatued inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined
on a FIFQ basis primarily outside the United States and on a LIFO basis for specific U § subsidiaries based upon the use of such
valuation methodology at the time those subsidiaries were acquired The Predecessor Company used the LIFO method to determme
cost for 40% of 1ts inventory at December 31, 2007, with the remaining inventory being costed using the FIFO method It all
inventories had been valued at current cost, amounts reported prior to fresh-start reporting would have been increased by $77 mullion
as of December 31, 2007

Long-Lived Assets As a result of fresh-start reporting long-lived assets such as property plant and equipment (PP&E™) that were
purchased prior to January 1, 2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a
lower value was appropriate PP&E purchased during 2008 and 2009 were recorded at cost Definite-hived intangible assets have been
stated at estimated fair value Long-lived assets are periodically reviewed tor imparment indicators [f impairment indicators exust, the
Company performs the required analysis and records an impairment charge, 1f required. in accordance with the subsequent
measurcment provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Pioperty, Plamt & Equipment 1If the carrying value of a long-lived asset 18
considered impatred, an impairment charge 1s recorded for the amount by which the carrying value ot the long-lived asset exceeds 1ts
esumated tfair value Depreciation and amortization 1s computed principally by the straight-line methed for financial reporting
purposes and by accelerated methods for income tax purposes
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

Indefinite-tved Intangible Assets As of December 31, 2007, indefinute-lived intangible assets. pnmanly consisting of goodwill and
trademarks, were stated at estimated tair value as a result of fresh-start reporting Prior to the application of fresh-start reporting,
indefinite-lived intangible assets were carried at fustorical value Indefimite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
annually as ot Octaber 1, or more frequently 1f impairment indicators exist, in accordance with the subsequent measurement
provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (- FASB ASC 350°) The impairment analysis compares the
esumated fair value of these assets to the related carrying value, and an impmrment charge is recorded for any excess of carrying value
over esumated fair value The estimated fair value 15 based upon consideration of various valuation methodologies, including
guideline transaction muluples, multiples of current earnings, and projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with
the risk involved

Pensron and Other Postemployment Obligations Pension and other postemployment benefit costs are dependent upon assumptions
used in calculaung such costs These assumptions include discount rates health care cost trends, expected returns on plan assets, and
other tactors In accordance with U S GAAP, actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over
future periods and, accordingly, generally affect recognized expense and the recorded obhgation in future pertods

Revente Recogmition The Company records sales when products are shipped and title has transferred to the customer, the sales price
15 fined and determinable, and the collectability of revenue is reasonably assured Accruals for sales returns and other allowances are
provided at the ttme of shipment based upon past experience Adjustments to such returns and allowances are made as new
information becomes available

Shipping and Handling Costs The Company recognizes shipping and handhing costs as incurred as a component of cost of products
sold in the statements of operations

Engneering and Tooling Costs  Pre-production tooling and engingering costs that the Company will not own and that will be used in
producing products under long-term supply arrangements are expensed as incurred unless the supply arrangement provides the
Company with the noncancelable nght to use the tools, or the reimbursement of such costs 1s agreed to by the customer
Pre-production tooling costs that are owned by the Company are capitalized as part of machinery and equipment, and are depreciated
over the shorter of the tool’s expected lite or the duration of the related program

Research and Development The Company expenses research and development (F R&D ) costs as mcurred R&D expense including
product engineering and validation costs, was $140 million, $173 million and $178 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007 respecuively As a percentage of OEM sales R&D expense was 4 7%, 4 1% and 4 2% for the years ended December
31,2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

Advertising Costs Advertising and promotion expenses for continuing operations are expensed as incurred and were $38 million, $46
million and $48 million for the vears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

Restructining The costs contained within * Restructuring expense, net’ 1n the Company’s consolidated statements of operations are
comprised of two types employec costs (principally termination benetits) and facihty closure costs Termination benefits are
accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 712, Compensation — Nometirement Postemplovment Benefits, and are recorded
when it is probable that employees will be entitled te benetits and the amounts can be reasonably estimated Estimates of termunation
benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the simianty of benefits under the current plan and prior plans, and
the existence of statutory required minimum benefits Facility closure and other costs are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 420. Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations, and are recorded when the Lability 15 incurred

Rebates/Sales Incentines The Company accrues for rebates pursuant to specitic arrangements with certain of 1ts customers primarily

n the aftermarket Rebates generally provide for price reductions based upon the achievement of specified purchase volumes and are
recorded as a reduction of sales as eamed by such customers
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Foreign Curiency Translatton Exchange adjustments related to international currency transactions and translation adjustments for
internattonal subsidiaries whose tunctional currency is the United States dollar {princtpally those located 1n highly mflationary
economtes) are retlected in the consolidated statements of operations Translauon adjustments of international subsidianes for which
the local currency s the functional currency are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss Deferred taxes are not provided on translation adjustments as the earnings of the subsidiaries are considered to be
permanently reinvested As a result of fresh-start reporting the December 31, 2007 balance of accumulated other comprehensive
income of the Successor Company was reset to zero

Em nonmental Liabilities The Company recogrizes environmental llabilities when a toss 1s probable and reasonably estimable Such
habihties are generally not subject to insurance coverage Engineering and legal specialists within the Company estimate each
environmental obligation based on current law and existing technologies Such estimates are based primarily upon the estimated cost
of nvestigation and remediation required and the likelihood that other potentially 1esponsible parties will be able to fulfill their
commitments at the sites where the Company may be jointly and severally Lable with such parties The Company regularly evaluates
and revises (ts esumates for environmental obhgations based on expenditures against established accruals and the availlabihity of
additional information

Condittonal Asset Retirement Qbligations The Company records conditional asset retirement obligations { CARQ ) n accordance
with FASB ASC Tlopic 410, Asset Retuement and Environmental Obligations The Company’s primary CARQ activittes relate to the
removal of hazardous building materials at its taciliies The Company records a CARO when the amount can be reasonably
estimated, typically upon the expectation that a facility may be closed or sold

Derrvative Financial [nstruments The Company uses interest rate swaps, currency swaps and commodity torward contracts to
manage volatility of underlying exposures The Company recogmzes all of its denivative instruments as either assets or habihities at
fair value The accounting for changes in the fair value {1 e , gains or losses) of a derivauve instrument depends on whether 1t has been
designated, and 1s effective, as a hedge and further, on the type of hedging relationship For those derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as hedging instruments, a company must designate the hedging instrument based upon the exposure being
hedged, as a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge or a hedge of a net investment 1n a foreign operation Gamns and losses relaled to a
hedge are either recognized in income immedately to oftset the gain or loss on the hedged item or are deferred and reported as a
component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss’ and subsequently recogmzed in earntngs when the hedged item afiects
carmings The change in tair value of the ineffective portion of a financial instrument, determined using the hypothetical denvative
method, 1s recogmized 1n earnings immediately The gain or loss related to financial instruments that are not dessgnated as hedges are
recogmzed immediately in earnings The Company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purpeses The Company's objectives for holding derivatives are to minimize risks using the most cffecuve and cost-efficient methods
available

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements In July 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board { FASB™) released the
authontative version of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification ( FASB ASC ) as the single source of authoritative
nongovernmental U S GAAP The FASB ASC supersedes all existing accounting standard documents recognized by the FASB Rules
and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal secuiities laws are also sources of authontative U S GAAP for SEC
registrants  All other non-SEC accounting literature not icluded in the FASB ASC will be considered nonauthontative The FASB
ASC 15 effecuve for fiscal years und intenim periods ending after September 15, 2009 The adoption of the FASB ASC had no impact
on the Company s consohdated financial position, results of operations or cash flows

In Septermber 2006, the FASB 1ssued guidance now codified within FASB ASC Topic 820, Farr Value AMeasurements and Disclosures
( FASB ASC 820™), which defines tair value, establishes a framework for measuring tair value and expands disclosures about fawr
value measurements The pronouncement was eftective for fiscal years beginming after November 15, 2007, and intenim periods
within those fiscal years In February 2008, the FASB released addiuonal guidance now codified under FASB ASC 820, which
provided for delayed application ot certain gmdance related to non-linancial assets and non-tinancial habilitics, except for items that
are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those vears The Company adopted certain provisions of FASB ASC 820
eftective December 31, 2007 m cennection with its fresh-start reporting Pursuant to the requirements of FASB ASC 820, the
Company adopted the provisions with respect to its non-financial assets and non-financial habilities effective January 1, 2009 The
implementation ot this pronouncement did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows

70

Source FEDERAL MOGUL CORP 10-K February 23 2010 Soweted by Morningsty - Documct Seeearch ™




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

In December 2007 the FASB i1ssued guidance now codified within FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidation { FASB ASC 8107), which
requires that ownership interests in subsidianies held by parties other than the parent are clearly identitied In addition, FASB ASC 810
requires that the amount of consolidated net income (loss) attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest be clearly
wdentifted and presented on the face of the consolidated statements of operauons The provisions of FASB ASC 810 are effective for
financial statements 1ssued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008 As required, FASB ASC 810
was adopted through retrospective application, and all prior period amounts have been adjusted accordingly The adoption of FASB
ASC 810 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows

In March 2008. the FASB ssued guidance now codified as FASB ASC Topic 815, Dervatives and Hedging ('FASB ASC 815 ),
which requires enhanced disclosures about an entity s derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of
financial reporting FASB ASC 815 15 effective for financial statements 1ssued for fiscal yvears and interim pertods beginnming after
November 15, 2008 Ihe Company adopted these provisiens of FASB ASC 815 on a prospective basis as of January 1, 2009 The

adoption of FASB ASC 815 did not have a matenal impact on the Company s consohdated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows

In April 2009, the FASB 1ssued gwidance now codified as FASB ASC Topic 825 Financial Instruments ( FASB ASC 8257), which
extends the existing annual far value disclosure requirements to intenim financial statements The new guidance 15 effective for
financial statements tssued for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009 The adoption ot these provisions of FASB ASC 8235 did not
have a material impact on the Company s consolhidated financial position, results of operations or cash tflows

In May 2009, the FASB 1ssued gwdance now codified as FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Fvents (" FASB ASC 855 7), which
defines and establishes the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a reporting entity evaluates transactions
and events for potential disclosure in the financial statements in addition to disclosing the date through which such events have been
cvaluated The guidance 1s effective for financial statements 1ssued for fiscal years and interim penods ending after June 15, 2609 and
15 to be applied prospectively The adoption of FASB ASC 855 did not have a matenial impact on the Company s consolidated
financal position results ot operations or cash tflows In accordance with FASB ASC 855, the Company has evaluated subsequent
events through February 23, 2010, which 15 the date on which these financial statements were 1ssued

In June 2009, the FASB 1ssued accounting gmdance on accounting for transters of financial assets This guidance amends previous
guidance by including the elimination of the qualfying special-purpose entity ( QSPE™) concept, a new participating inierest
definition that must be met for transters ot portions of financial assets to be eligible for sale accounting, clarificattons and changes to
the derecognition criteria for a transfer to be accounted for as a sale, and a change to the amount of recognized gan or loss on a
transfer of financial assets accounted for as a sale when benetiual interests are received by the transferor Additronally, the gurdance
requires extensive new disclosures regarding an entity s involvement in a transfer of financial assets Finally, existing QSPEs (prior to
the effective date ot this guidance) must be evaluated for consohdation by reporing entiies i accordance with the applicable
consohdation gurdance upon the ehimination of this concept The Company will adopt this new guidance effective January 1. 2010 and
1s currently evaluating the provisions ot this guidance and the impact on 1ts consohdated financial statements

In June 2009, the FASB 1ssued accounting guidance on the consolidation of vanable interest entities { VIE’} This new guwdance
revises previous gurdance by eliminating the exemption for qualifving special purposes entities, by establishing a new approach for
determining who should consolidate a VIE The Company will adopt this new guidance effective January 1. 2010 and 1s currently
cvaluating the provisions of this guidance and the impact on its consoltdated financial statements

Reclassifications Certain items in the prior years” financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the presentation used m
2009
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
2 REORGANIZATION UPON EMERGENCE FROM CHAPTER 11 FROCEEDINGS
Background

On October 1, 2001 (the “Petition Date™) the predecessor to Federal-Mogul Corporation and all of its then-existing wholly-owned
United States subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for reorganizatton under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptey Code with the Bankruptey
Court Also on October 1, 2001, 133 affilintes of Predecessor Federal-Mogul incorporated under the laws of England and Wales tiled
voluntary petitions for reorgamization under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptey Code in the Bankruptcy Court and commenced
admimistration proceedings 1n the High Court of Justice, Chancery Divisien, in London, England under the United Kingdom
Insolvency Act 1986 An additional affilate of Predecessor Federal-Mogul incorporated under the laws of Scotland filed a voluntary
petstion for reorgamization under Chapter 11 of the Bankrupicy Code in the Bankruptey Court on the Petition Date, and commenced
administration proceedings betore the Court ot Session 1n Edinburgh, Scotland in April 2002

Predecessor Federal-Mogul, together with 1ts United States and United Kingdom affiliates that commenced bankrupiey proceedings in
the United States and admumstration proceedings 1n the Umted Kingdom, are referred to collectively as the Debtors  Subsidharies of
Predecessor Federal-Mogul other than the aforementioned U 8 and U K subsidiaries were not party to any nsolvency proccedings
and operated in the normal course during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases and the U K admimistration proceedings

Following a Confirmation Hearing that began on June 18, 2007 and concluded on October 2 2007. and following the consensual
resolution of various legal objections to confirmation of the Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Reorgamzation (As Modified) for
Predecessor Federal-Mogul and certain of 1ts affiliates (the ‘Plan™), the Bankruptcy Cowl wntered an order on November 8, 2007
confirming the Plan and entered detailed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law with respect to the Plan On November 14, 2007,
the United States District Court for the District of Delaware (the “District Court ) entered an order affirming the Coafirmation Order
and adopting the INndings ot Fact and Conclusions of Law The Confirmation Order became final and non-appealable thirty days after
its affirmance by the District Court The Plan became effective in accordance with its terms on December 27, 2007 (the Effective
Date™)

On the Effective Date, the Predecessor Company merged with and into New Federal-Mogul Corporation, a Delaware Corporation,
whereupon (1) the separate corporate existence of the Predecessor Company ceased, (1) New Federal-Mogul Corporation became the
surviving corporation and continues to be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware and (1) New Federal-Mogul Corperation
was renamed " Federal-Mogul Corporation ” ("Federal-Mogul", the "Company”, the Successor Company , or the " Successor )

From Octaber 1, 2001 through December 27 2007, the Debtors operated their businesses as debtors-in-passesston 1n accordance with
the Bankruptcy Code The chapter 11 cases of the Debtors {collectively, the - Chapter 11 Cases ) were jointly admnistered under Case
No 01-10578(JKF) The Debtors filed for relief under Chapter 11 in response to a sharply increasing number ot asbestos-related
claims and their demand on the Debtors cash flows and hiquidity

Company Voluntary Arrangements and Discharge of UK. Administration Proceedings

The commencement of the administration proceedings in the United Kingdom resuited in the appointment of certain admumistrators
(the - Administrators™) to oversee the businesses of the Debtors that were incorporated under the laws of England and Wales (the
UK Debtors™) Predecessor Federal-Mogul the Admumistrators of the U K Debtors and the co-proponents of the Plan {the * Plan
Proponents™) entered into an agreement on September 26, 2005 outlining the terms and conditions of distributions to creditors of the
U K Debtors (the “U K Settlement Agreement” ) A copy of the U K Scttlement Agreement was filed with the SEC on Form 8-K on
September 30, 2005

The U K Settlement Agreement contemplated the proposal by the Admimistrators of Company Voluntary Arrangements { CVAs™) for
certain of the U K Debtois, which CVAs would follow the basic terms specitied in the U K Settlement Agreement In mid-2006, the
Administrators proposed CVAs for 51 of the U K Debtors {the * CVA Debtors ) Following approval of the CVAs by the requisite
majonties of creditors and shareholders the CVAs became effective on October 11 2006, resolving claims (other than those dealt
with by the Plan) against the principal U K Debtors
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Upon the 2006 effective date of the CVAS, the Predecessor Company transferred to the Admunistrators approximately $750 million
for
{1)  settlement of claims relating to two U K pension schemes,
(1) settlement of general unsecured claims against the CVA Deblors {other than certain unsecured claims specifically excluded
pursuant to the terms of the CVAs),
(1) settlement of asbestos property damage claims payable under the CVAs,
(1v)  distnbution to a U K asbestos trust established under the CVAs for payment to holders of asbestos-related personal injury
claims against the CVA Debtors ansing {rom exposure to asbestos that oceurred in whole or predominantly 1n the United
Kingdom, Australia and certain other countries as specified in the CVAs ( “CVA Asbestos Claims™), and
(v)  other miscellaneous CVA-related matters, such as expenses relating to the admirustration and operation of the CVAs and
the U K asbestos trust

The trustees of the U K asbestos trust will pay dividends to holders of CVA Asbestos Claims from the U K asbestos trust Amounts
paid by the Predecessor Company to fund the U K asbestos trust were recorded by the Predecessor Company as a reduction to
asbestos liabilities subject to compromise Amounts paid to settle claims relating to the U K pension plans tirst reduced the recorded
hability to zero, with the payment 1n excess of the recorded hability recorded as a setilement charge, approximating $500 mullion, 1n
the Predecessor Company s 2006 Consolidated Statement of Operations

On December 1, 2006, the discharge of the admimstrauon proceedings for the principal UK Debtors became effective That
discharge ended those U K Debtors” administration proceedings On February 6, 2008, the High Court of Justice in London, England
approved the discharge of the administration proceedings for all 70 of the U X Debtors that did not have CVAs and whose
administration proceedings were 1n effect as ot that date The Company intends to have those remamng 70 U K Debtors, virtually all
of which are dormant entities, erther hquidated under the laws of England and Wales or struck from the English register of compantes
in the near term The discharge of those U K Debtors administration proceedings will be eftective immediately before the passage ot
a reselution to hquidate the U K Debtor in question or the making of an application to strike off the U K Debtor in question

Plan of Reorganmization

In carly 2007, the Debtors and other Plan Proponents solicited votes to accept or reject the Plan through a process approved by the
Bankruptcy Court The Plan Proponents comprised the overwhelming majouity ot sigmficant stakeholders in the Chapter 11 Cases.
including representatives of (1) the holders of current and future asbestos-related persenal mjury claims against the Debtors, (1) the
holders of unsecured claims against the Debtors, (111} the holders of equity interests in Predecessor Federal-Mogul, and (1v) the holders
of obligations incurred under Predecessor Federal-Mogul s pre-Petition Date secured credit facility

On june 13, 2007, the Debtors™ voting agent filed the results of the Plan voting process with the Bankruptcy Court, which showed that
all classes of claims against and equity interests tn the Debtors voted to accept the Plan by margins in excess of the Bankruptcy Code
requirements for plan acceptance All classes of asbestos personal injury claims voted to accept the Plan by margins in excess of those
required for the imposition of an asbestos trust and channeling yunction pursuant to section 524(g) ot the Bankruptey Code The
legal representative for future asbestos claimants also supported approval of the Plan

The Plan provides for distributions of cash and/or securities to be made to holders of pre-Petition Date claims aganst the Debtors as
well as certan claims that arose during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases Key provisions ot the Plan, including significant
distributions to impiement the Plan. include the following
e On the Effective Date. the Company distributed all ot 1ts newly-1ssued Class B Common Stock {representing 50 1% of all of
its newly-1ssued common stock) to the U S Asbestos Trust (defined below), subject to the Company retamning possessory
secunty interests in certan of that stock to secure obligations of the U S Asbestos Trust te the Company The Company also
distnibuted certain insurance-related rights and proceeds to the tJ § Asbestos Trust on the Effective Date
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*  On the Effective Date, the Company distributed all of its Class A Common Stock (representing 49 9% of all of its
newly -1ssued common stock) to a disbursing agent for further distnibution to the holders of Predecessor Federal-Mogul’s
pre-bankruptcy note debt and to those holders ot unsecured claims against Predecessor Federal-Mogul and 1ts U S Debtor
subsidiaries that etected under the Plan to recerve a stock distribution 1n lien of a cash distributicn on account of their claims

*  On the Effective Date. the Company issued new Tranche A term loans in the amount of $1,335 mulhon and senior
subordinated third priority payment-in-hind notes { ‘PIK Notes™) i the approximate amount of $305 million to sahsfy claims
under Predecessor Federal-Mogul's pre-Peution Date secured credit facility and pre-Petiion Date claims on account of
certamn surety bonds The new Tranche A term loans were repaid and the PIK Notes were redeemed by the Company on
January 3. 2008 from proceeds of its new Effective Date Exit Facilities

e On the Eftective Date, the Company repaid approximately $761 million in obligauons under the debtor-in-possession
financing facility entered into during the Chapter 11 Cases

¢ On the Eftective Date, the Company paid approximately $132 million tor settlement ot an Admimistrative Expense Claim (as
defined 1n the Plan) en account of adequate protection payments owed to the holders of Predecessor Federal-Mogul’s notes
1ssued prior to the Petition Date

* On or after the Effective Date, the Company distributed 6,951,871 warrants (the ‘Warrants™) {o the disbursing agent for
further distribution to holders of common stock, convertible preferred stock, and convertible subordinated debentures
(lollowing the deemed conversion of such debentures under the Plan) of Predecessor Federal-Mogul that wete cancelled
under the Plan Each Warrant provides the holder thereof with the right to purchase one share of Class A Common Stock of
the Company at $45 815 per share from the Effective Date through December 27, 2014

The Plan further provides that holders of general unsecured claims against the US Debtors that did not elect to receive distributions
ot Class A Common Stock on account of their clmms will receive cash distributions totaling 35% ot the allowed amount of their
claims, subject to reduction in the event the total amount of such claims, after considering the value of distnbutions of Class A
Common Stock 1n heu of cash, cxceeds $258 million Those distributions will be made 1n three annual installments The first
insiallment payments were made to holders of unsecured claims against the US Debtors during March 2008 The Company has
accrued $39 milhion and $51 milhion tor payment of unsecured claims agminst the U S Debtors as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively At December 31, 2008, $21 milhion of the accrued amount was classified as noncurrent

lhe Plan also provides that payments will be made to holders of certain allowed Administrative Expense Claims (as defined in the
Plan} and professional advisors in the Chapter 11 Cases [he Company accrued $44 nullion for payment of such claims as of
December 31, 2007, including $35 mullion for professional tees accrued by the Predecessor Company These amounts were paid out in
2008

Estabhishment and Operation of the U S Asbestos Trust and U K Asbestos Trust

Scction 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code provides in general terms that, if certain specified conditions are saustied, a court may as part
of a bankruptcy plan of reorganization 1ssue a permanent injunction preventing entities from taking legal action against a debtor to
collect recover, or receive payment on asbestos-related claims where the bankruptcy plan provides that these claims are to be paid by
an asbestos trust established under section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code

On the Ettective Date, 1n accordance with the Plan, an asbestos personal injury trust qualifving under section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy
Code (the “U § Asbestos Trust™) was created Pursuant to and on the terms specified 1n the Plan and the Confirmation Order, the U S

Asbestos Trust has assumed liabdity for all asbestos-related persenal injury claims ot the Debtors The U S Asbestos Trust will make
payments to holders of asbestos personal injury claims 1n accordance with the trust distnibution procedures that were filed with the
Bankruptcy Court as an exhibit to the Plan, with the exception of asbestos-related personal injury claims against the U K Debtors that
arc to be evaluated and paid by the U K Asbestos Trust The Plan contains an mjunction 1ssued by the Bankruptcy Court and affirmed
by the District Court pursuant to section 524(g) ot the Bankruptcy Code that expressly forbids any and all actions against the Debtors,
their respective subsidianes, and certain of their affihates, for the purpose of, directly or indirectly, collecting recovering or receiving
payments or recovery with respect to all direct or indirect claims relating to asbestos-related personal injury claims
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The CVAs established a U K Asbestos Trust which shall provide for the sole and exclusive treatment and payment of the CVA

Asbestos Claims The U K Asbestos Trust 15 separate from the U S Asbestos [tust, and was funded by the Predecessor Company
when the CVAs became effective in 2006

As part of the Plan, the U S Asbestos Trust 1ssued on the Effective Date a note 1 the amount of $125 mullion to the Company The
1ssuance of that note reflected the fact that certamn of the asbestos personal injury claims that had been anticipated to be pawd from the
U 8 Asbestos Trust prior to entry into the U K Global Settlement will instead be paid from the U K Asbestos Trust, which had been
previously funded by the Predecessor Company The $125 milhon note had a maturity date of January 11, 2008 and was repayable in
either cash or through the Company taking ownership of 6,958,333 shares of Class B Common Stock of the Company that were
pledged to secure the $125 million note The note was repaid by the U § Asbestos Trust on the maturity date

Pneumo Abex Settlement and Ongoing Bankruptey-Related Matters

The Plan contemplated that one of two alternative settlements would be implemented by and between certain of the Debtors, on the
one hand, and Cooper Indusinies, LLC ( ‘Cooper’ ), Preumo Abex LLC ( Pneumo Abex ), and certain of thesw affiliates, on the other
hand The first of these alternatives was known as the Plan A” Settlement and was detailed 1n an addendum of additional provisions
filed with the Plan (as subsequently amended, the “Addendum } Ihe Plan A Settlement contemplated 1n general terms that Cooper
and Pneumo Abex would make 3 combined contribution of $756 million, plus the contribution of certain rights and additional
consideration, to the U S Asbestos Trust, which would be placed into a segregated subfund of the U S Asbestos Trust for the
satisfaction of Pneumo Asbestos Claims {(as defined in the Addendum} Pneumo Asbestos Claims would be payable exclusively from
such subtund, and a court injunction would prevent the assertion of Pneumo Asbestos Claims against any of the Pneumo Protected
Parties (as defined in the Addendum)

T'he second altemmative settlement was the “ Plan B Seutlement, pursuant to which the U S Asbestos Trust would pay $138 mullion to
Cooper and $2 mullion to Pneumo Abex 1n satisfaction of the indirect asbestos claims of those enuties and their affiliates against the
Debtors Under that settlement, the Pneumo Protected Parties (including Cooper and Pneumo Abex) would not receive the benefit of
any court injunctions, and Pneumo Asbestos Claims would remain assertable against them in the tort system Pneumo Asbestos
Claims will not be assertable against the Successor Company or any of its affiliates under either settlement Both the Plan A
Settlement and the Plan B Settlement provided for a broad release of claims from Cooper, Pneumo Abex and various of their affihates
in tavor of the Suceessor Company

Contemporaneously with confirmation of the Plan, the Bankruptey Court approved the Plan B Settlement On September 30, 2008, the
Bankruptcy Court 1ssued an order denying implementation and approval of the Plan A Settlement On Oclober 1, 2008, Cooper
notified the Debtors that 1t had termuinated the Plan A Settlement, and, on that date, the releases and settlements contained 1n the Plan
B Settlement became effective

On the Eftective Date the Company, on behalf of the U S Asbestes Trust, placed $140 mullion needed to fund the Plan B Settlement
inte an escrow account, where 1t has been paid out as part of the implementation of the Plan B Settlement [n exchange for the funding
by the Company, the U S Asbestos Trust 1ssued a $140 milhion note payable to the Company with a matunity date 60 days after the
Effective Date The U S Asbestos Trust s obligations under the $140 mitlion note were secured by a possessory security nterest in
7.793.333 shares of Class B Common Stock of the Company previously 1ssued to the US Asbestos Trust Following the exercise by
Thornwood Associates Limited Partnership of its option to purchase trom the U S Asbestos Trust the Company's Class B Common
Stock, the $140 mullion note was repaud by the US Asbestos Trust on February 25, 2008 at which time the possessory security
mterest n 7.793 333 shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock was released The note recevable 1s sncluded in other current
assets as of December 31, 2007

Various matters relating to the Chapter 11 Cases continue to be litigated 1n the Bankruptcy Court or have been litigated therein and are
awatting rulings The ongoing pursuit of these matters does not affect the discharges releases and ijunctions atforded to the Debtors
under the Plan
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Discharge, Releases and Injunctions Pursuant to the Plan and the Confirmation Order

I'he Plan and Cenfirmation Order contain various discharges, mjunctive provisions and releases that became operative upon the
Eftective Date, including (1) discharge {except as otherwise provided 1n the Plan and Confirmation Qrder) of each of the Debtors of all
pre-Effective Date obligations in accordance with the Bankruptcy Code, and (1) various injunctions providing, among other things,
that, all creditors and interest holders of any of the Debtors {or their respective estates) shall be prohibited from taking any action
apainst the Debtors with respect to such discharged obligations

Dismissal of Certain U K Subsidiaries’ Chapter 11 Cases

On the Effecuve Date, in accordance with a previously-entered order ot the Bankruptcy Court, the Chapter 11 Cases of 75 of the
Company’s U K subsidiaries were dismissed Each of those U K subsidiaries has either tew or {in most cases) no known third-party
creditors, has no history of using asbestos or manufacturing, setling or distnbuting asbestos-containing products, and has never to the
Debtors’ knowledge been named 1n any asbestos-related lawsuits or comparable proceedings None of the U K subsidianies whose
Chapter 11 Cases were dismissed was a party to the Plan

Chapter 11 And U.K. Admanistration Related Reorganization Expenses

Chapter 11 and U K Administration related reorganization expenses in the consolidated statements of operations consist of legal,
financial and advisory fees, including fees of the U K Adminstrators, critical employee retention costs, and other directly related
inteinal costs as follows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Mullons of Dollars)
Protessional fees directly related to the filing 5 3 % 17 $ 73
Cnitical employee retention costs — — 8
3 3 $ 17 $ 8l

3. FRESH-START REPORTING

The Predecessor Company s emergence from the Chapter 11 Cases resulted 1n a new reporting entity for accounting purposes and the
adoption of fresh-start reporting in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 852 Reorganzations { FASB ASC 852°) Since the
rcorganization value of the assets of the Successor Company immediately before the date of confirmation of the Plan was less than the
total ot all post-petitton Liabihities and allowed claims, and the holders of the Predecessor Company s voting shares immediately
before confirmation of the Plan received less than 50 percent of the vouing shares of the emerging entity, the Successor Company
adopted fresh-start reporting

Following confirmation of the Plan by the Bankruptcy Court on November 8, 2007 and the affirmance of that confirmation by the
District Court on November 14, 2007 the Plan required a number of conditions precedent to be sausfied prior to it becoming eflective
These conditions included, but were not hmited to (1) the establishment of the US Asbestos Trust and the transter of the Class B
Common Stock and certain additional assets thereto, (1) the entry by all parties into the documents governing the U § Asbestos [Tust
and numerous other corporate-related documents, (111) the Disttict Court order confirming the Plan becoming a final, nen-appealable
order, and (1v) the closing of the Company’s post-bankruptey secured credit faciliues Under the terms of the Plan, the Plan could not
become effective without such conditions being satisfied or waived The first date on which all of the conditions precedent set forth in
the Plan were satistied was December 27, 2007, which corresponds with the Effective Date of the Plan As such, the Company was
required to adopt fiesh-start reporting as of December 27 2007

The Company analyzed the transactions that occurred during the four-day period trom December 28, 2007 through December 31,
2007, and concluded that such transactions were not material individually or 1n the aggregate as they represenied approximately 1% of
total revenues. gross margin, selling. general and administrative cxpenses and income before taxes As such, the Company used
December 31, 2007 as the date for adopting fresh-start reporting in order to coincide with the Company’s normal financial closing for
the month of December Upon adoption of fresh-start reporting. the recorded amounts of assets and habilities were adjusted to reflect
thewr estimated tair values Accordingly, the reported histomcal financial statements of the Predecessor Company prior to the adoption
of fresh-start reportuing for periods ended prior to December 31, 2007 are not comparable to those of the Successor Company
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

The Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan based upon a reorganization value ot the Company between $4,369 miilion and $4.715
muillon, which was estimated using various valuation methods, including (1) a companson of the Company and its projected
performance to the market values of comparable companies (supporung a value between $3 6 billion and $4 0 billion), (1) a review
and analysis of several recent transactions of companies 1 similar industries to the Company (supporting a value between $4 9 billion
and $5 3 billion), and (i} a calculation of the present value of the future cash flows { discounted cash flow” or DCF™) of the
Companv under 1ts projections (supporting a value between $4 4 billton and 54 7 billion) These three valuation methods were
weighted 35%, 15% and 50%, respectively, in arriving at the final range of reorganization value accepted by the Plan Proponents and
Bankruptcy Court

The basis for the DCF valuation was the projections published in the Plan These three-year estunates included projected changes
associated with the Company’s reorganization mutlatives, anticipated changes 1n general market conditions, including variations n
market regions and known new business gains and losses, as well as other factors considered by Company’s management The
discount rate utihzed n the DCF valuation was 12 5% Ths rate was determined based on a weighted cost of capital analysis The
termunal value was calculated by utilizing EBITDA multiples ranging from 5 8x to 6 3x This range of multuiples was determined
taking into account the results of the analyses performed n the other two valuation metheds

Based upon a reevaluation of relevant factors used n determining the range of reorganization value and updated expected cash flow
projections, the Company concluded that $4.369 mullion should be used for fresh-start reporting purposes as 1t most closely
approximated fair value T'his amount was adjusted for cash in excess of normal working requirements and emergence-related actions
to be received or paid prior to the effective date of emergence from bankruptey Afier deducting the fair value of debt, this resulted in
a posi-emergence equity value of $2,124 mithon

In accordance with fresh-start reporting, the Company’s reorgamzation value has been allocated to existing assets using the
measurement guidance provided n Statement ot Financial Accounting Standards 141, Business Combinations, which was
subsequently amended by FASB ASC Topic 805 [n addition, habilities, other than deferred taxes, have been recorded at the present
value of amounts estmated to be paid Finally, the Predecessor Company s accumulated defiait has been chminated, and the
Company’s new debt and equity have been recorded 1n accordance with the Plan Deferred taxes have been determined in conformity
with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Tuxes The excess of rcorganization value over the value of net tangible and 1dentifiable
intangible assets and habilities has been recorded as goodwill 1n the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Estimates of tair value represent the Company s best estimates, which are based on industry data and trends and by reference to
relevant market rates and transactions and discounted cash flow valuation methods among other factors The foregoing esumates and
assumptions are mherently subject to sigmficant uncertainties and contingencies beyond the reasonable control of the Company
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates, assumptions, and amounts reflected in the valuations will be realized and
actual results could vary materrally In accordance with FASB ASC 852, the Company was required to adopt, on December 31, 2007,
all accounting guidance scheduled to become eftective within the subsequent twelve-month period
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

The implementaticn of the Plan of Reorganization and the etfects of the consummation of the transactions contemplated theren,
which included settlement of various liabilities, 1ssuance of certain securities, incurrence of new indebtedness, repayment of old
indebtedness, and other cash payments and the adoption ot fresh-start reporting in the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet are as
follows

Settlement of

Predecessor Laabihities Subject Fresh-Start Successor
As of 12/31/07 To Compromise Adjustments As of 12/31/07
{Millions of Dollars)
Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 445 § (20)(a,tg) $ — $ 423

Accounts recervables, net 1,096 — — 1.096

[nventorics, net 931 — 143 (e) 1,074

Prepaid expenses and other current

assets 325 252 (a) (30)(e) 527
Total Current Assets 2,797 232 93 3,122
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,193 — (131){e) 2,062
Goodwill 1.037 — 5G7 (e) 1.544
Other indefinite-lived intangible assets 169 — 139 (e) 308
Definte-lived intangible assets, net 253 — 57 (e) 310
Asbestos-related insurance recoverable 873 (873) (a) — —
Other noncurrent assets 271 9 (a,b,f) 240 {(e) 520
Total Assets $ 7593 % {632) b 905 $ 7.866

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equty
(Deficit)

Current Liabihities

Short-term debt, including current

portion of long-term debt $ 869 $ (751) () — 118

Accounts payable 659 68 (a) — 727

Accrued habilities 475 2) (a) 23 {e} 496

Current portion of postempioyment

benefit liabihty 61 —_ — 61

Other current habilities 160 4) (a) 11 (&) 167
Total Current Liabiiittes 2224 (689) 34 1,569
Liabilities subject to compromise 5,464 (5,464) (a) — —
Long-term debt 21 2,660 (D) (163)(e) 2,518
Postemployment benefits 948 (11) (a) — 937
Long-term portion ot deferred income taxes 107 1% (a) 34 (e) 331
Other accrued hiabilities 170 129 (a,d) — 299
Minonty interest in consolidated
subsidiarics 44 —_ 44 (e) 88
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit}

Series C ESOP preterred stock 28 — (28} (c) —_

Predecessor Company Common stock 449 — (449} (c) _

Successor Company Common stock —_ 1 (a) — 1

Additional paid-in capital 2,204 20710 (ad) (2,151}c) 2,123

Accumulated deficit (4,194} 485 (a) 3,709 (c) —

Accumulated other comprehensive

income (loss) 128 3y (a) {125} (c) —
Total Sharcholders Equity (Deficit) (1,385) 3553 956 (e) 2,124
Total Liabihities and Sharcholders Equity
{Deficit) by 7593 § {632) 3 905 7.866
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

(a) ['he matenal components of the settlement of habihities subject to compromtse were to record 1) the discharge of habihiies
subject to compromise, i) pavmenis and accruals required as part of the discharge ot liabilities subject to compromise, 1)
the transfer to the U S Asbestos Trust of collection rights under the asbestos nsurance policies, 1v) the notes receivable
from the U S Asbestos Trust, v) the 1ssuance of Successor Company common stock of $2,091 million, and v1) the resulting
pre-tax gain on discharge of liabilities subject to compromise of $761 mullion less tax of $276 mullion for a net gain of

$485 milhion
Description Debat Credit Balance Sheet Account
(Malhons of Dollars)
Can on settlement of hiabilities
t to H
Discharge habilities subject to
compromise { 'LSC”) 3 5,464 Liabulities subject to compromise
Issue Successor Company common $1 in Common stock and $2,090 in
stock $ 2,091  APIC
Transfer asbestos insurance policies’ Asbestos-related insurance
rights to U 8§ Asbestos Trust 873 recoverable
Payments on LSC debt 1.640 Cash and cash equivalents
Temporary funding ot U S Asbestos
Trust 140 Cash and cash equivalents
Adequate protection payments to DIP
lenders 132 Cash and cash equivalents
$225 1n Prepaid espenses and other
Notes receivable from U § Asbestos current assets and $40 in Other
Trust 265 noncurrent assets
LSC accounts payable claims to be $67 1n Accounts payable and $41 n
satisfied 1n cash 108 Other accrued habilities
Insurance carrier settlement 18 Other noncurrent assets
Other 2 Varous
Pre-tax gain on discharge of LSC 761 Retained eamings
5 5.747 $ 5.747
Tax associated with gain on
A 1es subject
sompromise;
lax associated with gain on discharge
ot L8C 3 276 Retained carnings
Long-term portion ot deferred income
Noncurrent deferred tax hability 5 190 taxes
Noncurrent deferred tax hability 68 Other accrued Liabihities
Noncurrent deterred tax asset 49 Other noncurient assets
Prepaid expenses and other current
Current deferred tax asset 25 assets
Current deferred tax habihity 4 Other current liabilities
Current deferred tax Liability 2 Accrucd habilittes
$ 307 $ 307

{b) lo record the non-current portion of the $125 million loan note Upon repayment ot this note i January 2008, $40 million
must be held in escrow pursuant to the Plan and will be available tor the Company’s use upon termination of the escrow
requirement expected at some point beyond 2008 This adjustment also includes the $15 million long-term portion of a
settlement with one insurance carrier to reimburse the Company tor pre-petition claims paid by the Predecessor Company

(¢}  To record the 1) gamn on fresh-start reporting adjustments, 1) cancellaticn of Predecessor Company Common Stock, m)
close out of remaining equity balances of the Predecessor in accordance with fresh-start reporting, and 1v) the cancellation
o} Predecessor Company Sertes C ESOP Preferred stock The $(2.151) million fresh-start reporting adjustment 1s the
chimination of the Predecessor Company additional paid-in capital (" APIC ) w appropriately state the Successor Company
APIC to a reorgamization value of equity of $2,123 million ($2.090 mullion of newly 1ssued Successor Company common
stock and $33 million of warrants 1ssued to Predecessor Company stockholders)

(d)  Adjustment includes the rectassification of $19 mullion from equity mto a long-term hability related to the grant ot stock
options 1o Jose Maria Alapont as further discussed 1n Note 21 o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(¢)  To eliminate the unamortized balance of mdefinite-hved intangible assets of the Predecessor Company, adjust assets and
labilities to estimated fair value or other measurement as spectfied within ASC Topic 805, record Successor Company
indetimite-lived intangible assets, including reorganization value n excess of amounts allocated to 1denufied tangible and
intangible assets (Successor Company goodwill) and resulting gain on fresh-start reporting adjustments Note that the

Successor As of 12/31/07” reflects the allocation of the reorganization value of equity to assets and habilities immediately
following emergence

Allocation of

Reorgamzation
Value
{Milhons of Dollars)

Reorganization value $ 4,365
Less debt at fair value (2,633 ‘
Plus notes recervable from U S Asbestos Trust 265 ‘
Plus excess cash 215 1
Less LSC accounts payable claims to be satisfied in cash {108) !
Plus Insurance carrier settlement 18 |
Reorganization value of equity (common stock of $2,091 and warraats of |
$33) 2,124
Plus Labilities at fair value 5,742
Less assets (excluding goodwll) at tawr value {6,322)
Reorgamization value ot assets in excess of amounts allocated to 1dentified

tangible and intangible assets {goodwill) 5 1,544
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Gamn on
Fresh-Start
Reporting
Adjustments

(Milhons of Dollars)
Establishment of Successor Company s goodwill $ 1,544
Elimination of Predecessor Company’s goodwill (1.037)
Establishment of Successor Company’s other intangible assets 618
Elimination of Predecessor Company's other intangible assets (422)
Debt fair value adjustment 163
Investment in non-consolidated affihiates fair value adjustment 148
Praperty, plant & equipment fair value adjustment (1313
Elimination of capitalized supplies inventory (accounting policy

change to expense as mcurred) (93

Deferred tax adjustment 84
Elimination of inventory LIFO reserve (accounting policy change) 75
Inventory fair value adjustment 68
Minority interest fair value adjustment (44)
Other (7

b 956

() 1o record the elumination of debtor-in-possession {* DIP’ ) financing and the 1ssuance of various Successor Company debt
instruments required to implement the Plan
Description Debit Credit Balance Sheet Account
(Millions of Dollars)
Issuance of emergence debt $ 2,669 Cash and cash equivalents
Issuance of emergence debt $ 2,669 $2.660 1in Long-term debt and
$9 1n Short-term debt
Repayment of DIP financing 760 Short-term debt
Repayment of DIP financing 760 Cash and cash equivalents
Debt 1ssuvance fees 17 Other noncurrent assets
Debt 1ssuance fees 17 Cash and cash equivalents
$ 3446 % 3,446

(g}  Reconciliation of the cash impacts highlighted 1n (a) and (£) to the net change in cash and cash equivalents

Description Debit (Credst)
{Milhons of Dollars)
1ssuance of emergence debt b 2,669
Payments on LSC debt (1,640)
Repayment of DIP financing (760)
Temporary funding of U S Asbestos Trust (140)
Adequate protection payments to DIP lenders (133)
Debt 1ssuance fees (17)
Miscellancous cash transactions not contained 1n ()
ot (f) 1
Nt change tn cash and cash equivalents b {20)

In accordance with ASC Topic 8035, the preliminary allocation of the reorganization value completed as of

December 31, 2007 was subject to additional adjustment within one year after emergence from bankruptey to provide the Company
with adequate time to complete the valuation of its assets and habilities During 2008, subsequent adjustments to fair value estimates
inttially recorded as of December 31, 2007 were recorded as follows

. Valuation reports assoclated with long-lived tangible and mtangible assets were completed, resulting n adjustments to the
recorded values of long-lived tangibie and intangible assets,

. Valuations associated with the Company’s investments i non-consolidated affilates were completed, resulting n
adjustments to the recorded investment values, and
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. Adjustments to deferred tax assets and habilities were finahzed based upon the completed valuations and related
adjustments above
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Laabilifies Subject To Compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise include the following

December 31
2007

{Mulhions of Dollars)

Debt 5 3,727
Asbestos habilities 1,389
Accounts payable 176
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable secunities 74
[nterest payable 44
Environmental habilities 27
Other accrued Labilities 27
Predecessor Company Balance 5,464
Application of fresh-start reporting {5.464)

Successor Company Balance $ —

4. RESTRUCTURING

The costs contained within “Restructuring expense, net” in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations are comprised of two
types employee costs (principally termunation benefits) and facihity closure costs Termmation benefits are accounted for n
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 712, Compensation — Nonretirement Postempioyment Benefits, and are recorded when 1t 13
probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts can be reasonably estimated Estimates of termination benefits are
based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the similarity of benefits under the current plan and prior plans, and the existence
of statutery required mmmimum benefits Facility closure and other costs are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 420,
Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations, and are recorded when the hability 1s incurred

Estimates of restructuring expenses are based on information available at the tme such charges are recorded [n certain countries
where the Company cperates. statutory requirements include inveluntary termnation benefits that extend several years into the future
Accordingly, severance payments continue well past the date of termination at many international locations Thus, these programs
appear to be ongoing when, in fact, terminations and other activities under these programs have been substantially completed
Management expects that future savings resulting from execution of 1ts restructuring programs will generally result in full pay back
within 36 months

Due to the mnherent uncertainty mvolved in estimating restructuring expenses, actual amounts paid for such activittes may difter from
amounts 1mtially estimated Accordingly. the Company reversed $47 mullion, $3 nullion and $7 mulhon of previously recorded
liabihittes i 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively Such reversals result from changes tn estimated amounts to accomplish previously
planned activities, changes in eapected (based on lustorical practice) cutcome of negotiations with labor unons, which reduced the
level of originally commutted actions, newly implemented government employment programs, which lowered the expected cost, and
changes 1n appreach to accomplish restructuring activities

Management expects to finance these restructuring programs over the next several years through cash generated from its ongoing
operations or through cash available under 1ts existing credit tacility, subject to the terms of applicable covenants Management does
not expect that the execution ot these programs will have an adverse impact on 1ts iquidity position

The Company s restructuring activities are undertaken as necessary to execute management’s strategy and strcamhine operations,
consolidate and take advantage of available capacity and 1esources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions Restructuring activities
mclude efforts to integrate and rationalize the Company s businesses and to relocate manutacturing operations to lower cost markets
These activities generally fall into one of the following categories

1 Closure of facilities and relocation of preduction — 1n connection with the Company’s strategy, certain operations have been
closed and related production relocated to best cost geographies or to other locations with available capacity

g1
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

2 Consolidation of administrative functions and standardization of manufacturing processes — as part of 11s productivity strategy the
Company has acted to conselidate 1ts admimstrative functions and change 1ts manutacturing processes to reduce selling, general
and administrative costs and improve operating efticiencies through standardization of processes

The Company recorded $32 mullion, $132 milhon and $48 mullion 1n net restructuring expense for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, of which $30 million, $130 muhon and $27 miilion were employee costs and $2 million, $2
mullion and $21 millien were facility closures The facility closure costs were paid within the year of mcurrence and there were no
reversals The following 15 a summary of the Company’s consolidated restructuring liabilities and related activity for 2009, 2008 and
2007 PTE,” “PTSB,” *VSP” and GA’ represent Powertrain Energy, Powertrain Sealing and Bearings, Vehicle Safety and
Protection and Global A fiermarket respectively As disclosed in Note 22, the Company consolidated 1ts reporting segments from six
to five during the first quarter of 2009, ehminating the Automotive Products segment Prior year reporting segment amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the new reporting segment structure

PTE PTSB VSP GA Corporate Total
(Mullwons of Dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2007, Predecessor $ 14 % 19 3 4 8 38 — 3 40
Provisions 10 27 8 7 3 55
Reversals (3) (1} (3) —_ —_ ¥
Payments (id) (40) (8) 3) — (67)
Reclassification 1o postemployment benefits (4 _ — —_ _ (4)
Foreign currency 1 1 — — — 2

Balance at December 31, 2007, Successor 4 6 1 5 3 19
Provisions 42 47 33 8 5 135
Reversals (n — — (N n (3)
Payments (12) (N {12) (7N 2 40)
Foreign currency 1 1 — — — 2

Balance at December 31, 2008, Successor 34 47 22 5 5 113
Provisions 33 20 17 7 2 79
Reversals {22} (11) (13) (1) — 47)
Payments 29) (33) 2n (N 4) (94)
Foreign currency 3 1 — — — 4

Balance at December 31 2009, Successor $ 19 $ 24 % 5 % 4+ 3 ER 55
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Activities under Global “Restructuring 2009" Program

An unprecedented downturn 1n the global automotive industry and global financtal markets led the Company to announce, in
September and December 2008, certain restructuring actions, herein referred to as “Restructuring 2009,” designed to improve
operating performance and respond to increasingly challenging conditions 1n the global automotive market It was anuicipated that this
plan would reduce the Company s global workforce by approximately 8,600 positions when compared with the workforce as ot
September 30, 2008 Duning 2009 and 2008, the Company has recorded $31 million and $127 mullion, respectively in net
restructuring expenses associated with Restructuring 2009, of which $29 million and $127 mullion, respectively, were employee costs,
and $2 million were facihty closure costs in 2009 The Company expects to incur additional restructuring expenses up to $6 million
through 2010, of which $4 million are expected to be facility closure costs and $2 million are expected to be employee related costs
As the mayonty of the costs expected to be incurred in relation to Restructuring 2009 are related to severance, such activities are
expected to yield future annual savings at least equal to the incurred costs

PTE PTSB vsp GA Corporate Total
(Millions of Dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2008,

Successor $ — 3 — % — 3% — § — $ -
Provisions 39 46 31 7 4 127
Payments (7} 4 9 (2) (h (23)
Foreign currency 1 2 — — — 3

Balance at December 31. 2008,

Suceessor 33 44 22 5 3 107
Provisions 33 21 16 6 2 78
Reversals (22) [0} (13} () — {47}
Payments 23 32) (19 (] £ (50)
Foreign currency 3 1 — — — 4.

Balance at December 31, 2009

Successor $ 19 § 23§ 6 % 3 3 1 3 52

Significant components of expenses related to Restructuring 2009 are as follows

Total Incurred Incurred Estimated
Expected During Durmg Additonal
Costs 2008 2009 Expenses

(Milhions of Dollars)

Powerirain Energy $ 51 % 39 % [ 1

Powertrain Sealing and

Bearings 60 46 10 4

Vehicle Safety and

Protection 35 31 3 t

Global Aftermarket 12 7 5 -—

Corporate 6 4 2 —

$ 164 § 127 § 31 § 6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
Activities under Global “Restructuring 2006" Program

In January 2006, the Predecessor Company announced a global restructuring plan { Restructuring 20067 ) as part of its sustainable
global profitable growth strategy From the inception of this program through December 31, 2007, the Predecessor Company incurred
net restructuring expenses of $120 million under this program associated with the closures of 1ts facihties located 1n Alpignano, Italy,
Upton, United Kingdom, Malden, Missoun, Pontoise, France, Rochdale, United Kingdom, Slough United Kingdom, St Johns,
Michigan, St Lows, Missour, and Bretten, Germany The Predecessor Company also transferred production with high labor content
from its faciliies in Nuremberg, Germany, Wiesbaden, Germany, and Orleans, France to exasting facilities in best cost countries
During 2008, the Successor Company incurrcd net expenses of $5 million for Restructuring 2006 Payments associated with this
program are expected to continue into 2010 This program was completed as of December 31, 2008

included n the summary table above, the payment activity and remaiming hatlites associated with activities executed under
Restructuring 2006 are as follows

PTE PTSB VSP GA Corporate Total
{Millions of Dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2007, Predecessor $ 93 19§ 4 % I8 — $ 33
Provisions 8 27 4 4 3 46
Reversals ()] (D {3} — —_ (W]
Payments (12) (40 {5 ) — (61)
Foreign currency 1 1 — — — 2

Balance at December 31 2007, Successor 3 6 — 1 3 13
Provisions 3 i 2 1 — 7
Reversals {H — — (1 — (2)
Payments 4) ) {2 ) €Y (12)

Balance at December 31, 2008 Successor  $ 1 $ 38 — S — % 2 s 6
Provisions — — 1 — — 1
Reversals —_ n —_ — — (1
Payments (1 (1) (1) ~—— — (3)

Balance at December 31, 2009 Successor  § — $ 1 § — § — § 2 8 3

Other Restructuring Activity and Programs

I'he Predecessor Company reclassified certain restructuring liabihites related to long-term pension arrangements from restructuring
liabilities to postemployment benefits during 2007 This reclassification was made as a result of the Predecessor Company s
continuous evaluation of its restructuring activittes The Predecessor Company’s evaluation determined that these amounts would be
more appropriately classified as postemployment benefits

The Predecessor Company announced the closure and relocation of 1ts VSP system prolection facility in Exton, PA to other facilities
with available capacity during 2007 The Predecessor Company recorded $2 million of severance expenses during the year and as of
December 31, 2007 This project was substantially completed as of December 31, 2008

The Predecessor Company commenced a restructuring of its GA sales and marketing functions designed to drive business growth and
to improve customer focus during 2007 Through realignment of the sales force on a regional basis, the Company intends to strengthen
customer relations particularly in emerging markets Accordingly, a charge of 33 million related to these activities was recorded
during 2007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

S5 ADJUSTMENT OF ASSETS TO ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE

The Company and uts Predecessor recorded total impairment charges of $17 mullion, $451 nuthion and $61 milhon for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively as follows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Millions of Dollars)
Property, plant and equipment 3 20 % 18 % 36
Goodwill 3) 239 25
Other indefinite-hved intangible assets — 130 —
Investments 1n non-consolidated affihiates — 64 —
3 17 $ 451 § 61

Impairments of geodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are discussed further in Note 11 Impatrments of investments in
non-consolidated affiliates are discussed further in Note 12

The Company recorded impairment charges of $20 million, $18 mullion and $36 millton for the years ended December 31 2009 2008
and 2007, respectively, to adjust property, plant and equipment to theie estimated fair values in accordance with the subsequent
measulement provisions of FASB ASC 360 (see Note 8) The chaiges by reporting segment are as follows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Mhihons of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy 3 15 § i1 % 4
Powertrain Sealing and Bearmgs 3 5 (n
Vehicle Satety and Protection 2 2 29
Global Aftermarket —_ — 2
Corporate — — 2
3 20 & i8 % 36

2009 impairments

T'he Company recorded impairment charges related to the identification of a Powertrain Energy (P TE’ } factlity where the Company s
asscssment of future undiscounted cash flows, when compared to the current carrying value of plant and equipment, indicated the
assels were not recoverable The Company determined the tair value of the assets by applying a probability weighted, expected
present value technique to the estimated future cash tlows using assumptions a market participant would utilize The discount rate
used 1s consistent with other long-tived asset fair value measurements The carrying value of the assets exceeded the resulung fair
value by $15 miilion and an impawrment charge was recorded for that amount in addition. the Company recorded impairmcnt charges
of 33 mullion and $2 mullion related to Powertrain Sealing and Bearings {( PTSB™) and Vehicle Safety and Protection ( VSP)
operating facilities, respectively, primanly as a result of reduced volumes resulting in a revaluation of the expected future cash flows
of these operations as compared to the carrying value ot the buildings and production equipment The impairment amounts were
determined by assessing the book values associated with building and production equipment 1n relation 1o their esumated tawr values

2008 Impair ments

The Company recorded impairment charges of $7 million and $3 million related to the identitication of PTE and PTSB facihities,
respectively, where the Company’s assessment of estimated future cash flows, when compared to the current carrying value of
property. plant and equpment, indicated impairment was necessary In additton, the Company recorded impairment charges ot $4
million, $2 milhion and $2 million related to PTE, PI 8B and V8P operating facilities, respecuively, for which the Company announced
the closures in 2009 as part of its ongoing Restructuring 2009 program The impuirment amounts were determined by assessing the
book values associated with bullding and production equipment in relation to therr estimated tair values

85

Source FEDERAL MOGUL CORP 10-K February 23 2010 Porvered b Mormmgsiar® Documeni Nesearcn ™™




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
2007 Impairments
The Predecessor Company recorded impairtnent charges of $3 million $3 million and $25 million related to the wdentification of PTE,
PTSB and VSP operating facilities, respectively, where the Company s assessment of estimated future cash flows, when compared to

the current carrying values of property, plant and equipment, indicated impairments were necessary

In addition the Predecessor Company s abihity to remediate a CARO at a cost below the onginal esttmate for a PTSB operating
facility resulted in the reversal of the excess accrual of $4 million through impairment where such labiities were oniginally recorded

6 OTHER INCOME, NET

The specific components of Other income, net” are as follows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Millions of Dollars)
Environmental claims settlements hY 12 3 17 $ -
Gatn on sale of debt investment 8 — —
Gain on involuntary conversion 7 12 —
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments 7 (6) 4
Accounts recetvable discount expense (4) % (8)
Foreign currency exchange (2) 2 9
Gain on sale of assets — I 15
Gain on sale of business —_ — 8
Other 15 20 8
$ 43 8 37 % 36

The Company was a party to two lawsuits i Ohio and Michugan relating to indemmfication for costs ansing from environmental
releases from industrial operations of the Predecessor Company prior to 1986 During 2009 and 2008, the Company reached
settlements with certain parties, which resulted 1n net recoveries to the Company of $12 mullion and $17 mullion, respectively

During 2009, an affiliate purchased and sold debt investments on the Company s behalf for $22 million and $30 mailhion, respectively
[his resulted 1n a single cash transaction with the affiliate for an $8 million net gain

In 2008, the Company experienced a fire at a plant in Europe Duning 2008, the Company recesved cash proceeds of $30 nulhion from
its insurance carrier, for which 1t recogmzed a $12 million gain associated with the involuntary conversion During 2009, the
Company received additional proceeds ot $7 million, which was recognized as a gain

7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign Currency Risk .

The Company manufactures and sells its products in North Amernica, South America, Asia, Furope and Africa As a result the
Company s financial results could be sigmficantly affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak

economic conditions in foreign marhets in which the Company manutactures and sells s products The Company's operating resulis
are primarily exposed to changes in exchange rates between the U S dollar and European currencies
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

The Company generally tries to use naturat hedges within 1ts foreign currency activities ncluding the matching of revenues and costs,
to mmimize foreign currency risk Where natural hedges are not in place, the Company considers managing certain aspects of 1is
foreign curency activittes and larger tiansactions thiough the use of foreign curiency options or forward contiacts Principal
currencies hedged have historically included the euro, British pound, Japanese yen and Canadian dollar The Company had notionai
values of $10 million and $5 million of foreign currency hedge contracts outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
that were designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes Unrealized net gains of $1 mulhon were recorded m
* Accumulated other comprehensive loss™ as of December 31, 2608 Immaterial unrealized net losses were recorded in Accumulated
other comprehensive loss™ as of December 31, 2009 No hedge ineflectiveness was recogmzed during the three vears ended December
31,2009

Interest Raie Risk

The Company, during 2008, entered nto a series of five-year interest rale swap agreements with a total nouonal value of
$1,190 million to hedge the vanabihty of interest payments associated with its variable-rate term loans under the Exnt Facilities
Through these swap agreements, the Company has fixed its base interest and premium rate at a combined average interest rate of
approximately 5 37% on the hedged principal amount of $1,190 million Since the interest rate swaps hedge the vanability of interest
paymenis on vanable rate debt with the same terms, they qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment As of December 31 2009
and 2008, unrealized net losses of $50 mullion and $67 mullion, respectively, were recorded 1n * Accumulated other comprehensive
loss™ as a result of these hedges As ot December 31, 2009, losses of $34 mullion are expected to be reclassified to the consohidated
statement of operations within the next 12 months Ne hedge ineflectiveness was recognized during the three years ended December
31, 2009

These interest rate swaps reduce the Company’s overall interest rate nisk However due to the remaiming outstanding borrowings on
the Company’s Exit Facihities and other borrowing tacilities that continue to have variable interest rates, management believes that
interest rate nisk to the Company could be material if there are significant adverse changes in interest rates

Commodity Price Risk

The Company’s production processes are dependent upon the supply of certain raw materials that are exposed to price fluctuations on
the open market The primary purpose of the Company’s commodity price forward contract activity 1s to manage the volatihity
associated with forecasted purchases I'he Company monitors 1ts commodity price risk exposures regularly to maximize the overall
effectiveness of 1ts commodity forward contracts Principal raw materials hedged include natural gas, copper, nickel, lead, platinum,
high-grade alummum and aluminum alloy Forward contracts are used to mitigate commaodity price nisk associated with raw matenals,
generally related to purchases forecast for up to fifteen months 1n the future

At December 31, 2006, the Predecessor Company had 54 commodity price hedge contracts cutstanding that were not designated as
accounting hedge contracts, with a combined notional value ot $55 million and a tair value liability ot $3 million Through March 31,
2007, the Predecessor Company recognized all changes n fair value ot these hedges 1n current earnings, resulting in unrealized gains
ot $10 mullton recorded to ° Other mcome, net’ for the three months ended March 31, 2007 Eftective Apnl 1. 2007, the Predecessor
Company completed the required evaluation and documentation to designate the majority of such contracts as cash {low hedges

The Company had 140 and 364 commodity price hedge contracts outstanding with combined notional values of $28 million and $91
mithon at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecuvely. of which substantially all mature within cne year Of these outstanding
contracts, 112 and 346 commeodity price hedge contracts with combined notional values of $26 million and $83 million at December
31, 2009 and 2008 respectively. were designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes Unrealized net gains of $5 million
and unrealized net losses of $33 million were recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss™ as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively Unrealized net gains of $3 million and unrealized net losses of $2 mullion were recognized in - Other income, net’
duning the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, associated with meftectiveness on contracts designated as
accounting hedges lHedge ineffectiveness during the year ended December 31, 2007 was immaterial
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
Other

The Company presents its derrvative positions and any related material collateral under master nelting agreements on a net basis For
derivauves designated as cash flow hedges, changes in the time value are excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness
Unrealized gains and losses associated with ineflective hedges determined using the hypothetical denvative method, are recogmzed 1n
Other income, net” Denvative gains and losses included in * Accumulated other comprehensive loss’ for effective hedges are
reclassified nto operations upon recognition of the hedged transaction Denvative gains and losses associated with undessgnated
hedges are recogmized in "Other income, net™ for outstanding hedges and Cost of products sold” upon hedge maturity The
Company s undesignated hedges are primanly commodity hedges and such hedges have become undesignated mainly due to
forecasted volume declines

Concent ations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit nisk, consist primarily of accounts receivable
and cash investments The Company's customer base includes virtually every sigmficant global light and commercial vehicle
manufacturer and a large number of retailers, distnibutors and installers of automotive aftermarket parts The Company's credit
evaluation process and the geographical dispersion of sales transactions help to mitigate credit nisk concentration No individual
customer accounted for more than 5% of the Company’s sales during 2009 The Company requres placement of cash in financial
institutions evaluated as hughly creditworthy

Adoption of Additional Dhsclosure Requirements
In March 2008, the FASB 1ssued additional disclosure requirements contained within FASB ASC Topic 815, Dermvarnes and
Hedging, which requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities The Company adopted these

disclosures on a prospective basis as of January 1, 2009

The following table discloses the fair values and balance sheet locations of the Company ‘s dernivative instruments

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet December 31 December 31 Balance Sheet December 31 December 31
Location 2009 2008 Location 2009 2008

(Millions of Dollars)
Dertvatives designated as
cash flow hedging

instruments,
[nterest rate swap Other current
contracts $ —  § — habilities $ 4 $ (30)
Other noncurrent
habilittes (16} 37)
Other current Other current
Commodity contracts assets 6 —  labilities (1) (36}
Foreign currency Other current
Lontracts liabihties — i — —
$ 6 $ 1 § (51) $ (103)
Denrivatives not designated
as hedging instruments.
QOther current Other current
Commodity contracts assets 3 1 3 —  lLablities $ — $ {7)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The following tables disclose the eftect of the Company’s dertvative instruments on the conschdated statement of operations tor the
year ended December 31, 2009 (1n millions of dollars)

Location of Gain Amount of Gain
(Loss) Recogmzed (Loss) Recognized

Amount of 1 Income on in Income on
Gan (Loss) Derivatives Dervatives
Recogmized in  Location of Gain Amount of Gain  (Ineffective Portion (Ineffective Portion
OCl on (Loss) Reclassified (Loss) Reclassified and Amount and Amount
Derivatives from AOCI into from AQOC]I nto Excluded from Excluded from
Derivatives Designated (Effective Income (Effective Income (Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness
as Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Portion) Testing) Testinp)
Interest rate swap
contracts $ {11} Interest expense, net § (37 3 —
Other income,
Commeodity contracts 20 Cost of products sold (18) net 3
Foreign currency
contracts — Cost of products sold 1 —

h 9 $ (54) $

W

Amount of Gain
Location of Gain  (Loss) Recognized
Derivatives Not Designated (Loss) Recognized in n Income on

as Hedging Instruments  Income on Derivatives Dertvatives
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold  § (7
Commodity contracts Other income, net 4
$ 3)

8 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
FASB ASC Topic 820, Fai Value Measwements and Disclostes , clanfies that fair value is an exit price representing the amount
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability 1n an orderly transaction between market participants As such, fair
value 1s a market-based measurement that should be determined based upon assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
an asset or hability As a basis for considering such assumptions, FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy,
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring tair value as tollows

Level I Observable inputs such as quoted prices 1n active markets,

Level 2 Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets. that are cbservable either directly or indirectly, and

Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which there 15 hittle or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its
own assumptions

An asset’s or hability’s tair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy 1s based on the lowest level ot any put that 1s
significant to the tair value measurement Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use ot unobservable inputs

Assets and hiabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following three valuation techniques noted 1n FASB ASC
Topic 820

A Mas ket approach Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions imvolving identical or comparable
assets or habilities

B Cost approach Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

C  Income approach Technigues to convert future amounts 1o a single present amount based upen market expectations (including
present value techmques, option-pricing and excess eamings models)

Assets and liabihities remeasured and disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2069 and 2008 are set forth 1n the
table below

Asset / Valuation
(Liabihity) Level2 Techmgue
(Millions of Dollars)

December 31, 2009
[nterest rate swap contracts $ 30) $ (50) C
Commodity contracts 6 6

December 31, 2008

Interest rate swap contracts 67 (67) C
Commodity contracts (@4 (44) C
Foreign currency contracts 1 1 C

The Company calculates the fair value of its interest rate swap contracts, commodity contracts and foreign currency contracts using
quoted Interest rate curves, quoted commeodity forward rates and quoted currency forward rates, respectively, to calculate forward
values, and then discounts to the forward values

The discount rates for all derivative contracts are based on quoted swap interest rates or bank deposit rates For contracts which, when
aggregated by counterparty, are in a liability position, the rates are adjusted by the cred:t spread that market participants would apply
1f buying these contracts from the Company s counterparties

The following table presents the Company s defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31,
2009

Valuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Techmque
{(Mhllions of Dollars)
U.S. Plans:
Investments with Registered Investment Companies
Equity securities $ 448 § 448 $ — A
Fixed income securities 142 142 — A
5 590 $ 590 % —
Non-U S Plans:
Insurance contracts 5 32 % — 3 32 B
Investments with Registered Investment Companies
Fixed income securities 8 8 — A
Equuty securities 1 1 — A
Government bonds - T2 — 2 B
Equity securities i 1 — A
Cash 1 1 — A
) 45 3 11 § 34

Investments with registered investment companies are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the funds are
traded Government bonds and equity securities are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
nvesiments are traded The insurance contracts guarantee a mimmum rate of return The Company has no mput into the vesiment

strategy of the assets underiying the contracts, but they are typically heavily invested i active bond markets and are highly regulated
by local law

In addition to items that are measured at fanr value on a recurring basis, the Company also has assets and habilities that are measured
at fair value on a nonrecurnng basis As these assets and lLiabilittes are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis., they are not
included in the tables above Assets and habilities that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include long-hved assets (see
Notes 5 and 11), investments i non-consolidated affiliates (see Note 12) and CARO (see Note 17) The Company has determined that
the tair value measurements included in each of these assets and hiabilities rely primarnily on the Company ‘s assumptiions as observable

inputs are not available As such, the Company has determuned that each of these fair value measurements reside within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

As of December 31 2009, the Company had $30 mullion of CARO, which were measured at fair value upon imitial recognition of the
assoctated Liability CARO fair values are determined based on the Company s determination of what a third party would charge to
perform the remediation activities, generally using a present value technique

As of December 31, 2008, the Company evaluated the recorded value of 1ts (nvestments i non-consohdated affihiates for potential
mmpairment Given the economic downturn in the global autemotive industry and the related declines in anucipated production
volumes, the Company concluded that 1ts investments 1n non-consolidated affiliates, primarily (n the Powertrain Energy segment were
impaired, and an impairment charge of $64 mllion was recorded as of December 31, 2008, to adjust 1ts investments n
non-consolidated affiliates to estimated farr value The estimated fair value 1s based upon consideration of various valuation
methodologies, including guideline transaction multiples muluples of current earnings and projected future cash flows discounted at
rates commensurate with the nsk involved The Company has determuned that the fair value measurement of its investments in
non-consolidated affibates 1ehes piimarily on Company-specific inputs and the Company’s assumptions about the use of these
investments, as observable mputs are not available As such, the Company has determined that the farr value measurement of 1its
investments 1n non-consolidated affiliates resides within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

9 INVENTORY

Inventories are stated at the lower ot cost or market Cost was determuned by the first-in, first-out ( FIFO™) method at December 31,
2009 and 2008 Inventories are reduced by an allowance for excess and obsolete inventories based on management’s review of
on-hand inventortes compared to historical and estimated tuture sales and usage

Net inventories consisted of the following

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
{Muillions of Dollars)

Raw matenals $ 151 $ 175
Work-in-process 118 132
Finished products 630 624
899 931
Inventory valuation allowance {76) (37}
$ 823 § 864
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —

10. PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT

Continued

Upoen the adoption of fi esh-start reporting, property, plant and equipment carrying values were stated at current replacement cost as of
December 31, 2007, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value as appropriate [n addition, accumulated
depreciation was reset to zero The values assigned to the property, plant and equpment upon the adoption of fresh-start reporting
were prehminary and represented the Company s best estimates of replacement costs based upon valuations considering both internal
and external factors The finalization of fresh-start reperting resulted 1n subsequent changes to these estimates Depreciation expense
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $278 mullion, $273 millhon and $335 mulhoen, respectively

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following

December 31
Useful Life 2009

December 31

Useful Life 2008

(In mullions)

(In mithons)

Land — % 246 — 8 254
Buildings and building improvements 10 - 40 years 408 10 - 40 years 366
Machinery and equipment 2-12 ycars 1 704 2- 12 years 1550
2,358 2,170

Accumulated depreciation {524) (259
$ i s iou

The Company leases property and equipment used in their operations Future minmmum payments under noncancelable operating
leases with 1niial or remamning terms of more than one year are as follows (in milllons ot dollars)

2010 $ 35
2011 27
2012 22
2013 19
2014 19
Thereafter 10

3 132

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $58 mullion. $61 mdlion and
$57 million, respectively, exclusive of property taxes, insurance and other occupancy costs generally payable by the Company

11. GOODWILLAND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, goodwill and other intangible assets consist of the tollowing

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrymng  Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(Millions of Dollars)
Definite-Lived Intangible
Assets
Developed
technology s 115 $ 2n % 94 § 115  $ (10) % 105
Customer
relationships 525 {104) 421 525 (66) 459
g 640 $ (125) §% 515 § 640 $ (76 $ 564
Gooedwil! and
Indefimte-Lived
Intangible Assets
Goodwill $ 1,073 3 1,076
I'rademarks and
brand names 354 354
s e $__Le30
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NOTES TO CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

As of December 31, 2007, the Company adjusted 1ts net carrying amount of intangible asscts based upon preliminary valuations as a
result of applying fresh-start reporting Included in these adjustments were the elimination of Predecessor goodwill and the
establishment of Successor goodwill Successor goodwill was determined as the excess of reorganization value over amounts
altributable to specific tangible and 1ntangible assets, including developed technology and customer relationships

During 2008, the Company recetved valuation estimates for intangible assets other than goodwiil that were more detailed and
comprehensive than those used for 1ts imitial application of fresh-start reporting Based upon these revised valuations, the Company
recorded adjustments to the imtially recorded fresh-start reporting amounts, with oftsets directly to goodwill

The Company has assigned $115 mullion to technology, including value for patented and unpatented proprietary know-how and
expertise as embodied in the processes, specifications and testing of products This value was reduced from $140 mullion recorded as
ot December 31, 2007 due to changes primarily in the underlying valuation assumptions and not a change n the portfolio of 1dentified
technologies nor on any changes in the expected revenue streams associated with each of the wdentified technologies The value
assigned 15 based on the relief-from-royalty method which applies a tair royalty rate for the technology group to forecasted revenue
Royalty rates were determined based on discussions with management and a review of rovalty data for similar or comparable
technologies The amortization periods between 10 and 14 years are based on the expectled useful lives of the products or product
fam:hies for which the technology relate

Aftermarket products are sold to a wide range of wholesalers, retailers and mstallers as replacement parts for vehicles in current
production and for older vehicles For 1ts aftermarket customers, the Company generally establishes product line arrangements that
encompass all products offered within a particular product ine These are typically open-ended arrangements that are subject to
termnation by either the Company or the customer at any time The generation of repeat business from any one aftermarket customer
depends upon numerous factors, including but not hmited to the speed and accuracy of order fulfillment, the availlability of a full range
ot product, brand recogmtion, and market responsive pricing adjustments Predictable recurring revenue 1s generally not heavily based
upon prior relationship experience As such, distinguishing revenue between that attributable to customer relationships as opposed to
revenue attributable to recognized customer brands 1s ditficult

During 2008, the Company completed its analysis of us varnious Aftermarket revenue streams and bifurcated those streams between
revenues associlated with brand recogmition and revenues associated with customer relationships Valuations for brand names and
customer relationships were then determined based upon the estimated revenue sieams As a 1esult ot the valuations the Company
recorded $484 mullion for its trademarks and brand names As part of fresh-start reporting, value was assigned to trademarks or brand
names based on earnings potential or relief from costs asscciated with licensing the trademarks or brand names As the Company
expects to continue using each trademark or brand name indefinitely with respect to the related product hines, the trademarks or brand
names have been assigned indefimite hives

The Company has assigned $319 mullion to its customer relationships, of which $62 mullion relates to original equipment (“OE™)
customer relationships and $457 million relates to aftermarket customer relationships The values assigned to customer relationships
are based on the propensity of these customers to continue to generate predictable tuture recurring revenue and income The value was
based on the present value of the future earnings attiibutable to the mtangible assets after recognition of required returns to other
contributory assets The amortization periods of between 1 and 16 years are based on the expected cash flows and historical attrition
rates, as determined within each of the separate product groups

During 2009 and associated with the pushdown of final fresh-start values to the individual operating entities. the Company identified
$6 million of adjusiments. principally related to foreign currency translation, that were necessary o properly state goodwill The
Company recorded these adjustments 1n 2009, which reduced its goodwill balance by $6 miilion

The Company evaluated the critenia defined by the Amertcan Institute of Certified Public Accountants practice aid entitled Assets
Acquired i a Busmess Combmnation to be Used in Research and Development Actrvities  The critenia included control, economic
benefit, measurability, no alternative future use and substance As a result ot this evaluation, the Company concluded that there were
no significant research and development activities to which value should be assigned in connection with fresh-start reporting
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

Ihe Company, in February 2008, also recorded $6 million in customer rclationships in connection with the acquisition of
Federal-Mogul Bearings India Limited ( FMBIL") The acqusition of FMBIL did not have a matertal umpact on the Company's
financial statements or hquidity

The Company performs 1its annual goodwitl impairment analysis as of October 1, or more frequenily if impairment indicators exist, 1in
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350, Imtangibles — Goodwill and Other This
unpairment analysis compares the estimated fair value of these assets to the related carrying value, and an impairment charge 1s
recorded for any excess of carrying value over esumated fair value The estiimated fair value 1s based upon constderation of various
valuation methodologies including gwideline transaction multiples, multiples of current earnings, and projected future cash tlows
discounted at rates commensurate with the nisk involved

The Company’s goodwill balance by reporting segment as of December 31, 2009 15 as follows {(in mitlions}

Powertramn Energy $ 277
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 96
Vehicle Safety and Protection 700

Y 1,073

All of the Company s reporting units with a goodwill balance passed * Step 1” of the October 1, 2009 goodwill impairment analysis
All Step 1 results had fair values 1n excess of carrying values of at least 5%

Given the complesity of the calculation of goodwill impairment and the significance of 2008 fourth quarter economic activity, the
Company had not completed 1ts annual impairment assessment for the year ended December 31, 2008 prior to filing 1ts annual report
on Form 10-K Based upon drait valuations and preliminary assessment, the Company recorded estimated impairment charges of $239
million and $130 mullion tor goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets, respecuvely, tor the vear ended December 31, 2008

Duning the quarter ended March 31, 2009, the Company completed this assessment and recorded a reduction to 11s goodwill
imparrment charge of $3 million The goodwill impairment charges were required to adjust the carrying value of goodwill and other
mdetinite-lived intangible assets to estimated tair value The estimated tair values were determined based upon consideration of
various valuation methodologies, including guideline transaction multiples, multples of current earmings, and projected future cash
flows discounted at rates commensurate with the nisk mvolved, giving appropriate consideration to the unprecedented econemic
downturn n the automotive industry that continued throughout the fourth quarter of 2008 T'he 2008 impairment charge was primanly
attributable 10 signmificant decreases in forecasted future cash flows as the Company adjusts to known and anticipated changes in
industry production volumes

As a result of 1ts annual assessment, the Predecessor Company recorded impairment charges of $25 million tor the vear ended
December 31, 2007 This impairment charge, incurred within the Global Pistens operating unit of the Powertrain Energy Reporting
Segment was required to adjust the carrying value of goodwill to estimated tair value for the year ended December 31, 2007 The
estimated far value of the operating unit was determined based upon considerauion of various valuation methodologies, including
guideline transaction multiples, multiples of current earmings, and projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with
the nsk mvolved The 2007 impairment charge was primanly attributable to sigriticant increases in forecasted future capital
expenditures to keep pace with current technological product requirements, without a corresponding increase in preduct profitability
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The goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment charges of $369 million and $25 million for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, are broken down by reporting segment as follows

Successor Predecessor

2008 2007

(Milhons of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy $ 14 $ 25
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 16 —_
Vehicle Safety and Protection 209 —
Global Aftermarket 130 —
Corporate — —
3 369 § 25

The following 1s a rollforward of the Company's goodwill and other intangible assets {net) tor the two years ended December 31,
2009

Other Definite-
Indefinite- Lived
Laived Intangibles
Goodwill Intangibles {Net)
{Milhons of Dollars)
Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 1,544 § 308 $ 310
Fresh-start valuation adjustiments
Other intangible assets (500) 176 324
Deterred taxes 275
Property, plant & equipment 44
Minority interest (44)
Pensions (17
Investments 1 non-consolidated affiliates 13
{229) 176 324
Acquisibion of FMBIL — — 6
_ __ Amoprtizatlonexpense __ _____ _ ___ __ __ — — (76)
Impairment expense (preliminary) (239) {130y —
Balance at December 31, 2008 1,076 354 564
Fresh-start adjustments, principally toreign currency
translation (6) — —
Amortization expense — _ (49)
Mnalization of 2008 impairment 3 — —
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 1,073 § 354 % 515

The Company recorded amortization expense of $49 million and $76 mullion assouiated with definite-lived intangible assets during the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecuvely The Company utilizes the straight line method of amortization. recognized
over the estumated useful hives of the assets The Company s estimated future amortization expense tor 1ts defimte-lived intangible
assets 1s as follows (in millions of dollars)

2010 $ 49
2011 47
2012 47
2013 45
2014 45
Thereaftter 282

$ 515
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continved
12 INVESTMENTS IN NON-CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

The Company mamntains mvestments in 14 non-consolidated atfihates, which are located in China, Germany India, Italy. Korea,
Turkey, the United Kingdom and the United Siates The Company s direct ownership in such affiliates ranges from approximately 1%
to 50% The aggregate investments 1n these affillates were $238 mullion and $221 million at December 31 2009 and 2008,
respectively, and are included 1n the consolidated balance sheets as ‘Other noncurrent assets’ Upon the adoption of fresh-start
reporting, the Company’s investments in non-consolidated affihates were adjusted to esumated fair value by increasing the aggregate
investment balances by $127 mullion These estimated fair values were determined based upon internal and external valuations
considerng varous televant market rates and transactions, and discounted cash flow valuation methods, among other factors, as
turther described in Note 3 above

As of December 31. 2008 the Company evaluated the recorded value of its mvestments in non-consohdated affiliates for potental
impairment Given the economuc downturn in the global automotive industry and the related declines i anticipated production
volumes, the Company concluded that its investments in non-consolidated affiliates, primanly 1n the Powertrain Energy segment were
tmpaired, and an impairment charge of $64 million was recorded as of December 31, 2008 T'he remaiming fresh-start adjustment (net
of impairment, amortization and foreign currency) of $61 million as of December 31, 2009 represents a difference between the
amounts of these investments and the underlying equity This difference 1s comprised of $34 mulhon of definite-hved intangible and

tangible assets with a weighted average remaining useful life of 17 years. and $27 mullwoa of indefinite-lived intangible and tangible
assets

The Company’s equity i the earmings of non-consolidated affiliates amounted to $16 million, $23 million and $38 miilion for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively During 2009, these entities generated sales of approximately $3504
million, net income of approximately $45 mullion and at December 31, 2009 had total net assets of approximately $511 million
Dividends recetved from non-consolidated affiliates by the Company tor the periods ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were
$7 milhon, $33 mullion and $56 mullion. respectively The Company does not hold a controlling interest in an entity based on exposure
to economic rishs and potential rewards (variable interests} for which 1t 1s the primary beneficiary Further, the Company's joint
ventures are businesses established and maintained 1n connection with its operating strategy and are not special purpose entities

The Company holds a 50% non-controlling interest 1n a joint venture located 1n Turkey This joint venture was estabhshed in 1993 for
the purpose of manufacturing and marketing automotive parts, including pistons piston rings. piston pins. and cylinder hiners, to O
and attermarket customers Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the Company s partner holds an option to put 1ts shares to a
subsidiary of the Company at the hugher of the current fair value or at a guaranteed mummum amount The term of the contingent
guarantee 1s indefinite, consistent with the terms of the joint venture agreement However, the contingent guarantee would not survive
terminauion of the joint venture agreement

The guaranteed mimmum amount represents a contingent guarantee of the mitial investment of the jomnt venture partner and can be
exercised at the discretion of the partner As of December 31. 2009, the total amount of the contingent guarantee, were all tniggering
events to occur, approximated $60 mullron Management believes that this contingent guarantee 1s substanually less than the estimated
current fair value of the guarantees’ interest tn the aftiliate As such, the contingent guarantee does not give nse to a conuingent
liabihty and as a result, no amount 1s recorded tor this guarantee If this put option were exercised, the consideration paid and net
assets acquired would be accounted for 1n accordance with business combination accounting guidance Any value in excess of the
guaranteed mimmum amount of the put option would be the subject of negotiation between the Company and its joint venture partner

The Company has determined that its investments in Chinese joint venture arrangements are considered to be “hmited-lived * as such
entities have specified durations ranging from 30 to 50 vears pursuant 1o regional statuiory regulations In general, these arrangements
call for extension renewal or hiquidation at the discretion of the parties to the arrangement at the end of the contractual agreement
Accordingly, a reasonable assessment cannot be made as to the impaet of such arrangements on the future hquidity position of the
Company
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ Continued

13. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued habilities consisted of the following

December 31
2009 2008
(ivlilhens of Dollars)

Accrued compensation 3 133 $ 176
Accrued rebates 100 104
Restructuring liabilities 35 113
Non-income tax payable 37 25
Accrued income taxes 23 17
Accrued product returns 22 21
Accrued professional services 11 14
Accrued warranty 7 9
Accrued Chapter 11 and U K Admunistration expenses 2 4

$ 410 $ 483
14. DEBT

In connectton with the consummation of the Plan. on the Effective Date, the Company entered into a Tranche A Term Loan
Agreement (the -Tranche A Facility Agreement™} The Tranche A Facility Agreement provided for a $1,335 million term loan 1ssued

on the Efiective Date to satisfy 1n part the cbligations owed under the Predecessor Company’s prepetition credit agreement and certain
other prepetition surety-related obligations On December 27, 2007, the Company notified the administrative agent under the Tranche
A Facility Agicement of the Company’s mtent to repay the Tranche A term loan duning January 2008 On January 3. 2008, the

Tranche A term loan was repaid 1n tull

On the Effecuive Date the Company, as the issuer, entered into an Indenture (the - Indenture™ relating to the issuance of
approximately $305 million 1n senior subordinated third prionity payment-in-kind notes (the PIK Notes,” referred to together with the
Tranche A Facility Agreement as the “Repaid [nstruments™) The PHK Notes were 1ssued n order to satisty in part the obligations
under the Predecessor Company's prepetition credit agreement and certan other prepetiion surety-related obligations On
December 28, 2007, the Company gave 1ts notice of intent to redeem the PIK Notes, in full, in January 2008 at a price cqual to their
redemption price On January 3, 2008, the PIK Notes were redeemed 1n full

Also on the Effective Date, the Company entered into a Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement {the ‘ Exit Factliies™) with
Citicorp US A Inc as Administrauive Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank. N A as Syndication Agent and certain lenders The Ewit
Faciliues include a $540 mithon revolving credit facility (which 1s subject to a borrowing base and can be increased under certain
circumstances and subject to certain conditions) and a $2,960 mullion term loan credit facility divided into a $1 960 mullion tranche B
loan and a $1 000 million tranche C loan The Company borrowed $878 million under the term loan facihity on the Effective Date and
the remaining $2,082 million of term leans, which were available tor up to sixty days after the Etfective Date, have been tully drawn
as described below As ot the Effective Date, existing letters of credit under the Predecessor Company s debtor-in-possession (*DIP")
credit agreement of $34 million, and existing letters ot credit 1ssued under the Predecessor Company s prepetition credit taclhity of $39
rmithion, were rolled over as letters ot credit under the Exit Facilities

The obligations under the revolving credit facility mature December 27, 2013 and bear interest for the first six months at LIBOR plus
1 75% or at the alternate base rate ("ABR.’ defined as the greater of Citibank, N A s announced prime rate or 0 30% over the Federal
Funds Rate) plus 0 75%, and thercafter shall be adjusted 1n accordance with a pricing gnid based on avatlabihty under the revolving
credit facithity Interest rates on the pricing gnid range from LIBOR plus 1 50% to LIBOR plus 2 00% and ABR plus 0 50% to ABR
plus 100% The tranche B term loans mature December 27, 2014 and the tranche C term loans mature December 27 2015 The
tranche C term loans are subject to a pre-payment premium, should the Company choose to prepay the loans prior to December 27,
2011 All Exat Tacihtes term loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 1 9373% or at the alternate base rate (as previously defined) plus
0 9375% at the Company’s clection To the extent that interest rates change by 25 basis points, the Company’s annual interest expense
would show a corresponding change of approxamately $4 million
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

On January 3, 2008, the Company drew an additional $2,082 milhion under the Exut Facilities, of which $1.642 million was used by
the Company to repay or redeem the Repaid Instruments and interest thereon, both as discussed above Given that the Company
intended to finance the Repaid Instruments on a long-term basis. commitments for such long-term financing existed as ot December
31, 2007 and that such intent was achieved with the refinancing of the Repaid Instruments with long-term borrowings under the Exat
Faciliues each of the Repaid Instruments was classified as long-term 1n the Company s balance sheet as of December 31, 2007

The Company., during 2008 entered into a sertes of five-year interest rate swap agreements with a total notional value of $1,190
millien to hedge the vanability of interest payments associated with 1ts vanable-rate term loans under the Exit Fauhues Through
these swap agreements, the Company has fixed its base interest and premium rate at a combined average interest rate of approximately
5 37% on the hedged principal amount of $1,190 million Since the interest rate swaps hedge the varniability of interest payments on
variable rate debt with the same terms, they qualify tor cash flow hedge accounting treatment

The Exit Facilities were imtially negotiated by the Predecessor Company and certain of the Plan Proponents, reaching agreement on
the majority of significant terms of the Exit Facilities 1n early 2007 Between the time the terms were agreed 1n early 2007 and the
Eftective Date, interest rates charged on similar debt instruments for compamies with similar debt ratings and capitalization levels rose
to higher levels As such, when applying the provisions of fresh-start reporting, the Company estimated a fair value adjustment of
$163 millien for the available borrowings under the Exit Facilities This esumated fair value has been recorded within the fresh-start
reporting and will be amortized as interest expense over the terms of each of the underlying components of the Exit Facihities Duning
both 2009 and 2008, the Company recogmzed $22 mullion 1n interest expense associated wath the amortization of this fair value
adjustment

Debt consisted of the following
December 31
2009 2008
(Milhons of Dollars)

Exit Facilities

Revolver $ — $ —
Tranche B term loan 1,921 1,940
Tranche C term loan 980 990
Debt discount (119} {141)
Other debt, primarily foreign instruments 75 81
2,857 2,870
Less short-term debt, including current maturities of long-term debt (97) (102)
‘Total long-term debt £ 2 760 $ 2,768

The obligations of the Company under the Exit Facihities are guaranteed by substantially all of the domestic subsidianes and certain
foreign subsidianies ot the Company, and are secured by substantially all personal property and certain real property of the Company
and such guarantors, subject to certain hmitations The liens granted 1o secure these obligations and certain cash management and
hedging obligations have first prionty

The Exit Facilities contain some affirmative and negative covenants and events of default, including, subject to certain exceptions,
restricttons on ncurring additional indebtedness. mandatory prepayment provisions assoclated with specified asset sales and
dispositions  and Iimitations on () mvestments, 11) certain acquisitions, mergers or consolidations, m) sale and leaseback transactions,
1v) certain transactions with affiliates and v) dividends and other payments 1n respect of capital stock
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The total commitment and amounts outstanding on the revolving credit facihity are as follows

December 31
2009 2008
(Milhons of Dollars)

Current Contractual Commitment $ 540 $ 540
Outstanding
Revolving credit tacility $ — $ —
Letters of credit — 47
Total outstanding $ — $ 47

Borrowing Base on Revolving credit facility
Current borrowings —

Letters of credit — 47
Avatlabie 1o borrow 470 475
Total borrowing base 5 470 $ 522

The Company had $30 million of letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2009, all pertaining to the term loan credit tacility The
Company had $57 million of letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2008, $47 mullion pertaining to the revolving credit facility
and $10 million pertaining to the term loan credit tacility To the extent letters of credit associated with the revelving credit facility are
issued, there 1s a corresponding decrease 1n borrowings available under this facility

The Company has the tollowing contractual debt obligations outstanding at December 31, 2009

Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings Debt
{(Vlillions of
Dollars)
2010 $ 97
2011 31
2012 30 ‘
2013 30
2014 1,853
Thereafter 935
Total $ 2976

The weighted average cash interest rates for debt were approximately 3 5% and 4 6% as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Interest pard on debt 1n 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $124 miullion, $152 million and $217 mullion, respectively

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the estimated fair values of the Company s Exat Facilities were $2.444 and $1.363 muilion,
respectively The estimated fair values were $339 and $1,427 mullion, respectively, lower than its carrving value Fair market values
are developed by the use of estimates obtained from brokers and other appropriate valuation techniques based an information availlable
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 The fair value estimates do not neccssarnily reflect the values the Company could realize in the
current markets
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ Continzed

15 PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Company sponsors several defined benefit pension plans {- Penston Benefits™) and healih care and hie insurance benefits (- Other
Benefits ) for certain employces and retirees around the world Using appropriate actuanial metheds and assumptions, the Company s
defined benefit pension plans, non-pension postemployment benefits, and disabibty, early retirement and other postemployment
benefits are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715, Compensation — Retirement Benefits (“FASB ASC 7157)

The measurement date for all defined benefit plans 1s December 31 The following provides a reconciliation of the plans benefit
obligations, plan assets, funded status and recognitien in the consolidated balance sheets

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-US Plans Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
{Millions of Dollars)
Change in benetit obligation
Benetit obligation, beginmng of
year $ 986 5 1,006 $ 334 A 348 5 494 $ 523
Service cost 26 24 8 7 2 1
Interest cost 63 61 18 19 31 30
Employee contributions — — — — 2 2
Benefits paid {79 (73) (24) {23) {50) (50)
Medicare subsidies received —_— — — — 3 4
Curtailment — — (2) n — —
Plan amendments 1 — — (7) (8)
Actuarial losses (gains) and
changes in actuanal
assumptions 75 (1) 5 1 28 (3)
Net transfer m — — 6 — — —
Currency translation -— — 7 (7 3 (5)
Benefit obligation, end of year 3 1071 3 986 § 352 5 334 §$ 306 $ 494
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets,
beginming of year ) 541 $ 907 % 40 $ 2 % — $ —
Actual return on plan assets 126 (295) 2 2 — —
Company contributions 2 4 23 23 45 44
Benefits pawd (7% (75) (24) (23) (50) (50)
Med:care subsidies received — — — — 3 4
Employee contributtons — o —— — 2 2
Net transfer 1n — — 3 _ - —_
Currency translation — — ] (4 — —
Fair value ot plan assets at end of
year $ 590 $ 541 45 _ % 40 $ — b —
Funded status of the plan $ (481) $ (445) § {307) $ (294) $ (5060 $ (494}
Amounts recogmzed 1n the
consohidated balance sheets
Noncurrent assets s — $ — 3 3 b 2 8 — h —
Current habithties {2} (2} (13) (15) {44) (44)
Noncurrent hablities (479} {443) {293) (281) (462) (450)
Net amount recognized $ (481} $ {443) $ (307) $ (294} $ (306) $ (494)

Amounts recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive loss,
inclusive of tax impacts

Net actuarial loss (gain) b3 319 $ 348 % 6 $ 2 3 13 $ (2)
Prior service cost (credit) 1 i — — (14) {3)
Total $ 320 b 349 § 6 5 2 5 (1) $ (10)

Source FEDERALMOGUL CORP 10-K February 23 2010 Porvorend by Mornmastar Dosument Research %




100

Source FFDERAL MOGUL CORP 10-K, February 23 2010

Povsored by Mormmgstar® Document Besearch ™



Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation as of December 31

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-U S Plans Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Dhscount rate 575% 6 45% 513% 5 59% 5 63% 6 40%
Rate of compensation
Increase 350% 330% 314% 318% — —

The Company evaluates 1ts discount rate assumption annually as of December 31 for each of 1ts retirement-related benefit plans based
upon the yield of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments. the maturities of which correspond to expected benefit payment dates

The Company’s expected return on assets 1s established annually through analysis of anticipated future long-term investment
performance for the plan based upon the asset allocation strategy While the study gives appropriate consideration to recent fund
performance and historical returns, the assumption 1s primarly a long-term prospective rate

Information for defined benefit plans with projected benefit obligations n excess of plan assets

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-U.S Plans Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
{Milhons of Dollars)
Projected benefit obliganon $ 1,071 $ 986 § 351 $ 331 8 506 $ 494
Fair valuc of plan assets 590 541 41 35 — —

[ntormation tor pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-US Plans
2009 2008 2009 2008
{Millions of Dollars)
Projected benefit obligation 5 1071 $ 986 $ 327 $ 31t
Accumulated benefit obligation 1.058 972 313 297
Fair value of plan assets 590 541 22 18

The accumulated benetit obligation for all pension plans i1s $1 391 million and $1,289 million for the years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008 respectively

Components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-U S Plans Other Benefits
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
{Millions of Dollars)
Service cost $ 26 § 24 $ 2 % 8 ¥ 73 7 8 23 1 3% 2 ‘
Interest cost 63 61 60 18 19 16 31 30 31
Expected return on plan assets @3 (79 2 2) (3) 2y — — —
Amortization of actuanal losses 30 —_ 18 — — 3 — — 19
Amortization of prior service
cost {credit) — - 6 — — — N - (12)

Settlement and curtailment gain — — — (2) — {2) — — —

Net periodic cost $§ 76 % 1§ 38 % 22 § 23§ 22 %8 32 %8 31 % 40
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-U S Plans Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Discount rate 6 45% 625% 559% 567% 6 40% 620%
Expected return on plan
assels 8 50% 8 50% 579% 6 33% — —
Rate of compensation
increase 3 50% 3 70% 3 18% 274% —_ —

Amounts 1in accumulated other comprehensive (loss} income expected to be recogmized as components of net peniodic benefit cost
over the next fiscal year

Pension Benefits

United States QOther Benefits
(Mullions of Dollars)
Amortization of actuanatl losses 3 25 $
Amortization of prior service credit — (2)
Total $ 25 $ (2)

The assumed health care and drug cost trend rates used to measure next year s pestemployment healthoare benefits are as follows

Other Benefits
2009 2008
Health care cost trend rate 7 % 7 5%
Ultimate health care cost trend rate 50% 50%
Year ultimate health care cost trend rate reached 2014 2014
Drug cost trend rate 85% 92%
Ultimate drug cost trend rate 50% 50%
Year ultimate drug cost trend rate reached 2014 2014

I'he assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant impact on the amounts reported for Other Benefits plans The following table
illustrates the sensitivity to a change i the assumed health care cost trend rate

Total Service and
Interest Cost APBO
(Milhons of Dollars)

100 basis point { "bp™) increase in health care cost trend rate 5 28 24

100 bp decrease 1n health care cost trend

rate (2) (22)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for projected benefit obhgations ( PBQ’) associated

expense and other comprehensive loss { OCL™) The changes n these assumptions have no impact on the Company s 2009 funding
requirements

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-U S Plans Other Benefits
Change Change Change Change
n 2010 Change n m 2010 Change n Change Change
pension n accumulated penston m accumulated m 201¢ 1]
expense PBO OCL expense PBO QCL expense PFBO

(Muthions of dollars)

25 bp decrease in

discount rale $ PR 2% {26) § — 3 9 s 9 s —_ 3 1
25 bp tncrease 1n

discount rate (2) (26) 26 — (9 9 — {10}
25 bp decrease 1o return

on assets rate 2 — _ - — . _ _
25 bp increase 1n retum

on assets rate ) — — —_ — — — -

Effective for fiscal years ending afier December 15. 2009 the Company adopted the postemployment benefit plan assets disclosure
requirements of FASB ASC 715 Refer to Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements °, for more detail surrounding the tair value of each

mayjor category of plan assets, including the inputs and valuation techniques used to develop the fair value measurements of the plans
assets, at December 31, 2009

The Company’s pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at the measurement dates of December 31, 2009 and 2008. by asset
category are as tollows

United States Plan Assets Non-US Plan Assets
December 31 December 31
Actual Target Actual Target
2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010

Asset Category
Equity securnities 76% % 75% 4% 4% 4%
Debt secunties 24% 29% 25% 25% 26% 25%
Insurance contracts — — e 71% T70% 71%

160% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

The US nvestment strategy mutigates risk by mcorporating diversification across appropriale asset classes to meet the plan s
abjectives [t 1s intended to reduce nisk, provide long-term financial stabihty for the plan and maintain funded levels that meet
long-term plan obligations while preserving sufticient liquidity for near-term benefit payments Risk assumed 15 considered
appropriate for the return anticipated and consistent with the total diversification of plan assets Approximately 73% of plan assets are
invested in actively managed investment funds

The majonty of the assets of the non-U § plans are invested through insurance contracts The insurance contracts guarantec a
minimum rate of return The Company has no input into the investment strategy of the assets underlying the contracts, but they are
typically heavily invested in active bond markets and are highly regulated by local law

Projected benefit payments from the plans are estumated as follows

Pension Benefits
Umited States Non-U § Plans Other Benefits
(Mhllions of Dollars)

2010 b 71 $ 22 3% 44
2011 74 21 45
2012 75 22 44
2013 79 24 44
2014 76 25 43
Years 2015 - 2019 406 127 202

The Company expects to contribute approximately $105 million to its penston plans in 2010
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The Company also maintains certain defined contribution pension plans for eligible employees The total expenses attnbutable to the
Company s defined contribution savings plan were $20 nullion, $235 million and $25 million for the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively The amounts contributed to defined contribution pension plans include contributions to US

multi-employer pension plans of $1 million for the year ended December 3 1. 2007

Other Postemployment Benefits

The Company accounts for benefits to former or inactive employees pard afier employment but before retirement pursuant to FASB
ASC Topic 712, Compensation — Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits The liabilities for such U S and European postemployment
benefits as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 were both $42 million

16 INCOME TAXES

Under the habihity method deferred tax assets and habilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are

expected to reverse

The components of (loss) iIncome from continuing operations before income taxes consisted of the following

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Millions of Dollars)
Domestic $ (132) % 361) § 1,450
International 60 (85) 250
Total $ (72) § (446) § 1 7443

Significant components of the benefit (expense) tor income taxes are as tollows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{Millions of Dollars)
Current
Federal $ 2 % 58 (5)
State and local | 2 (3)
International (26) 34 I3
Total current (23) 30 (83)
Deferred
Federal 26 38 (274)
State and local — 4 —
International 36 (30) - 27
Total deferred 62 12 (247)
$ 39 % (19 $ (332)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

[ he reconcihation of income taxes computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate to ncome tax benefit (expense) 1s

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Milhons of Dollars)
[ncome tax benefit {(expense} at Umited States statutory rate $ 25 8 157 §% 610)
Tax effect from
Goodwill impairment —_— (88) (%)
Gain on purchase of debt by related party — 27N —
Foreign operations (37) 9) (198)
Fresh start reporting adjustments — —_ 335
Gain on settlement of habilities subject to compromisc — — (8)
State income taxes (1) 2 )
Favorable aud:t settlements and tax refunds 29 - 9
Asbestos trust deduction — — 65
Valuation allowances 20 (55) 100
Non-deductible interest. fees and other 3 1 (12}
Income tax benefit (expense) $ 39 % s s {332}

The following table summarizes the Company's total benetit (provision} for income taxes by component

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Milhons of Dollars)
Income tax benefit (expense) $ 39 % (19) % (332
Adjustments to goodwill — (262) 81
Alocated to equity
Posternployment benefits (99) 119 (59
Dervatives 2) 34 —
Foreign currency translation 2 2 8
Valuation allowances 129 (151) 31
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continzed
Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and hiabilities are as follows

December 31
2009 2008
(Millions of Dollars)

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards 3 627 b3 479
Pastemploy ment benefits, including pensions 397 412
Reorganization costs 100 110
Other temporary differences —_ 49
Tax credits 99 49
Total deferred tax assets 1,223 1.659
Valuation allowances for delerred tax assets (B63) (786}
Net deferred tax assets 358 313

Deferred tax Liabilities

Investment m U S subsidiaries (367) (36T}
Intangible assets (320) (336)
Other temporary differences (38) —
Fixed assets (80) (92}

Total deferred tax liabilities {805) (795}

b (447) & (482)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as follows

December 31
2009 2008
(Milhons of Dollars)

Assets

Prepatd expenses and other current assets $ 34 $ 56

Other noncurrent assets 20 24
Liatlities

Other current habihities (3) £))]

Long-term portion ot deferred income taxes (498) {554)

$ (447) A (482)

Income tax refunds received, net of income taxes paid, were $10 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to income
taxes patd, net of income tax refunds received, ot $73 muilion and $48 mullien for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively

The Company did not record taxes on its undistributed earnings of $617 million at December 31. 2009 since these eamnings are
considered by the Company to be permanently remnvested If at some future date, these earmings cease to be permanently reinvested,
the Company may be subject to Umited States income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Determiming the
unrecognized deferred tax lhiability on the potential distribution of these earnings 1s not practicable as such lability, 1f any, 15
dependent on circumstances existing when remittance occurs

Al December 31, 2009 the Company had a deferred 1ax asset of $726 milhion for tax loss carryforwards and tax credits, including
%316 million 1n the Umted States with expiration dates from 2010 through 2029, $201 millhion in the United Kingdom with no
expiration date and $209 milhion in other junsdictions with various expiration dates Prior to January 1, 2009, any reduction in the
valuation allowance as a result ot the recognition of deferred tax assets was adjusted through goodwill Beginning January 1, 2009,
pursuant to FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations any reduction to the valuation allowance will be reflected through
continuing operations
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

T he Predecessor Company adopted the Accountng for Uncertainty in Income Taxes provisions now codified within FASB ASC 740,
as ot January 1, 2007 This gudance clanifies the accounung for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in companies financial
statements As a result, the Company applies a more-lkely-than-not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties It only allows the
recognition of those tax benefits that have a greater than 30% likelihood of being sustained upen examination by the taxing
authoriics As a result of this adoption the Predecessor Company recognized a $14 mullion decrease in the liability for unrecogmized
tax benefits, which was accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007 total sharcholders deficit

At December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company had total unrecogmzed tax benefits ot $419 million, $456 million and $252
mullion, respectively Of these totals, $86 million, $84 million and $92 mulfion respecuvely, represents the amount of unrecogmzed
tax benefits that 1f recogmized, would aiTect the effective income tax rate The total unrecognized tax benefits difter from the amount
which would affect the effectve tax rate primarily due 10 the impact of valuation allowances

A summary of the changes in the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31 2009, 2008 and 2007
are shown below

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
(Milltons of Dollars)
Change 1in unrecognized tax benefits

Balance at January 1 $ 456 $ 252 $ 171
Additions based on tax positions related to the
current year 18 40 127
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1l 207 10
Decreases for tax positions of prior years (43) (16) (32)
Decreascs for statute of imitations expiration (25) (17N (9}
Sctttements — (7 (1
Impact of currency translation 2 3) 6

Balance at December 31 b 419 5 456 3 252

The Company classifies tax-related penalties and net interest as income tax expense As of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007, the
Company recorded $13 nullion, $9 mullion and $6 mullion, respectively, in Labihties for tax-related net interest and penalties on 1ts
consolidated balance sheet During the year ended December 31 2009, the Company recorded a tax expense related to an increase in
1ts hability for interest and penalties ot $4 million _

The Company operates in multiple junisdictions throughout the world The Company 1s no longer subject 10 U S federal tax
examinations for years before 2006 or state and local for years betore 2001, with lmited exceptions Furthermore the Company 1s no
longer subject to iIncome tax examinations i major foreign tax junsdictions for years prior to 2002 The income tax returns of various
subsidiaries 1n various tax junisdictions are currently under examination 1t 1s possible that these examinations will conclude within the
next twelve months However, 1t 1s not possible to estimate net increases or decreases to the Company s unrecognized tax benefits
during the next twelve months

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Latigation and Environmental Matters

Resolution of Asbestos Liabiltties

As described in Note 2, all asbestos-related personal injury claims against the Debtors will be addressed by the U S Asbestos Trust or
the UK Asbestos Trust in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the CVAs, and such claims will be treated and paid in
accordance with the terms of the Plan the CVAs, and their related documents All asbestos property damage claims agamst the

Debtors have been compromised and resolved through the Plan and the CVAs Accordingly, the Debtors have not recorded an
asbestos liablity as of December 31, 2009 or 2008
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

Environmental Martters

The Company 1s a detendant n lawsuits filed, or the recipient of administrative orders 1ssued, 1n vanous jurisdictions pursuant to the
Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (*CERCLA °) or other similar national,
provincial or state environmental laws These laws require responsible parties to pay for remediating contamination resulting from
hazardous substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of their property, or by others
to whom they sent such substances for treatment or other disposiion The Company has been notified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency, other natonal environmental agencies, and various provincial and state agencies that it may be a
potentially responsible party (* PRP ) under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and
other nauonat and state or provincial environmental laws PRP designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and
subsequent remedial activitics

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costliest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to
which numerous companies sent wastes Despite the joint and several hability which might be imposed on the Company under
CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining to these sites, the Company s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally
been small The Company believes its exposure for Liability at these sites 15 limited

The Company has also 1dentified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cteaning up or
addressing environmenial contamination, in some cases as a result of contractual commitments The Company 15 actively sceking to
resolve these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual oblhigations Although difficult to quantify based on the
complenity of the 1ssues, the Company has accrued amounts corresponding to its best estimate of the costs associated with such
regulatory and contractual obhigations on the basis of available information from site investigations and best professional judgment of
consultants

Total environmental liabihties, determined on an undiscounted basis, were $22 million and $26 mithon at December 31 2009 and
2008 respectively and are included 1n the consolidated balance sheets as follows

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
{(Muhions of Dollars)

Other current habilities 3 7% 7
Other accrued habihties {noncurrent) 15 19
$ 22 $ 26

Management believes that recorded environmental Labihities will be adequate to cover the Company s esumated hability for its
exposure 1n respect to such matters In the event that such habilies were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded by the
Company. the Company’s results of operations and financial condition could be matenally affected At December 31, 2009,
management estimates that reasonably possible material addittonal losses above and beyond management s best estimate of required
remediation costs as recorded approximate $45 million

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records conditionzl asset retirement obligations { ‘CARO’ ) in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement
and Environmental Obligations The Company’s primary CARO activities relate to the removal of hazardous building materials at its
faciliies The Company records a CARO when the amount can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectation that an
operating site may be closed or sold The Company has 1dentified sites with contraciual obligations and several sites that are closed or
evpected to be closed and sold [n connection with these sites. the Company has accrued $30 mullion and $27 million as of December
31 2009 and 2008, respectively, for CARO, pnmanly related to anticipated costs of removing hazardous buillding matenats, and has
considered impairment 1ssues that may result from capitalization of CARO
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

The Company has additional CARO, also primarily rclated to removal costs of hazardous materials in buildings, for which it believes
reasonable cost estimates cannot be made at this time because the Company does not believe 1t has a reasenable basis to assign
probabilities to a range of potential settlement dates tor these 1etirement obligations Accordingly, the Company 1s currently unable to
determine amounts to accrue for CARO at such sites

For those sites that the Company 1dentifies in the future for closure or sale, or for which 1t otherwise believes it has a reasonable basis
to assign probabilities to a range of potential settlement dates, the Company will review these sites for both CARO and impairment
1S5Ues

Liabilities for CARO are included in the consohidated balance sheets as follows

December 31 December 31

2009 2008
(Milhons of Dollars)
Other current habihties b 14 8§ 9
Other accrued habfities (noncurrent) 16 18
$ 30 § 27

A rollforward of the CARO hability for 2008 and 2009 1s as tollows (in mullions of dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 27
Laabilities incurred 5
Liabihities settled/adjustments (3)

Baiance at December 31 2008 27
Laabilities incurred 5
Liabilities scttled/adjustments 2

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 30

Other Matters

The Company 1s involved 1n other legal actions and claims, directly and through its subsidiaries Management does not believe that the
outcomes of these other actions or claums are likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
positton, results of operations or cash flows

18. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the following

December 31
2009 2008
{Milhons of Doliars)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other $ (184) $ (252)
Hedge instruments (46) (98)
Income taxes (16) 3
Hedge instruments, including tax impact (62) (95)
Postemployment benefits (314) (340)
Income taxes (11) (1)
Pastemployment benefits, including tax impact {325) {341)

$ (571) $ (688)

109

Souice FEDERAL MA0GUL CORP 10-K February 23 2010 Porvered by hlormnast ¥ Documert Research™




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
19 CAPITAL STOCK
Common and Preferred Stoch

The Company, under 1is certificate of incorporation 1s authorized to issue 540,100,000 shares of capnal stock consisting of
450,100,000 shares of Common Stock, $ 01 par value and 90,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, § 01 par value

From December 27, 2007 through July 27, 2008, the Company was authorized to 1ssue 540,100.000 shares of capital stock consisting
of 400,000 000 shares of Class A Commeon Stock, $ 01 par value 50,100,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, $ 01 par value and
90,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $ 01 par value Both classes of commen stock had wdentical rights with respect to dividends,
distributions, and voting rights except that Class B Common Stock voted for Class B Directors and Class A Common Stock voted for
Class A Directors of the Board of Directors

On February 25, 2008 Thornwood Associates Limited Partnershep, 2 hmited partnership benetiually owned indirectly by Mr Carl
cahn, exercised the two options held by 1t to purchase all of the shares of Class B Common Stock from the U § Asbestos Trust for
aggregate consideration of $900 million, and the shares of Class B Common Stock automatically converted into shares of Class A
Common Stock pursuant to the then applicable certificate of incorporation

Eftective July 28, 2008, upon the written consent of the Company’s majenty shareholder and notice to all shareholders, the
Company s certificate of incorporation was amended 1o, among other things, ehminate all references to Class B common stock and
related provisions and reclassify the Successor Company s Class A common stock as the sole class of common stock

On September 11, 2008, the Company purchased 1,095,500 shares of 1ts common stock for $17 mullion in a single transaction with an
unrelated party

Warrants

In connection with the Plan, holders of the Predecessor Company’s common stock, Senes C ESOP Convertible Preterred Shares and
the 7% Convertible Junior Subordinate Debentures received warrants to purchase shares of Common Stock of the Successor Company
at an exercise price equal to $435 815, evercisable through December 27, 2014 The Company issued 6,951 871 warranis as of the
Eftective Date, all of which remain outstanding as of December 31 2009 All of the Predecessor Company ‘s common stock (and all
nights and covenants related thereto) was cancelled pursuant to the Plan on December 27 2007, of which 91 344,239 shares were
outstanding at December 27, 2007

The Company has accounted for these warranis as equity instruments in accordance with the Contracts in Entity s Own Equity
provision ot FASB ASC Topic 815, Dermvames and Hedging, and as such, will be classified in stockholders™ equity as they meet the
definition of  indesed to the issuer s stock’ The Company estumated the foir value of these warrants at $33 million as of December
31, 2007 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model Key assumptions used by the Company are summanized in the following
table

Expected volatihity 41%

Expected dividend yield 0%

Rish-tree rate over the estimated expected hiie of warrants 3 88%

Expected term (1n years) R 70
i10
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On February 2, 2005, the Predecessor Company entered mnto a tive-year employment agreement with Jose Mana Alapont, effective
March 23, 2005, whercby Mr Alapont was appomnted as the Predecessor Company's president and chief execuuve officer In
connection with this agreement. the Plan Proponents agreed to amend the Plan to provide that the reorganized Federal-Mogul would
grant to Mr Alapont stock options equal to at least 4% of the value of the Successor Company at the reorgamzation date (the
- Employment Agreement Options *} The Employment Agreement Options vest ratably over the life of the employment agreement,
such that one fifth of the Employment Agreement Options will vest on each anmversary of the employment agreement effective date
For purposes of estimating fair value, the Employment Agreement Options were deemed to expire on December 27, 2014

Additionally, one-halt of the Employment Agreement Options had an additional feature allowing for the exchange of one half of the
options for shares of stock of the Successor Company, at the exchange equivalent of four options for one share of Common Stock The
Employment Agreement Options without the exchange feature are referred to herein as “plain vanilla options’ and those Cmployment
Agreement Options with the cxchange feature are referred to as “options with evchange

The Predecessor Company determined the amount of compensation expense associated with the Employment Agreement Options
based upon the estimated fair value of such options as ot December 31 2007 Key assumptions and related option-pricing models used
by the Company are summanzed n the following table

Predecessor Company
December 31, 2007 Valuation

Plamn vaniila Options with
Options Exchange

Valuation model Black-Scholes Modified Binomual
Expected volatility 43% 43%
Expected dividend yield 6% 0%
Risk-free rate over the estimated expected
option hite 326—424% 326-424%
Expected option hife (in years) 380 462

In estimating the expected lite of the plain vanilla options, the Company utilized the “simplitied method” within FASB ASC Topic
718, Compensation — Stock Compensation The simplified method was used as there was only one individual who had outstanding
options as of December 31, 2007 and no historical option exercise data was available

Prior to the Effective Date of the Plan, the Predecessor Company was required 1o reassess the value of the Employment Agreement
Options quarterly and adjust the aggregate compensation expense recognized to reilect any change in the value of the Employment
Agreement Options The Predecessor Company recorded compensation expense pertaining to the options ot 87 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007

On the Etfective Date and n accordance with the Plan, the Company granted to Mr Alapont stock options to purchase four million
shares of Successor Company Commeon Stock at an exercise price of $19 50 (the “Granted Options™) Pursuant to the Stock Option
Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007 between the Company and Mr Alapont (the “Imtial CEO Stock Option Agreement ), the
Granted Options do not have an exchange feature In lieu of options with exchange” under the Employment Agreement Options, the
Successor Company entered inte a deterred compensation agreement with Mr Alapont intended to be the cconomic equivalent of the
options with exchange Under the terms of this deferred compensation agreement, Mr Alapont 15 entitled to certain distributions of
Common Stock, or, at the election of Mr Alapont, certain distributions of cash upon certain events as set forth in the Deferred
Compensation Agreement dated as ot December 27, 2007 between the Company and Mr Alapont (the “Detferred Compensation
Agreement 7) The amount of the distnbutions shall be equal to the fair value of 500,000 shares of Common Stoch. subject to certain
adjustments and offsets, determined as of the first to oceur of (1) the date on which Mr Alapont’s employment with the Company
termunates (2) March 23, 2010, the date on which Mr Alapont’s employment agreement with the Company expires, (3} Mr Alapont s
death. (4) the date Mr Alapont becomes disabled (as defined for purposes ot Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code), (5) at the
election ol Mr Alapont, 2 change 1n control (as defined for purposes of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code) or (6) the
occurrence of an unforeseeable emergency (as defined for purposes ot Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

In connection with fresh-start reporting the Company determined the aggregate estimated tair value at $34 milhion associated with the
Granted Options and deferred compensation Since the Deferred Compensation Agreement provides for net cash settlement at the
option of Mr Alapont. the Granted Options are treated as a hability award, and the vested portion of the awards, aggregating $19
mullien, has been recorded as a liability as of December 31, 2007 Key assumptions and related optton-pricing models used by the
Company are surnmarized in the following table

Successor Company December 31, 2007 Valuation
Options Connected

Ptain Vanilla To Deferred Deferred

Options Compensation Compensation
Valuation model Black-Scholes Monte Carlo Monte Carlo
Expected volatihty 41% 41% 41%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free rate over the
estimated expected
option lite 3 34% 3 53% 353%
Expected option hife {in
years) 387 4 61 461

On February 14, 2008, the Company entered 1into Amendment No 1 to the Imitial CEO Stock Option Agreement, dated as of February,
14, 2008 (the "Amendment ) Pursuant to the Amendment the exercise price for the option was increased to $29 75 per share On
February 13, 2008, the Imtial CEO Stock Option Agreement as amended was cancelled by mutual written agreement of the Company
and Mr Alapont On February 15, 2008 the Company entered into a new Stock Option Agreement with Mr Alapont dated as of
February 15, 2008 (the New CEO Stock Option Agreement’) The New CEO Stoch Option Agreement grants Mr Alapont a
non-transferable, non-qualified option (the * CEOQ Option™) to purchase up to 4,000,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock
subject to the terms and conditions described below The exercise price for the CEO Option1s $19 50 per share, which 1s at least equal
to the fair market value of a share of the Company s Common Stock on the date of grant of the CEO Option In no event may the CEO
Option be exercised, 1n whole or in part, atter December 27 2014 The New CEO Stock Option Agreement provides for vesting as
follows 40% of the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option were vested on the date ot grant, and an additional 20% ol the
shares of Comman Stock subject to the Option vest on cach of March 23, 2008, March 23, 2009 and March 23, 2010

These transactions were undertaken to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 409A 1n connection with the implementation of

Mr Alapont s employment agreement The grant of the CEQ Option was approved by the Company s shareholders effective July 28,
2008

The Company revalued the CEO Option at December 31, 2008, resulting in a revised fair value ot $4 mullion During 2008, the
Company recogmzed $16 million (n income assoviated with these options Since the Deterred Compensation Agreement provides for
net cash settlement at the option ot Mr Alapont, the CEQ Option s treated as a liability award, and the vested poruon ot the awards,
aggregaung 53 mulhien, was recorded as a Lability as of December 31, 2008 Key assumptions and related option-pricing models used
by the Company are summarnzed in the following table

Successor Company December 31, 2008 Valuation
Options Connected T

Plan Vanilla To Deferred Deferred

Options Compensation Compensation
Valuation model Black-Scholes Monte Carlo Monte Carlo
Expected volatihty 69% 69% 69%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free rate over the
estimated expected
option hfe 105% 1 19% 1 19%
Expected option hife (in
years) 314 36l 36l

The Company revalued the CEO Opuion at December 31, 2009, resulting 1n a revised fair value of $29 million Duning 2009, the
Company recognized $25 million in expense associated with these options Since the Deferred Compensation Agreement provides tor
net cash settlement at the optton of Mr Alapont, the CEO Option 1s treated as a hability award and the vested portion of the awards
aggregating $28 mullion, was recorded as a hability as of December 31, 2009 The remaining $1 mullion of total unrecogmized
compensation cost as of December 31, 2009 related to non-vested stock options 1s expected to be recognized ratably over the
remaining term of Mr Alapont’s employment agreement Key assumptions and related option-pricing models used by the Company
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are summarized in the following table
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Successor Company December 31, 2009 Valuation

Options Connected
Plain Vanilla To Deferred Deferred
Options Compensation Compensation

Valuation model Black-Scholes Monte Carlo Monte Cearlo
Expected volatility 61% 61% 61%
Expected dividend y:eld 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free rate over the

estimated expected

option hife 141% 1 47% 147%
Expected option hife (in

years) 252 261 261

Expected volatility 1s based on the average of five-year historical volatility {71%) and implied volatility (50%) for a group of auto
indusiry comparator companies as of the measurement date Ruisk-free rate 15 determined based upon U S Treasury rates over the
estimated expected option lives Expected dividend yield 1s zero as the Company has not pay dividends to holders of 1ts common stock
in the recent past nor does 1t expect to do so in the future Expected option hives are pnmanly equal to one-half of the ime to the end
of the option term

21 (LOSS) INCOME PER SHARE

As discussed 1in Note 2, the common shares of the Predecessor Company were cancelled upon the implementation of the Plan As
such, the income per share information for the Predecessor Company 1s not meaningful to shareholders of the Successor Company’s
common shares, or to potential 1investors 1n such common shares

The following 15 a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and dituted (loss) iIncome per common share

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(In Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

Net (loss) income attnibutable to Federal-Mogul

shareholders L) 43) $ (468) h) 1,412
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic (in

millions) 98 9 997 897
Incremental shares based on assumed conversien of

cumulative convertible preterred stock N/A N/A 16
Incremental shares on assumed conversion ot

deferred compensation stack (in miiliens) 04 03 N/A
Dtluted (in millions} 993 100 0 913"

Net (loss) income per share attnibutable to

Federal-Mogul
Basic 5 (0 46) 5 (4 69) $ 1574
Diluted $ {0 46) $ (4 69) 5 15 46

The Successor Company had a loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 As a result, diluted loss per share 1s the same as
basic in those periods, as any potentially dilutive secunities would reduce the loss per share
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

I'he 300,000 common shares 15sued in connection with the Deterred Compensation Agreement described in Note 20 are excluded
from the basic earmings per share calculation as required by FASB ASC Topic 710, Compensation

22, OPERATIONS BY REPORTING SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Prior to 2009, the Company's integrated operations were orgamzed (nto siX reporting segments generally corresponding to major
product groups, Powertrain Energy, Powertrain Sealing and Bearings. Vehicle Safety and Protection, Automotive Products, Global
Aftermarket and Corporate The Company consolidated 1ts reporting segments from six 1o five reporting segments during the first
quarter of 2009, ehminating the Automotive Products segment Prior year reporting segment amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the new reporting segment structure This segment consolidaton required a reallocation of goodwill and other
indefinite-hived intangibles This 1eallocation did not tiigger any rmpairment

Powertramn Energy 15 one of the world’s leading providers of powertrain components Federal-Mogul s powertrain encrgy products
are used in automotive, hght truck, heavy-duty industrial marine. agricultural power generation and small air-cooled engine
applications The primary products of this scgment include engine pistons, piston rings, piston pins cylinder liners, camshafls, valve
seats and guides, and 1gmition products These products are offered under the Federal-Mogul®, AE® Champion®, Goetze® and
Nural® brand names These products are erther sold as individual products or offered to automotive manufacturers as assembled
products This strategic product otfering adds value to the customer by simplitying the assembly process, lowering costs and reducing
vehicle development time Powertrain Energy operates 38 manufacturing facilities 1n 15 countries, serving many major autemotive,
heavy-duty diesel and industnal customers worldwide

FPowertramn Sealing and Bearings 15 one of the world’s leading sealing solutions and beanings providers Federal-Mogul offers a
portfohio of world-class brand names, including Federal-Mogul® Deva®, Fel-Pro®, FP Diesel®, Glyco®, Metafram®, Metagliss®,
National®, Payen®. Poral® and Sintertech® Ihe group serves a number of different industries including automotve, truck,
commercial equpment (construction, agricultural power generation, marine and ratl), industnal, recreation and consumer power
cquipment Product offering includes dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exhaust gaskets, static gaskets and seals,
heat shields, engine bearings, bronze engine bearings, aluminum engine bearings, bushings and washers, and transmissions
components Powertrain Sealing and Bearings operates 31 manufacturing faciliies in 12 countries, serving many major automotve,
heavy-duty diesel and industral customers worldwide

Vetucle Safety and Protection 1s one of the world’s leading suppliers of friction and systems protection products Such products are
used 1n automotive and heavy-duty applications and the primary products of this segment include brake disc pads, brake shoes, brake
lmings and blocks and element resistant sleeving systems protection products Federal-Mogul has a well-balanced portfolio of
world-class brand names, including Federal-Mogul®, Abex®, Anco®, Bentley-Harmis® Beral®, Champion® Ferodo®, Moog®,
ThermoQuiet® and Wagner® Federal-Mogul supplies friction products to most major customers in the light vehicle, commercial
vchicle and aerospace sectors and s also a leading company in the aftermarket Vehicle Safety and Protection operates 35
manutacturing facilities 1n 15 countries, serving many major automotive, rallroad and industrial customers worldwide

Global Aftermarker distnibutes products manufactured wrthin the above segments, or purchased, to the independent automotive,
heavy-duty and industrial replacement markets Federal-Mogul 1s a leader in several key aftermarket product lines These products are
marketed under the leading brand names Abexi®. AE®, ANCO®, Beral®, Carter®, Champion®, Fel-Pro®, Ferodo®, [P Diesel®,
Glyco®, Goetze®, MOOG®, National®, Necto®, Nural®, Payen®, Precision®, Scaled Power®, [hermoQuiet® and Wagner®
Global Aftermarket operates 21 distnibution tacilities tn 14 countries, serving a diverse base of distributors retal parts stores and mass
merchants around the world

Corporate 1s comprised of headquarters and central support costs for finance, human resources, information systems, legal, purchasing
and other corpolate activities as well as certam health and welfare costs for pension and other postemployment benefits tor the
Company s retirees Current period service costs for active employees are included in the results of operations tor each of the
Company’s reporting segments
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

The accounting pohcies of the reporting segments are the same as those of the Company Revenues related to products sold from
Powertrain Energy, Powertrain Sealing and Bearings, and Vehicle Safety and Protection to OEM customers are recorded within the
respective reporting segments Revenues from such products sold to aftermarket customers are recorded within the Global
Aftermarket segment All product transferred nto Global Aftermarket from other reporting segments 1s transferred at cost 1n the
United States and at agreed-upon arm’s length transfer prices internationally

The Company evaluates reporting segment performance principally on a non-GAAP Operational EBITDA basis Management
believes that Operational EBITDA most closely approximates the cash flow associated with the operational earnings of the Company
and uses Operational EBITDA to measure the performance of its operations Operational EBITDA 1s defined as earnings betore
interest. income laxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain items such as restructurimg and impairment charges, Chapter 11 and
UK Administraiton related reorgamzation expenses, gains or losses on the sales of businesses, gain on settlement of habilities subject
to comprise, fresh-start reporting adjustments, expense assoctated with U S based funded pension plans and the impact on 2008 gross
margin of the fresh-start reporting valuation ef inventory

Net sales by reporting segment was

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Vlillzons of Dollars)
Powertramn Energy $ 1413 § 209 § 2,063
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 819 1154 1,156
Vehicle Safety and Protection 772 085 1,016
Global Aftermarket 2.326 2637 2,679
$ 5330 $ 686 § 6.914
Cost of products sold by reporting segment was
Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(Millions of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy $ 1284 § 178 § 1,774
Powertrain Seahing and Bearings 801 1 090 1,102
Vehicle Safety and Protection 602 768 782
Global Aftermarket 1,851 2107 2,068
Corporate — {9 3
$§ 4538 § 5742 § 5.729
Gross margin by reporting segment was
Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{(Millions of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy $ 129§ 304 $ 289
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 138 64 54
Vehicle Safety and Protection 170 207 234
Global Aftermarket 475 530 611
Corporate — 9 (3)
b 792 0§ 1,124 § 1,185
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Operauonal EBITDA by reporting segment 1s as tollows

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
{Milhions of Dollars)
Powertrain Encrgy 3 176 % 354 % 355
Powertrain Sealing and Bearings 18 58 30
Vehicle Safety and Protection 164 206 225
Global Aftermarhet 320 377 423
Corporate {175) (233) (263)
Total Segments Operational EBITDA 503 762 790

Items required to reconcile Operational EBI'TDA to (loss) income
before income tax expense

Interest expense, net {132) (180) (199)
Depreciation and amortization (327) (349) (354)
Restructuring charges, net {32) {132) {48)
Expense associated with U § based tunded pension plans (66) (5 (31)
Adjustment of assets to far value {17} (451) (61)
Gross margin impact of December 31, 2007 fresh-start

reporting inventory adjustment — {68) —
Chapter tl and UK Admumstration related reorganization

costs 3) (17 (81
Gain on settltement of habilities subject to compromise — — 761
Fresh-start reporting adjustments — _ 956
Other 2 (6) 7

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes by 72y § {446} § 1,740

Total assets, capital expenditures, and depreciation and amortization information by reporting segment 1s as set forth 1n the tables
betow Included 1n total assets as of December 31, 2007 were estimated values primarnly for fixed assets, intangible assets and
deterred taxes, associated with the application of fresh-siart reporting The finahzation of fresh-start reporting resulted in subsequent
changes to these cstimates Goodwill was assigned to reporting segments and reporting units based on individual reporting unut fair
values over values attributed to specific intangible and tangible assets Reporting units are components ot the Company’s reporting
segments (which are also 1its operating segments) and gencrally align with speific product groups for whith segment managers
regularly review operating results

Successor Successor Predecessor Sugeessor Predecessor
Depreciation
Total Assets Capital Expenditures and Amortization
December 31 Year Ended December §1 Year Fnded December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
(Mulhons of Dollars)
Powertrain Energy $ 1,696 $ 1641 8§ T6 % 140 8§ 14 % ir 8 113 3 151
Powertratn  Sealing  and
Beanings 830 851 44 70 69 60 37 77
Vehicle Safety and
Protection 1 626 1698 38 71 62 87 78 96
Global Aftermarket 1,970 2,007 2 4 6 40 7 1
Corporate 1,005 1039 16 35 24 23 94 19
$ 7127 $ 7236 § 176 $ 320 § 310 $ 327 g 349 3 354
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

The following table shows geographic information

Successor Predecessor Successor
Net Sales Net PPE
Year Ended December 31 December 31
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008
(Millions of Dellars)

United States b 2,131 $ 2,597 % 2,789 § 354 3 633
Germany 880 1,366 1314 422 447
France 427 565 368 90 107
United Kingdom 221 339 377 71 70
Ttaly 263 317 300 85 96
Mexico 193 244 246 94 83
Other 1,215 1.438 1320 518 475
b 5330 $ 6,866 §$ 6914 § 1.834 s 1.911

23 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has operated an aftermarket distrnibution center 1n Venezuela for several years, supplymmg imported replacement
automotive parts to the local independent afiermarket Since 2005, two eschange rates have ewsted 1n Venezuela the official rate,
which has been frozen since 2005 at 2 15 bolivars per U S dollar, and the parallel rate, which floats at a rate much higher than the
official rate Given the existence of the two rates in Venezuela, the Company 1s required to assess which of these rates 1s the most
appropnate for converting the results of 1ts Venczuelan operations mto U § dollars at December 31. 2009 The Company has no
positive intent to repatnate cash at the paralle! rate and has demonstrated the ability to repatriate cash at the official rate n early
January 2010, thus, the official rate was deemed appropriate tor the purposes of conveision inte U § dollars

Near the end of 2009. the three year cumulative inflation rate for Venezuela was above 100% which requires the Venezuclan
operation 1o report 1ts results as though the U S doliar 13 1its funchional currency in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 830, Foreign
Currency Matters, commencing January 1, 2010 (" inflationary accounting *} The impact of this transitton to a U $ dollar functional
currency 1s that any change 1n the U S dellar value ot bolivar denominated monetary assets and habilities must be recognized directly
1n earnings

At December 31, 2009, the summanzed balance sheet of the Company’s Venezuelan operations 1s as follows (all balances are m U S
dollars, converted at the official exchange rate of 2 15 bolivar per U S dollar)

Cash and cash equivalents b 76
Other monetary assets, net 5
Netl monetary assets 81
Non-monetary assets, net 5
lotal 5 86

In early January 2010, prior to the bolivar devaluation, the Company repatriated $14 million at the official rate of 2 15 bolivars to U $
dollar On January 8, 2010. subsequent to this cash repatriation. the official exchange rate was set by the Venezuelan government at
4 3 bolivars per U § dollar, except for certain  strategic industries” that are permutted to buy U § dollars at the rate of 2 6 bolivars per
U S dollar Subsequent to this devaluation, the Company has repatriated $11 million at this “strategic™ rate

I'he Company estimates that the immediate impact of inflatonary accounting for its Venezuelan operations in 2010 15 a loss of

between $13-330 mulhon, largely dependent on the Company’s expected abihty to continue to repatniate cash at the ‘strategic * rate of
2 6 bolivars per U S dollar versus the ofticial rate of 4 3
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

24 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

The icllowing table presents selected unaudited quarteily operating results of the Company for 2009 and 2008, and the audited results

First Second Thard Fourth Year

{Amounts in milhons, except per share amounts and stock prices)

Year ended December 31, 2009

Net sales 5 1.238 $ 1304 3 1,380 $ 1408 $ 5,330
Gross margin 158 198 212 225 792
Net (loss) mcome attributable to

Federal-Mogul (10D 3 10 43 (45)
Net (loss) income per basic share

attnibutable to Federal-Mogul (102) 003 0il 043 (0 46)
Net (loss) income per diluted share

attiibutable to Federal-Mogul (102) 003 010 043 (0 46)
Shares used in computing basic

(loss) income per share 98 9 98 9 9389 989 989
Shares used i computing diluted

(loss) income per share 993 993 993 99 4 993
Stock price

High $ 776 $ 12 62 $ 14 99 b 17 80

Low $ 215 $ 625 h) 823 $ 10 68
Dividend per share — — — —

First Second Third Fourthg) Year
(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts and stock prices)
Year ended December 31, 2008

Net sales 3 1,859 $ 1.995 8 1,692 5 1320 b 6.866
Gross margin 266 396 279 183 1,124
Net (loss) income attributable to

Federal-Mogul (32) 90 4 (530) (468}
Net {loss) income per basic share

attributable to Federal-Mogul (031) 090 004 (535 __ {469
Net (loss) income per diluted share

attributable to Federal-Mogul (031) 0 89 004 (535) (4 69)
Shares used 1n computing basic

{loss) income per share 100 0 100 0 998 98 9 99 7
Shares used 1 computing diluted

(loss) income per share 100 3 1003 100 1 993 1000
Stock price

High $ 2700 b 2120 $ 17 29 3 12 80

Low $ 18 00 $ 14 91 $ 11 94 $ 312

hvidend per share

(N

Includes mmpairment charges of $451 million associated with goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets, and
long-lived tangible assets Also includes $127 million ot net restructuring expenses incurred 1n connection with Restructuring

2009 program
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ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that informaton required to be disclosed 1n the
Company's periodic Exchange Act reports 1s recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the ume periods specitied 1n the
SEC's rules and torms, and that such mformation 15 accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including s
Chief Executive OtTicer and Chiet Financial Oflicer. as appropriate, 1o allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated. can provide only reasonable. not absolute, assurance that the objectives
of the control system are met Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the
benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs Because of the inherent imitations i all control systems, no evaluation
of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control 1ssues and nstances of fraud, 1f any, within the Company have been
detected

As of December 31, 2009, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including the Chtef Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation ot
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2009, at the reasonable
assurance level previously described

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 ot the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ot 2002, the Company included within this Form 10-K Management’s Report on
[nternal Control over Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2009 The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm
also attested to, and reported on the Company s Internal Control over Financial Reporting Management s report and the independent
registered public accounting firm'’s report are mcluded in Item 8 of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2009 that
has matenally aftected or 1s reasonably likely 10 matenally affect the Company s internal control over financial reporung

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III
ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The information required by Item 10 regarding our directors and other corporate governance matters 15 incorporated by reterence to

the Company s proxy statement for the 2010 annual meeting ot stockholders under the captions “Election of Directors™ “Corporate

Governance™ and Secunity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management  The mformation required by Item 10

regarding the Company s executive officers appears as a supplementary item following [tem 4 under Part [ of this report The

information required by [tem 10 regarding comphance with section 16(a} of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 15

incorporated by reference to the Company’s proxy statement for the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders under the caption
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to compensation of execcutive officers and directors of the Company under the caputions ‘Director
Compensation”, * Compensation Committee Interlochs and Insider Participation,” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis * in the
Company s proxy statement for the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders 1s incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this
Annual Report

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information under the captiens “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ in the Company’s proxy
statement for the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders 1s incorporated herein by reference and made a part ot this Annual Report

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE

I'he mformation required by Item 13 1s incorporated herein by reference to the Company s proxy statement for the 2010 annual
meeting of stockholders under the captions * Director [ndependence and Controlled Company Status’ and Certain Relationships and
Related-Party Transactions

ITEM 14 PRINCIPALACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Information with respect to the fees and services of our principal accountant under the caption * Fees of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm” in the Company s proxy statement for the 2010 annual meeting of stockhelders 1s incorporated herein by reterence
and made a part of this Annual Report
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PARTLY
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report

1  Financial Statements

Financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are hsted under Part 11, Item 8 hereof
2 Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Financial Statements and Schedules Omitted

Schedules other than the schedule histed above are omitted because they are not required or applicable under mstructions
contained in Regulation 8-X or because the information called for is shewn n the financial statements and notes thereto
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SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Successor
Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Addstions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Peniod Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
{Millrons of Dollars)
Year ended December 31, 2009
Valuation allowance tor trade
recervables $ 27 § 5 8 — $ (1D § 19 i
Inventory valuauon allowance 37 20 291y (10)®» 76
Valuation allowance for deferred tax
asscts 786 20) 99 — 865
Year ended December 31, 2008
Valuation allowance for trade
receivables b — % 6 21y § — $ 27
Inventory valuation allowance — 11 26(1) — 37
Valuation allowance for deterred tax
assets 484 53 247 — 786
Predecessor Successor
Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions |
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Begmning Costs and Other Fnd of Fresh-Start Successor
Description of Pertod Expenses Accounts Deductinns Period Adjustments Company

{(Mhllions of Dollars)
Year ended December 31,

2007
Valuation allowance
for trade
recenables $ 29 % 13 — % o § 24 8 24 3 —
Inventory valuation
allowance 66 5 — 13m 58 (538) -

Valuation atlowance
for deferred tax
assets 1608 {100) (%18} (669) 808 (324) 484

(1} Represents remaining portion of fresh-start adjustment that 1s being reestablished with a corresponding increase to gross accounts
receivable and tnventory

(2} Uncollecuble accounts charged off net of recovenies

(3} Obsolete inventory charged oft
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15(b). Exhibits

The Company will furnish upon request any of the following exhibits upon payment of the Company's reasonable expenses for

furnishing such exhibit

21

31

32

417

418

103

104

1020

1021

1022

1024

10 25

1032

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 11, 2007 between Federal-Mogul
Corporatton and New Federal-Mogul Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 | to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 11, 2007 )

The Company s Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Incerporated by
reference to Exhibit 3 1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 28, 2008 )

The Company s Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 28, 2008 )

Federal-Mogui U S Asbestos Personal Injury Trust Agreement by and among the Company the
Future Claimants Representative, the Official Committee of Asbestos Claimants, the Trustees,
Wilmington Trust Company, and the members of the Trust Advisory Commuttee, dated as of
December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhubit 4 1 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007 by and among the company,
Thomwood Associates Limited Partnership and the Federal-Mogul Asbestos Personal Injury
Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 27 2007 )

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10 10 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992 )

Description of Umbrella Excess Liability Insurance for the Senwor Management Team
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 11 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1990 )

Amended and Restated Federal-Mogul Supplemental Key Executive Pension Plan dated January
1, 1999 and Restated February 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhiit 1020 to the
Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 ) ¥

Employment Agreement dated February 2, 2005 between the Company and José Mana Alapont
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibut 10 22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005 ) T

Federal-Mogul Corporation Key Executive Pension Plan for Jose Maria Alapont (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10 23 to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31,2005 ) 1

Form ot Change 1n Control Employment Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 3
o the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 2, 2003 ) 1

Agreement between the Company, T&N Limited, the other Plan Proponents, High River
Limted Partnershup, the Admimstrators and the Pension Protection Fund dated September 26,
2005 {Incorporated by reterence to Exhibit 10 1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated September 30, 2005 }

Employment Contract dated April 20, 2005 between Federal Mogul Services, Eurl and Jean
Bruno! (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 32 to the Company s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2006 ) T
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10 35 Warrant Agreement by and between the Company and Mellon [nvestor Services LLC, dated
December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 4 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

10 36 Stock Option Agreement by and between the Company and José Maria Alapont dated as of
December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 4 6 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 ) %

1037 Amendment No 1 to Stack Option Agreement between the Company and Jose Mana Alapent
dated February 14 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 102 the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated February 14 2008 ) §

10 38 Cancellation Agreement between the Company and José Maria Alapont dated as of February 135,
2008 (Incorporated by reterence to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Febiuary
15,2008) ¢

10 39 Stock Option Agreement by and between the Company and Jose Maria Alapont dated as of

February 15, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhubit 10 4 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2008 )

10 40 Deterred Compensation Agreement by and between the Company and José Mana Alapont dated
as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 8 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

10 41 Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement by and among the Company. as Borrower. the
Lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N A, as Syndication Agent dated as of December 27 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exmbn
4 11 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

10 42 Iranche A Term Loan Agreement by and among the Company as Borrower, the several lenders
from time to ume parties thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as Administrative Agent,
dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 12 10 the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27 2007 )

10 43 Indenture by and among the Company, Guarantors therein and U § Bank National Assoeiation,
dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reterence to Exhibit 4 13 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

10 44 $140 Millon Loan Agreement by and between the Company and the Federal-Mogul Asbestos
Personal Injury Trust, dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reterence to Extubit 4 14
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

1043 $125 Milhion Loan Agreement by and between the Company and the Federal-Mogu! Asbestos
Personal Injury Trust, dated as ot December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reterence to Exhibit 4 15
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

[0 46 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of June 18, 2002 between the
Company and George Michael Lynch {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1045 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K tor the vear ended December 31, 2007 )

10 47 Severance Agreement dated as of June 18, 2002 between the Company and George Michael
Lynch {lncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 46 to the Company ‘s Annual Report on Form
10-K tor the year ended December 31, 2007 ) T

10 48 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of Junc 24, 2002 between the
Company and Jeff J Kaminski (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 1 to the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 13, 2008 ) ¥
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10 49 Severance Agreement dated as of June 24, 2002 between the Company and Jeff J Kamunski
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 13, 2008 ) t

*10 30 Federal-Mogul 2009 Management Incentive Plan %

*1051 Federal-Mogul 2009 Management Incentive Uphft Plan

*21 Subsichanies of the Registrant

*24 Powers of Attormney

*311 Certification by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

*312 Certification by the Company s Chsef Financial Officer pursuant to Rule §3a-14

*32 Certification by the Company s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to

18 U S C Section 1350 and Rule 13a-14(b)

* Filed Herewith
T Management contracts and compensatory plans or arrangements
15(c). Separate financial statements of affiliates whose securities are pledged as collateral.

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION

By /s/ Jeff J Kaminski
Jeft } Kamunski
Senior Vice President and Chiel
Financial Ofticer

Date February 23,2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and n the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Director. President and

/s/ Jose Maria Alapont Chiet Executive Officer February 23, 2010
Jose Maria Alapont (Principal Executive Ofticer)
/sf Jeff J Kaminski Senior Vice President and Chiet February 23, 2010
Financial Officer
Jeft J Kaminski (Principal Financial Otficer)
/s/ Alan Haughte Vice President and Controller February 23, 2010
Alan Haughie (Principal Accounting Officer)
* Director February 23, 2010

George Feldenkreis

/s/ Vincent J Intrieri Director February 23, 2010
Vincent J Intrier

* Director February 23, 2010
J Michael Laisure

/s/ Keith A Meister Director February 23, 2010
Keith A Meister
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/s/ David § Schechter
David § Schechter

»

Neidl § Subin

*

James H Vandenberghe

*By /s/ Robert L Katz
(Robert L Katz, Attorney-in-fact}

Darector

Director

Director

February 23. 2010

February 23, 2010

February 23. 2010

Source FEDERAL MOGUL CORP 18-K February 23 2010

Pesvereo by rloramastar Bosumer? BoserchS¥




Federal-Mogul 2009 Management Incentive Plan (MIP)

Goal:

The Management Incentive Plan (MIP) 15 intended to align the actions of participants with the geals of the Company and reward
participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Parti is:

Individual employees are ehigible for parucipation 1n the MIP based on an appointment by the employee s Vice President

Target Bonus,

Target Bonuses are expressed as a percentage of the employee s Base Annual Salary  1f the employee 15 paid on a monthly basis, the
Base Annual Salary, for purposes of the MIP Plan 1s 12 times the monthly rate 1f the employee 15 paid on an every-othcr-week basis,

the Base Annual Satary 1s 26 times the bi-weekly rate  For bonus calculations, exclude 13th month or other mandated payments in
countries that require them For calculation purposes the emplovee s Base Annual Rate as of December 31 2009 15 used

Target Bonus percentages vary by the position occupied by the individual i the orgamzation  No changes may be made to the
assigned target bonuses without the written approval ot the Director ot Compensation and Benefits andfor the Sr Vice President of

Human Resources and Orgamization It 1s the responsibility of the Human Resource Directors to insure that Target Bonuses are
consistent

Pro-Ration
When an individual first becomes eligible to partiapate in the MIP, or 1s promoted from a Job with one Target Bonus level to another
with a different Target Bonus level. or from one operation to another with diflerent metric measures, the calculated bonus 1s pro-rated

based on the number of months 1n the applicable job  There 18 no pro-ration for pertods of service ot less than two months

For example, a person newly hired with less than 2 months service would not recetve a MIP payment while a person with 10 months
service or more would not be pro-rated

If a participant 15 not actively at work for a period of more than three months {90 days). his/her award will be pro-rated
Communications;
Business Unit Human Resource Directors are solely responsible for communication of this MIP plan to participants

2009 MIP Qutline & Appendix
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Metrics:

2009 MIP metncs are cuthned in Appendix [

Adjustments - I'he metrics and their achievement levels are the basis for payout calculations However each participant's indivicual
performance and contributions will also be considered and may alter the final payout In addwion, the Company may reduce the 2009
MIP payment 10 a Group Operations Vice President, Group Finance Director or Plant Manager based on its assessment of the results
of an audit or sertes of audits of ptants or locations withm the individuals group

MIP Payout Ranges
The payout range for the 2009 MIP 1s from 0 to 200% of a participant’s Target Bonus For example, if an employee’s Target Bonus 1s
10% ot Base Annual Salary, he may receive an amount ranging from zero up to 20% of Base Annual Salary Payout percentages are
rounded to the nearest whole percent (0 5 and above rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down )
The 2009 MIP bonus payment 1s limuited t¢ a maxumum of 200% of an individual's Target Bonus

I ent

It for any metric the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metric will be 100%

1 ELrIC

It, for any metric, the achievement level does not equal or exceed 75% of the target, the payout for that metric wall be zero At 75%
achievement the payout for a metric will be 30%

L cnie Y,

The maximum level of achievement eligible tor a payout 1s 125% of the target tor a metric At 125% achievement the MIP payout
level 1s 200% tor that metric

The payout curve between the minimum achievement level and 100% s hinear, as 1s the payout curve between 100% and the
maximum achievement level

Eayout Timing,

MIP participants must be actively employed on the day of payout to be eligible for a MIP payment Payments under the 2009 MIP
will be made between January 1, 2010 and March 13, 2010 after business results are calculated and audited  In all countries. local tax
laws apply MIP payments are penstonable income In the U § | payments are subject to 401{k) deduction elecuons and statutory
withholding

2009 MIP Outline & Appendix |
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Compensation Commyitee of the Board of Directors

All incentive plan designs and awards, 1f any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Commiattee of the Board of Directors

Company Discretion,

The Company may. with the consent of the Compensation Committee, make changes to the MIP program and alter postpone or
disallow individual or location payments as it deems appropriate, within the plan's payout range of zero to 200% of Target

General Provisions,

a)_Withholding ot Taxes Federal-Mogul shall withhold the amount ot taxes which, in the determination of the Company, are required
under law with respect to any amount due or paid under the Plan

b) Expenses Federal-Mogul 1s responsible for all expenses and costs 1in connection with the adoption and administration of the Plan

L) Acuve Employment Active employment means actively engaged in the work of the Corporation  Those n severance penod, notice
pertod or on garden leave status pending termination are not considered 1n active employment

d) Voluntary Termination  Subject to the Company Discretion clause above, in the event a participant elects to leave or elects to
retire from Federal-Mogul before payment of the 2009 MIP bonus 1s made, all nights under the MIP cease and no benelit 1s vested,
accrued or due under the MIP

e) Involuntary {ermination Subject to the Company Discretion clause above, 1f a participant 13 involuntarily terminated for reasons
other than ~ for cause’, dies, or becomes permanently disabled prior to December 31, 2009 he or she may be paid a pro-rated portion
of histher calcutated MIP Bonus  The pro-ration will be calculated based on the formula (x imes Target MIP Bonus times the final
calculated payout pereentage) where x equals a fraction where the numerator (s the number of days the employee i1s employed 1n the
year and the denominator 15 365 (366 1n a Leap Year) Payment will be made at the same time active participants are paid [n the
event of involuntary termination, payment of this pro-rated MIP Bonus 1s contingent on the employee signing the Agreement and
Release form

2009 MIP Outline & Appendix
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Limitations,

a)No Coptinued Employment

Neither the establishment of the Plan participation 1n the Plan, nor any payment thereunder shall be deemed to constitute an express
or implied contract of employment of any participant for any period of time or tn any way abridge the rights of Federal-Mogul to
determine the terms and conditions of employment or 1o terminate the employment of any employee with or without cause at any time

b).Other Plans

Nothing contained heren shall it Federal-Mogul’s power to make regular or discretionary payments to employees of
Federal-Mogul, whether or not they are participanis n this Plan

2009 MIP Outhine & Appendix
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Appendix [
2009 MIEP Metrics

1. Operational EBITDA,
Operational EBITDA - Operaticnal EBITDA 1s defined as earnings before interest income taxes, depreciation and amortization and
certain items such as restructuring and impairment charges. Chapter 11 related reorganization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of
businesses, and the non-cash expense relating to U S based tunded pension plans as audited by Ernst & Young on a quarterly and
annual basis The finance department will calculate the Corporation's Operational EBITDA
Busmess Unit Operational EBITDA - Each of the Corporation’s business units, Powertrain Energy Powertrain Sealing and Beanings,
Vehiele Safety and Protection and Global A ftermarket has a goal for Operational EBITDA  Business Unit Operational EBITDA 15
calculated and reported by the finance department
Plant Operational EBITDA / Productivity - All locations have Operational EBITDA targets, the finance department will report the
locauion achievement level However, at distnibution centers or specific locations relying solely on transfer pricing the finance
department will report the level of achievement against productivity improvernent goals set in the budget

3 w Before Intere d vl

Net cash provided by operating activities less net cash used by investing before the deduction ot interest paid, net ot interest received
per the Form 10-K statement of cash tlows, and notes to the accounts, as audited by Ernst & Young on a quarterly and annual basis

3. Value Cash Flow,

Value Cash Flow 1s defined as Operational EBITDA !ess capnal spending. as audned by Ernst & Young on a quarterly and annual
basis

4 Safety, Customer Satisfaction and Service

Salety

The Company's goal 1s to have cero work-related incidents 1injunes or illnesses  Concealing of incidents which should have been
reported under the incident reporting system wall lead to discipline, up to and mndluding termination for cause

Safety 15 measured by [ncident Rate, as audited by operations finance and internal control on a monthly, guarterly and annual basis
The injury Inctdent Rate 1s the number of recordable inyuries, per 200 000 hours worked at the reporting facility

Plants that achieve or maintain an Incident Rate ot zero will receive maximum payout tor the Satety portion of this metric

2009 MIP Qutline & Appendix
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For 2009 plants and/or Business Umts with a 2009 Incident Rate at 1 3 or below tor two consecutive years will receive 200% payout
for the Safety portion of this metne

For 2009, plants and/or Business Umits with a 2008 Incident Rate above 1 5 have the goal of achieving a 10%
improvement Improvement beyond these goals will be recogmzed consistent with the MIP payout curve

Customer Satisfaction (Quality)

Customer Satisfactton (Quality) 15 measured in Parts per Million (PPM) defects as reported by customers and audited on a monthly,
quarterly and annual basis by operations, finance and internal control

Federal-Mogul's Quality goal 1s to provide products and services with zero defects For each Bustness Unit, product group and facility
the targets are as listed in the Quality Management Information System

Parts per Million (PPM) detects for 2009 over 2008 are
A 50 % reduction, 1f previous year PPM was >= 50
A 23 % reduction 1f previous year PPM was between 50 and 30
A 13 % reduction, 1f previous year PPM was between 30 and 11
Below 10 PPM 1if previous year PPM was below 11

Service

Service 1s measured by on-time delivery to customers, as audited by operations, tinance and internal control on a monthly, quarterly
and annual basis

[he 2009 goal for manufacturing plants 15 100% on-ume delivery to OE customers and 97% on-time delivery to the Afiermarket
The goal for Aftermarket distribution centers 1s 100% on-time delivery

Business unit leaders and participants tn manufacturing and distribution will, in general, be measured on all three metrics - Safety.
Customer Satisfaction (Quahty) and Service

Designated corporate functions will be measured on Safety and Customer Satsfaction (Quality)

Purchasing will be measured on Supplier Quality and Supplier Service  Supplier Quality 1s measured 1n PPM as reported by the
manufacturing plants in the F-M Supply Net system against the budget goal Supplier Service 18 delivery shipping by suppliers as
reported by the plants in the F-M Supply Net system vs the budget goal

2009 MIP Outhine & Appendix
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5. Productivity and Restructuring

Productivity 1s measured by non-volume related cost changes as reported in the Form 10-K as audited by Ernst & Youngon a
quarterly and annual basis

6 _SC&A

Measured by level of SG&A reductions outlined n the budget, as audited by finance and internal control on 2 monthly, quarterly and
annual basis [he finance department will report the level of achievement compared 1o the budget

2009 MIP Qutline & Appendix
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Federal-Mogul 2009 Management Incentive
Uplift Plan Outline

Goal,

The 2009 Management Incenttve Uphift Plan (2009 Uplifi) 1s a special program designed to incentivize long term performance and
retain cntical skills Toward this goal 1t provides participants with the opportunity to receive additional incentives for 2009
achievements

Participants.

This program 1s being offered to a select group of employees and applies solely to the calendar year 2009 indwvidual employees are
eligible for participation in the 2009 Uplhift based upon appomntment by the President and Chief Executive Officer Because of limited
participation in this program, employees are expected to keep their participation confidential

Target Bonus

The 2009 Uphfl Target Bonus Percentage 1s assigned to eligible participants at the discretion of the President and Chief Executive
Otfficer

For example, the President and Chief Executive Officer may elect to assign a Manager with a normal MIP Target Award of 20% of
base a 2009 Uphft Target Bonus of 10% When combined with the annual MIP program his/her combined 2009 Target Award 1s
30%

Shown another way this example would provide

Annual MIP Target Bonus 20%
2009 Uplift Target Bonus 10%
Combined 2009 Target Awards 30%

Pro-Ration

If an employee 1s hired or promoted during 2009, the calculation of histher award will be prorated in the same manner as the annual
MIP prorated calculation formula If a participant 18 not actively at work for a period of more than three months. his/her award will be
pro-rated

Metrics

The 2009 Uphift program metnics focus on Operational EBITDA Value Cash Flow, New Business Bookings and Return on Tangible
Assets

Operational EBITDA - Operational EBITDA 15 defined as earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and
certain items such as restructuring and impairment charges, Chapter 11 related reorganization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of
businesses, and the non-cash expense relaung to U S based funded pension plans, as audited by Ernst & Young on a quarterly and
annual basis
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Value Cash Flow - Value Cash Flow 1s defined as Operational EBITDA less capital spending, as audited by Emst & Young on a
guarterly and annual basis

New Busmness Bookings - New Business Bookings 15 defined as the total dollar value over the program life of newly awarded tuture
business in 2009, as audited by finance and internal control on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis

Return on Tangible Assets — Return on Tangible Assets 15 defined as Operational EBITDA for the year divided by average Assets
over 5 most recent quarters "Assets" 1s defined as total assets per the consolidated balance sheet excluding intangible assets. cash and
equivalents, as audited by Ernst & Young on a quarterly and annual basis

0 t Payout Ranges
I'he metrics and their achievement levels are the basis for payout calculations However, each participant's individual performance and
contributions will also be considered and may alter the final payout The payowt range for the 2009 Uplift program 1s from 0 to 200%

of a participant s 2009 Uplift Target Bonus If an employee s 2009 Uplift Target Bonus 1s. for example, 10% of base salary, he may
recelve an amount equal to zero up to 20% of base salary

Iarget Achyevement Level,
1f for any metric the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metric will be 100%
1eyement [.e

[t, for any metric the achievement level does not equal or exceed 75% of the target, the payout tor that metric will be zero At the
75% achievement level the payout 15 530%

hievement Level:

I'he maxamum level of achievement lor a payout 1s 125% of the target for a metric At 125% achievement, the 2009 Uplift payout
level 1s 200% for that metric

The payout curve between the mimimum achievement level and 100% 1s linear, as 1s the payout curve between 100% and the
maximum achievement tevel

Pavout Tining,

Cash Portion One half of the achieved 2009 Uplift award will be paid to participants 1n cash in two installments

Payment of two-thirds (2/3) ot the 2009 Uphtt cash portion will be made within 30 days afler completion of the annual audit of results
and between January 1, 2010 and March t5, 2010 Payment of one-third (1/3) of the 20609 Uplift cash portion will be made between
January 1 2011 and March 15, 2011 Interest will be credited to the second installment at a rate equal to the average one-month
LIBOR plus 1 9375% over the period from January 1, 2010 to such payment date
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2009 Uplift participants must be actively employed on the day of payout to be eligible for either installment payable under the 2009
Uplift payment

[n all countries, local tax laws apply 2009 Uplift payments are pensionable income In the U 8, payments are subject to 401(k)
deduction elections and statutory withholding

Stock Appreciation Rights Portion  One half of the achieved 2009 Uplift award will be paid 1o the paricipant in the form of stock
appreciation rights (SARs)

The SARs will be priced based on fair market value of a share of Federal-Mogul Common Stock and will have a five-year life  The
SARs will vest over a three year pertod as follows

First Anniversary of Grant Date  1/3
Second Anmiversary ot Grant Date  1/3
Third Anmiversary of Grant Date 1/3

Upon vesting the SARs may be exercised at the participant's discretion up Lo the expiration date which 1s close of business on the fifth
anniversary of the Grant Date

At ts sole option, the Company may settle the exercise of an SAR in shares of Common Stock, 1n cash or in a combination of cash
and shares  When exercised, the proceeds will be paid in cash to the participant on the next available payroll date but not later than 60
days following the date of exercise A participant will receive a SARs Agreement containing the terms of conditions of the SARs on
or as soon as practicable after the Grant Date

Compapy Discretion,

The Company may, with the consent of the Compensation Commuttee, make changes to the 2009 Uphft program and alter, postpone
or disallow indrvidual or location payments, within its sole discretion as it deems appropnate within the plan’s payout range of zere to
200% of Target With respect to the President and Chief Executive Officer's participation and award payment the Compensation
Commuttee of the Board of Directors shall have sole discretion

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

All incentive plan designs and awards, if any. and all terms relating to the SARs and to awards under this MIP Uplift Plan, are subject
to approval of the Compensation Commuttee of the Board of Directors

Ceneral Provisions,

a) Withholding of Taxes Federal-Mogul shall withhold the amount of taxes which, in the determination of the Company, are required
under law with respect to any amount due or paid under the Plan
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b) Expenses Tederal-Mogul 1s responsible tor all expenses and costs in connection with the adoption and administration of the Plan

«) Active Employment Acuve employment means actively engaged n the work of the corporation  Those 1n severance period, notice
pertod or on garden leave status pending termination are not considered 1n active employment

d) Voluntarvy lermination of Emplovment  Subject to the Company Discretion clause above, 1n the event a participant elects to leave
Federal-Mogul betore either both cash installments of the 2009 Uplift payment have been paid. all nghts under this Plan to receive
such installments shall cease and no benefit 1s vested accrued or due under the Plan A participant s SARs Agreement will contamn
specific provisions regarding termination of employment

¢).Reurement. If a participant retires in accordance with the provistons of an applicable retirement or pension plan or policy, he/she
will be paid any unpaid cash installment of the 2009 Uplift at the same time as other participants Upon retirement (as such term 1s
defined 1n the incenuve plan) all granted SARs immediately vest and are exercisable for the shorter of the remainder of the SARs” hiie
or 12 months fiom the date of retirement subject to the specific terms of a participant s SARs Agreement regarding termination of
employment

f)_Involuntary lermination In the discretion of the Compensation Commuttee 1f a participant 1s involuntanly terminated for reasons
other than for ~ cause™, dies, or becomes permanently disabled prior to December 31, 2009 he/she may be paid a pro-rated portton of
his/her calculated 2009 Uplifi bonus The pro-ration will be calculated based on the formula (x times Target 2009 Uphift bonus times
the final calculated payout percentage) where x equals a traction where the numerator 1s the number of days the employee 15 employed
in the year and the denominator 1s 365  Payment will be made at the same time active participants are paid between January 1, 2010
and March 15, 2010 [n the event of mvoluntary termination, payment of this pro-rated 2009 Uphft bonus 1s conungent on the
employee sigming the form of Federal-Mogul Agreement and Release A participant s SARs Agreement will contain specific

provisions regarding termination of employment

Lamitations,

a) No Continued Employment Neither the establishment of the Plan, patticipation in the Plan, nor any payment hereunder shall be
deemed to constitute an express or implied contract of employment of any particpant for any peried of time or 1n any way abnidge the
rights of Federal-Mogul to determine the terms and conditions of employment or to terminate the employment ot any employee with
or without cause at any time

b)_Other Plans  Nothing contained herein shall himit Federal-Mogul s power to make regular or discretionary payments to employees
ot Federal-Mogul, whether or not they are participants n this Plan

) SARs Agreement and Incentive Plan, This 20609 MIP Uphft Plan Outline 1s subject in all respects to the provisions ot a
participant’s SARs Agrecment and the incentive plan  If the terms of this 2009 MIP Uplift Plan Outhne conflict with the terms of
erther a participant s SARs Agreement or the incentive plan, the participant s SARs Agreement or the incentive plan, as applicable,
witl control
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Exhibit 21

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES

The direct and indirect operating subsidiaries of the Company and their respecuive States or other junsdictions of incorporation as of
December 31, 2009 are as follows

Percentage of Voting
Stock Owned Directly and
Indirectly by

Name of Subsidiaries Country Federal-Mogul

Federal Mogul Argentina SA Argentina 96 3%
Iederal-Mogu! Plasticos Puntanos, S A Argentina 96 3%
Federal-Mogui Pty Lid Australia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Automotive Pty Ltd Australia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul § A Belgium 100 0%
Federal-Mogul EMEA Distribution Services, BVBA Belgium 100 0%
Coventry Assurance, Ltd Bermuda 100 0%
Federal Mogul do Brasil Lida Brazil 100 0%
Federal Mogul Materiais de Friccao Ltda Braazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Industria de Autopecas Lida Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Canada Liumited Canada 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (Shanghar) Automotive Co , Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Champion Spark Plug (Guangzhou)

Co, Lid China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Dongsuh (Qingdao) Pistons Co , Ltd China 75 5%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Co Litd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Management (China) Co, Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Qingdac Automotive Company , Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Qingdao Piston Co Lid China 61 3%
I"ederal-Mogul Sealing Systems Co , Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghai Bearings Co . Ltd China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghai Compound Matenal Co , Ltd China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products A $ Czech Rep 100 0%
Federal Mogul Aftermarket France SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Financial Services SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Operations France SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sealing Sy stem SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Services Sarl France 106 0%
Federal-Mogul Systems Protection SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul, SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sintertech, SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Automotive Verwaltungs GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Betriebsgrundstucke Burscheid GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Burscheid Beteilligungs GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Burscheid GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Deva GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Fricuen Products GmbH Germany 100 (%
Federal-Mogul Friedberg GmbH Germany 100 0%
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Exhibn 21

Percentage of Voting
Stock Owned Directly and
Indirectly by

Name of Subsidiaries Country Federal-Mogul
Federal-Mogul Holding Deutschland GmbH Germany 100 6%
Federal-Mogul Nurenberg GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Powertrain Russia GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Bretten GmbH Germany 100 0%
Fedcral-Mogul Sealing Systems GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul TP Europe Gmbh & Co KG Germany 66 7%
Federat-Mogul TP Piston Rings GmbH Germany 66 6%
Federal-Mogul Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH Germany 100 0%
I"ederal-Mogul Verwaltungs und Beteilligungs GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Wiesbaden GmbH Germany 100 0%
Goetze Wohnungsbau GmbH Germany 100 0%
Weyburn-Bartel GmbH Germany 100 0%
Curzon Insurance Limited Guernsey 100 0%
Federal-Mogul ( T&N) Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100 0%
Federal-Mogul World Trade (Asia) Limited Hoeng Kong 100 6%
Federal-Mogul Hungary Kft Hungary 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Bearing India Limited India 63 8%
Federal-Mogul Goetze (India) Limited India 75 0%
Federal-Mogul TPR (India) Limited India 62 7%
Ferode india Private Limited India 100 0%
Satara Rubber and Chemicals Pvt Ltd India 75 0%
Federal-Mogul Ttaly Sr] Italy 100 0%
Federal Mogul Japan K K Japan 100 0%
K¥FM Bearing Co , Ltd Korea 100 (%
Federal-Mogul Luxembourg S a r | Lunembourg 100 G%
Federal-Mogul Heldings, Ltd Mauntzus [s 100 (%
I'-M Hotding Mexico, SA deCV Mexico 100 0%
Federal-Mogul de Mexico, S A deCV Mexico 99 4%
Federal-Mogul S A deC V. Mexico 98 3%
McCord Payen de Mexico S deR L Mexico 100 0%
Raimsa, SA deCV Mexico 100 0%
Servicios Administrativos Industnales, S A Mexuco 100 0%
Scrvicio de Camponentes Automotrices, SA deCA Mexico 100 0%
Subensambles Internacionales, SA de SV Mexico 100 0%
T&N de Mexico Sde R L Mexico 100 0%
Cooperatief Federal-Mogul Dutch Investments B A Netherlands 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Global B V Netherlands 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Growth B V Netherlands 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Investments B V Netherlands 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Netherlands B V Netherlands 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Bimet Spolka Akcyna Poland 95 0%
Federal-Mogul Gorzyce S A Poland 99 9%
Federal-Mogul Powertrain Vostok Q00 Russia 100 0%
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Exhibit 21

Percentage of Voting
Stock Owned directly
and Indirectly by

Name of Subsiharies Country Federal-Mogul

Federal Mogul of South Afiwca (Pty} Ltd South Africa 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket Espana, SA Spain 51 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products SA Spain 100 0%
Federal-Mogul lberica S L Spain 1060 0%
Federal-Mogul SARL Switzerland 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products (Thailand) Limited Thailand 100 0%
AE International Lumited UK 100 0%
AE Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket UK Limnted UK 100 0%%
Federal-Mogu! Bradford Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Camshaft Castings Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Camshaft Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (Continental European Operations)

Limited UK 100 0%
Iederal-Mogul Employee Trust Admimstration Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Engineering Limted UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Export Services Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul [gnitton (U K ) Linuted UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Limuted UK 100 0%
I'ederal-Mogul Sintered Products Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Systems Protection Group Limited UK 100 0%
I'-M International Limuted UK 100 0%
F-M Trademarks Limited UK 100 0%
F-M UK Holding Limted UK 100 0%
Sintration Limited UK 100 0%
FDML Holdings Limited UK 100 0%
I'ederal-Mogul UK Investments Limited UK 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Limsted UK 100 0%
Wellworthy Limited UK 100 0%
McCord Sealing, Inc US-Alabama 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Dutch Holdings Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogu! FAP, [nc US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Finance 1, LLLC US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Finance 2, LL.C US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Global Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Igmtion Company US-Delaware . 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Piston Rings Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Technical Center, LLC US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul U K Holdings Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
Ferodo America, Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
Ferodo Holdings, Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
FM Internauonal, LLC US-Delaware 100 0%
T&N Indusines Inc US-Delaware 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Powertrain Inc US-Michigan 100 0%
Federal-Mogul World Wide, Inc US-Michigan 100 0%
J WJ Holdings Inc US-Michigan 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Products, [nc US-Missoun 100 0%
Federal Mogul Venture Corporation US-Nevada 100 0%
Federal-Mogul de Venezuela, C A Venezuela 100 0%
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors of Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company’), hereby appoints Robert L Katz and Brett
Pynnonen, and each of them individually, his true and lawtul attorney-in-fact or attorneys-m-fact, with full power of substitution, for
and 1n his name, place and stead, to affix, as atterney-tn-fact, his signature, by manual or facsimile signature, electronic transmission
or otherwise to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for 1ts fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and any and all
amendments thereto to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commussion, under the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act ot
1934, as amended with power to file said Annual Report and such amendments, and any and all other documents that may be required
n connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commussion, hereby granting unto said attorneys-in-fact, and each of them,
full power and authority to do and perform any and all acts and things requisite or appropriate m connection therewith, as fully to all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person hereby rautying and confimming all that said attorneys-in-tact or any of them
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

This Power of Attorney may be executed in multiple counterparts, ¢ach of which shall be deemed an original with respect to the
person executing it

SIGNATURES
Director, President and

s/ lase Marna Alapont Chief Executive Otficer February 23, 2010
Jose Maria Alapont

/s/ George Feldenkreis Director February 23, 2010
George Feldenkreis
/s/ J Michael Laisure Director February 23, 2010
J Michael Laisure
/s/ Neil 8 Subtin Director February 23, 2010
Neil 8 Subin
/s/ James H Vandenberghe Dhirector February 23, 2010

James H Vandenbeighe
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Exhibit 311

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14{(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, José Mana Alapont, the Chief Executive Officer of Federal-Mogul Corporation (the * Company™), cerufy that

1

2

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Corporation,

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary 1o make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial formation included 1n this report, fairly present n all
matenal respects the financial conditton, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented
in this report,

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e} and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f} and 15d-15{f)) for the registrant and have

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls ard procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensuile that material information relating to the registrant. including its consolidated subsidiancs, 1s made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared,

b) Designed such intermal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting o be
designed under cur supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabiity of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness ot the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented 1n this report our conclusions
about the eftectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation, and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s mternal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally
atfected, or 1s reasonably likely to matenally affect, the registrant’s internal control over financ:al reporting, and

The registrant s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of registrant s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contrel over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant s ability to record, process, surmmarize and report financial
information, and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role n the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporung

Date  February 23, 2010

By

/s/ José Maria Alapont

Jose Maria Alapont
President and
Chiet Executive Ofticer
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Exhibit 312

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Jeft J Kamunski, the Chief Financial Officer ol Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company ), certify that

1

2

[ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Corporation,

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, 1n hight of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report,

Based on my knowledge. the financial statements, and other financial intormation included in this report, tanly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash tlows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented
1n this report,

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(1) and 15d-15(1)) for the registrant and have

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidianies, 18 made
known to us by others withun those entittes, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared,

b) Designed such intemmal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ot financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the ettectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end ot the period covered by this repont based on
such evaluation, and

d) Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally
affected, or 1s reasonably likely to matenally affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit comrmttee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons pertorming
the equivalent functions}

a) All sigmficant detictencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of mternal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information, and

b} Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a sigmficant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting

Date Febiuary 23, 2010

By

/sf Jetf } Kaminski
Jett J Kamunshki
Semor Vice President and
Chief Financtal Officer
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CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 United States Code § 1350 and
Rule 13a-14(b) ot the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Exhibit 32

The Undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge the annual report on Form 10-K o! Federal-Mogul Corporation (the
Company ) filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on the date hereof fully comphes with the requirements of section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securiies Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in such annual report fairly presents, in all

matetial respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

A signed ongmal of this written statement. or other document authenticating, acknowledging. or otherwise adopting the signatures that
appear in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by

the Company and furnished to the Secunties and Exchange Commission or 1ts staff upon request

Date February 23, 2010

By /s/ Jose Maria Alapont

Jose Maria Alapont
President and
Chief Executive Officer

By s/ Jeff ] Kaminski

Jeff J Kaminski
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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